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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT A

Dear Shareholders,

2020 is an extraordinary year for the world with the
COVID-19 epidemic.
Central Government, China has overcome the challenges
and has successfully curbed the spread of the epidemic.
Our Company has contributed a lot to the anti-epidemic

Under the overall planning of the

work, especially for Beijing and Wuhan. We have received 5
national awards and many other local awards, showing how
non-government hospitals can support the medical system of
the Country in times of crisis. On behalf of the Board, |
like to express my deepest gratitude to all
shareholders for their support, the management team and

would

staff's for their hardwork and dedication, our partners for
their trust and confidence and the very strong support from
all parties fighting this virus with us.

In 2020, the operation of our hospitals was affected by
COVID-19, especially in the first quarter, but it has since
been recovering gradually and the quarterly revenue has
resumed growth since the second half of the year. Under
the influence of the epidemic, our member hospitals
recorded approximately 7.706 million outpatient visits and
approximately 0.22 million inpatient visits during the vyear.
This was a decrease from the previous year which mainly
occurred in the first quarter. From the perspective of the
operation of the member hospitals, the total

business revenue was RMBG6.644 billion,

medical
representing a
slight decrease of 3.3% from the corresponding period in
2019. Consequently, we recorded a consolidated net profit
of RMB320 million, a 20% decrease from the previous year.

EERRE

BIRR

2020F 2B B T ERMFEMLEE - &
BAFENH—F ERRBATREET -
HET—LMERE BRESTRERBE
E o MARREMENTRBRHIIEF
R —7E AL A EE R M UR TR EH
TXEMER KETSEERAERERES
B A RE  FERR THEEARARELE
FRATEREBRSIMENEZIF
A-EHAAZBRRESTS  RLEHEE
BRI e LERBRETRMNE
HiEB) - EEEBAE TR E - W5 BIRK
HETRBEREBFRBRGEEABNERB
WAREMERFELOER -

2020F NAIE T B EB (FERE—=F
E)XEHEMALEBENTE  HHRDE
FWE - THEFEEBRARILRTEHGEIE
R-ERBFET  RRAETKEEBREZF
BEMPENBTIIE6BE AR - ERENA
20BAXR BA—FTHEFATHAMZET
FALTERAEEF—FTE - NLEEOCRE
BETHREBR2FEEEBERAXTER
66.441B T AR  E2019F RILL B T 7
3.3% ° TR 2020F 815 FFIBMA RS2
BT - A —F T #§20% °

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH



> CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EERWE

During the year amidst COVID-19, we continue to focus on
our three strategic goals — "“business expansion, capabilities
enhancement, and innovation”. In early 2020, we completed
the acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, while the latter
has also been transformed into for-profit in nature. We then
acquired the remaining equity interest of this hospital in the
second half of the year. We have also formed the neurology
specialty cluster which has our Sanjiu Brain Hospital as the
core institute, and consolidating the medical resources of
our member hospitals in Guangdong and Guangxi. By
cooperating with the fellow companies of the China
Resources Group, we have also made positive progress in
generating synergy in the operation of supply chains of drug
and medical consumables as well as our provision of
hospital management services. During the year, we have
also focused on improving our six main discipline clusters:
encephalopathy, oncology,
cardiology and gastroenterology, through the introduction of

new talents, new technologies and cooperation with other

i.e. orthopedic, rehabilitation,

renowned medical institutes to enhance our core
capabilities. In order to enhance the patients’ experiences,
we strive to improve our “Run-Xin" service system and have
introduced the best practice standards of the system during

the year.

EHEMLEBTNE—F  RMDEERN
[FBEMAE - RFRED  BIEAIF | = KBRS
B1R - 2020 FHHFEM T HEREAE
ST BEREIEE - SRk T 2 BB Ay & F ekl
T FERTHEFWETZRNBE TR
BE o BT A= NSHRIE BT Az - BE S 1
TER -  EAMMHEBERELR  AZKEE
REBUMRERZEROGE - FRBEE
HRERAEMKE AR BMEHERESERE
MERAEEHESHE LIS TRENE
B FARMNEZENREFER - BKE &
BE LB EBAEE A KERER BB
SI#EAT B AFT M FIE INE 1ELARR FH %
DEEN  ERABEREERIE - BRME
BIEHRETBREEREIBEL ] BERS
BR RARBRE-
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2021 is the first year of our “country’s 14th Five-Year plan”.
CR Medical will continue to strive for the goal of becoming
a trusted premium hospital group with strong specialty
chains and general hospitals as its two wings of business
development, and to utilize the resources of capital market
and commercialization to empower its growth. We will
focus on the business development in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay
Area, and will also have footprints in the major cities of the
country. The Company will focus on further strengthening
key specialties and accelerating the specialty cluster
transformation. We aim at becoming a renowned medial
group with good clinical brand, providing high-quality
services, and having satisfactory appreciation in its capital.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to
extend my heartfelt thanks to our shareholders and business
partners for their great support.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Chairman
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A MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

10

BEBNWEDSN

The consolidated revenue of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020 amounted to RMB2.751 billion (FY2019:
RMB2.115 billion), is mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital and
consolidation of certain other hospitals. Please refer to the
section headed "“Consolidating Certain Hospitals” below for
further details; net profit for the period amounted to
RMB320 million (FY2019: RMB401 million). Earnings per
share of the Company amounted to RMBO0.25 (FY2019:
RMBO0.31). Such decrease as compared with the prior year
was mainly due to the drop in number of visits to our
member hospitals as affected by the COVID-19 epidemic
during the Reporting Period, especially in the first quarter.

and such an increase

As of December 31, 2020, the Group managed and
operated a total of 107 medical institutions in 9 provinces
and cities in the PRC. The number of outpatient and
inpatient visits of our in-network hospitals were
approximately 7,706,000 and 220,000, respectively. Although
acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has been completed,
the total revenue from medical business of our member
hospitals recorded approximately RMB6.644 billion during the
Reporting Period which represents a YoY decrease of 3.3%
as affected by the COVID-19 epidemic. However, business
operations have been significantly recovering since May
2020.

ANEBEZE2020F1283BIEFEHLER
RAEEBARK27511E 7T (20198 B F
E: AR¥211587L)  HEAMNERFER
WEEREABRAHRERERMEL -
HBERTXIHER RS EZ6 - RS
HNGFHEAAREI 208 T (201981
WEE : ARE4.01BT) RERBFMARKE
0.257C (20198 FE : AR¥E0317L) + &
BEF—FHATH TEIREHRGF
FRE—FE)KEBRZEARNZIERE
SEFTH o

B ZE2020912 8318 K& B £ F HME
A THEEELIO7TREERE  K&H
KEBEEMZENEREN R AEL770.6
EM20BAXR REFERSRELE
REFYIZR T BREIBRAOWE  ®E
HRNAKEKEBRMNBEEBRKARA
REE#66.4418 70 B E—F FFHH3.3%
HEBQEBERD 8202065 AN HKEE
18 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The COVID-19 Outbreak

During the outbreak of the epidemic, Wugang Hospital and
Wuhan (Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff
Hospital are at the forefront of disease combat and control,

[ron and Steel

which focusing on the in-house work while providing
in Wuhan City

including Wuhan Jinyintan Hospital and certain mobile cabin

assistance to other medical institutes
hospitals at the same time. Its three community healthcare
clinics are responsible to provide medical consultation for
close contacts of COVID-19 patients and transferring
suspected patients. In addition,
institutes of CR Medical in Beijing, Jiangsu, Shandong,

Anhui, Guangdong and Guangxi are also actively undertaking

other member medical

the anti-epidemic work under the unified deployment of the
local health commissions. Huaikuang Hospital, the Second
Hospital of Shunyi District of Beijing, Mentougou District
Hospital and the Tai'an City Hospital
designated by the government as the designated
hospitals for admitting and treating COVID-19 patients, and

of Beijing, were

local

have
affiliated hospitals of the Group had set up fever clinics or
participated in the community prevention and control work in

received government commendation awards. 15

the corresponding
patients and has become an important force in community
prevention and control. In addition, the synergy advantages
of China Resources Group had great support to the supply
chain management department of CR Medical, and the latter
has also immediately established an emergency supply team

regions, and the screening of fever

in launching an emergency procurement plan, contacting
procurement and
and effectively ensure sufficient supply of

various sources for medical material
donations,
prevention and control materials to our member institutes in
different regions in the situation of tight supply. During the
COVID-19 epidemic, CR Medical made effective use of the
three-dimensional anti-epidemic model of “Wuhan frontline
+ designated hospitals in various regions + fever clinics &
community prevention + promising group supply chain”,
taking an importing role and taking great responsibility in

virus fighting as a social capital medical group.

EEENWEDAN

FEHERIE

ERIGHE - RiERMRERE (RE) A
AE-RBRIBRAENRE REBETHRANER
BRI WIMRRES BB AR
BBt o A T B35 & 87 A AR5 P O RIAIE
BOZRBEDR RUBEEESZT(E-M
ERBEMAEILR I LR &
MESHMNEMEREE B AR
RO —BMET £ -EHHEESAERLRT
fE LR TAER  ItRMIBERRFE 8
Bt dbRTPISRB R BB - TR LT I
5K B B 1R b U 45 TE /= [ OB # e Bib 2 8
EITHBEE  RBEHEERS IR
MENEIEBRTRERY - AEE TE15
KA LB RIERMD R EB M
HEETE  FERARBE KATHE
PIIENEENE - I RO REFHEEHE
HRES  FEBEFRHEREERE —KEH
B ESHENE  RPESREBRSE B
BEEMERBNBE EzBEHEDEHR
EHREERNBELT  ARERET TESE
B EME R T E - FRERAERNRNEN
TR NE A A A [ R S ATAR + & 3@ E # W
AT+ EAPIR ML EIE+ EBEYEH
EREINZBLCARBER RATHEE
AMBEAENBRIETNERER  ROTR
BAEEARNEES

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET N

Regarding our resumption of normal operation and business
recovery, our member medical institutes have implemented
graded and accurate resumption of production. During the
epidemic, the member hospital management team and all
medical staff postponed their leave and were all on duty. CR
Medical formulated a phased
according to locations of different risk levels since February
2020,
operation by the end of March 2020. During the year, the
number of visits to member hospitals was affected by the

resumption arrangement

and all institutes have basically resumed normal

epidemic which caused the total number of inpatient and
outpatient visits to our member hospitals to decrease by
12.9% and 12.2%, respectively. Yet we believe that the
impact of the epidemic on our business is temporary. The
of patients of our hospital rebounded
significantly in May 2020. Since June 2020, the business
operation and medical income of our member hospitals have

number has

basically resumed to the normal level when compared with
the prior year.

Consolidating Certain Hospitals

During the year, the Group has completed the acquisition of
Jinan Zhong Qu Hospital or gradually consolidated certain
other hospitals. Among which, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has
in early 2020, and its
statements have been consolidated into the
Group’s condensed financial statements since April 2020.

completed its for-profit reform

financial

The Group has also completed the acquisition of the
remaining equity interest in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital in the
third quarter of 2020.

On December 5, 2019, the National Health Commission
issued the template of standard public hospital constitutional
and the City
accordingly included the Huaikuang Hospital into the local
pilot program. After completing the amendments of relevant
constitutional documents, it has fulfilled the conditions of

documents, local authority of Huaibei

consolidation pursuant to the applicable accounting
standards and therefore Huaikuang Hospital's financial
statements have been included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements since May 2020. In addition, in order to
improve hospital governance and based on the completion
of similar constitutional amendments as of Huaikuang
Hospital, the Run Neng Hospitals’ financial statements have

also been consolidated to the Group since June 2020.

MEILHMERIRESE - KB BE#E
BERETDE DHRBEEILEE -&RIBH
M -NEBREEERLEEE THENK
B 2EEEEMN EHEEREMBESE
EREREMNZEEDRES - KERH
[& - 8202042 A 17 46 12 1 B &l 7E 7 & ER
MWE T8 MEAR2020F3 AKEIRIEFT
EREBRMETES FAKEBRZE
ARZEZEZE  KEBREBMNER &
PFIR AR DRI TR T7129%F112.2% 5 M
MRAEBHRAEBEBNTZEBNY R
Mo B2020F5 AMABZEABEBEEKD
F+ BB B2020F6 A D BEBIMAEAR
WEE K FREIKT -

& — R385

FA - ANEE FERCHE R E T BB A WE
EEMRZREBR - & HEEAERD
REFITER T & F ksl - mEPBRE S
2020F4 A AW ARSEE S O 15 &
Ao REETTEN2020FEE=FE K LB
MERERG T REN W -

201912 A5 - IRXBEREZEG %
TRANEBRERESEAN  ERELITEMES
MBS EREBRI AENHREEHE - R
BT BANERE%E  SheiEd
ERAgHENRNIREH  WEMBRE
B202055 AMBMNAREE & HFI @K
e B4 HEERBRATEERIGETHE
PRE il RERNEREETNENK - BB
WEKINE2020F6 AR MNAREERN X
#E o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <
EEENWED AN

List of Medical Institutions under the AEEEEEEBERBI MR
Group’s Management and Operation

Grade |

Hospitals Clinics &

and Other

Community Medical

Grade Il Grade I Centres Institutions

Hospitals Hospitals —A& =Kk BAKEM

Province/City B/ =B —RER R EEKE
Beijing IR 1 5 11 29 46
Hebei A e = 1 = = 1
Shandong‘“(z’ 11| B M@ — 3 — — 3
Shanxi A = 1 = = 1
Jiangsu PR3 = 1 — — 1
Anhui L 1 6 16 6 29
Hubei Vil 2 — 3 15 20
Guangdong E® 1 1 — 2 4
Guangxi Ef = 1 1 — 2
Total Xl 5 19 31 52 107

Notes: 3

(1) Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital completed its reform to for-profit nature during the (1) EREABRENBEHARTHR T EFESS - m

Reporting Period and its financial statements have been consolidated to HE5RE 5202054 AFRBMAREEE 153k
the consolidated financial statements of the Group since April 2020. G

(2) Pursuant to the hospital operation and management agreement which was (2) REAEEENREEETERRFLABRERLE

entered into between the Group, Shandong Yantai Zhifu Health Bureau* AZREMRFIMABEANR2020F12 A30H 2 Bt
(ILREEAMERBEERER) and Yantai Zhifu Hospital* (B4 2 REER) BEAREEWSE ASEAECCRERREHRES
dated December 30, 2020, the Group provides operation and management LEBRTY - A1EHRA204F o

services to Yantai Zhifu Hospital for a cooperation term of 20 years.

FERBEERERLAT —T _TFH



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE N wE D AT
Operating data for Year 2020 2020 F £ EHE
Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
BEEBUANRETT)
Revenue Revenue Revenue
Number of  Utilization from from from
beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical
operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination
BERME KAERE FRAR  PIZBA  EREA  BREA
Self-owned BEER®
Hospitals™oe! 7,481 67% 4,246,313 164,343 1,606,092 2,291,121 90,293 3,987,506
IOT/OT Hospitals IOT/OTE B 3,484 60% 3,459,692 55,415 1,591,639 1,011,990 52,717 2,656,346
Subtotal et 10,965 65% 7,706,005 219,758 3,197,731 3,303,111 143,010 6,643,852
Operating data for Year 2019 2019F € EHE

Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)

BREBUAARETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of  Utilization from from from

beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

{id] BERME KUFERE 2N AR FMZRA  EREA  EEEA

Self-owned BREER

Hospitals™°®! 7,074 72% 4,732,255 191,336 1,568,840 2,564,045 66,724 4,199,609
IOT/OT Hospitals I0T/OTE Bt 3,148 75% 4,048,660 61,032 1,581,933 1,043,594 43,667 2,669,194
Subtotal & 10,222 73% 8,780,915 252,368 3,150,773 3,607,639 110,391 6,868,803

Note: In respect of the operating data statistics, the abovementioned self-owned it : BEEZREHKFEN Ll AASERANIERER Y

hospitals refer to all consolidated hospitals and unconsolidated hospitals of FrEHRBR RIFEMHRER  TREAFNEEERE
the Group, and except for the IOT/OT hospitals managed by the Group. KIOT/OTE b °

14 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Financial data

Financial data for Year 2020

Unconsolidated
Hospitals
FHRBER

Consolidated
Hospitals

RMB'000 HRBbR

EEENWEDAN

B 1% 8B
2020F B Bl 15

Segment results

hospitals
I0T/OT &

Other derived
businesses
H TR

|0T/0T Administrative

expenses

Other gains and
expenses

Revenue from goods i & MR Mg
and services 2,750,650 1,674,696 288,763 760,856 26,335 = -
Cost of sales and HERRBHA
services (2,114,143) (1,379,012) (148,670) (566,051) (20,410) - -
Other income A 29,189 14,075 = 9,588 5,526 = =
Other gains and losses Ho e RIE#E 356 356 - - - - -
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (14,201) (2,639) (3,641) (7,921) = = =
Administrative expenses THER (201,821) (151,255) (6,551) (33,641) (10,374) - -
Finance costs HBER (2,444) (2,422) = = (22)
Impairment losses on SREERE
financial and contract BiEEE
assets,net (20,178) (18,258) - (1,920) - - =
Impairment losses on an  EfERAE
other intangible REEE
assets (3,588) = = (3,588) = = =
Other expenses Hit&F (7,392) (7,173) = - (219) - -
Share of profit of joint [EIEEE /BE
ventures/associates DAl 35,119 - 1,072 34,047 - - -
Segment results DHMEE 451,547 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 N/ATER N/ATER
Headquarters operating wEHEEER
expenses (121,943) - - - - (121,943) -
Other profit or loss Hihigas 103,679 - - - - - 103,679
Finance costs BBER (14,947) - - - - - (14,947)
Share of profit of FE{REHE A Rl
associates (151) = = = = = (151)
Income tax FifEH (97,864) = = = = = (97,864)
Net profit or loss TR 320,321 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 (121,943) (9,283)
Revenue from medical ~ BEEBKA
business 6,643,852 1,643,620 2,343,886 2,656,346 = N/ATER N/ATER
Notes: 5
During the Reporting Period: RREBA -
(1) Consolidated hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital (1) HRERBIE: 25 B - & TER (820205

(since April 2020), Huaikuang Hospital Group (since May 2020) and the
Run Neng Hospitals (since June 2020).
(2) Unconsolidated hospitals include: Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Huaibei
City Mental Health Center (since January 2020), Xukuang Hospital,
Wugang Hospital Group, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital (January 2020 to March
2020), Huaikuang Hospital Group (January 2020 to April 2020) and the Run
Neng Hospitals (January 2020 to May 2020).
(3) IOT hospitals include: Jing Mei Hospital Group, Mentougou Hospital,
Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children, Shunyi District Konggang Hospital, the Second
Hospital of Shunyi District and Baoding Third Center Hospital.

(4) OT hospitals include: Tai'an City Hospital and Yantai Zhifu Hospital.

ARRE)  EEEBEE (8202055 A ) KBk R
=kt (8202066 A #E) ©

FEGFR BB AT BR = ISR BhT it T
(DR) L (B20209F1 Ai#R) ~ RIEERT « R
BITEE - EREENER (202061 AE3A) kR
BT @ (2020F1 AE48) B RE R BT (20204F
1AZE5R) -

IOTEERE B - RABREE  PFIEEESE - PI5R
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWED N

2019 F B K & 5%

Segment results

Financial data for Year 2019

7R
Administrative
expenses

|0T/0T
Hospitals
|0T/OT 2z

Other derived
businesses
Hit AT %7

Unconsolidated
Hospitals
FEHRER

Other gains and
expenses
ABER HtWERER

Consolidated
Hospitals

RMB'000 HRER

Revenue from goods i R AR i

and services 2,115,320 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 — —
Cost of sales and HERRBHA

services (1,353,029) (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276) - -
Other income HA 16,445 1,655 — 10,206 4,584 — —
Other gains and losses Hin i R EE (790) (790) = = = — —
Selling and distribution HERAHER

expenses (15,750) (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25) - -
Administrative expenses  {THER (99,115) (65,043) (6,715) (20,298) (7,059) = —
Other expenses Hit &R (1,961) (836) = = (1,125) = =
Segment results S BEE 661,120 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 — —
Headquarters operating BHELER

expenses (138,704) — — — — (138,704) —
Other profit or loss HibiEas 31,179 — — — — — 31,179
Finance costs HBER (16,942) — = = = = (16,942)
Share of profit of joint FEIRAE /B

ventures/associates AAEIFE 4,646 = = = = = 4,646
Income tax Bt (140,665) = — — — = (140,665)
Net profit or loss FEH 400,634 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 (138,704) (121,782)
Revenue from medical ~ EEXEHKKA

business 6,868,803 721,055 3,478,554 2,669,194 — N/ATiE B N/ATiE B

Segment Results 7 EBEAR

In 2020, the aggregated results of all segments amounted
to about RMB452 million, which decreased by
approximately 31.7% as compared with the previous vyear,
and is mainly due to the fact that the number of visits to
our member hospitals was affected by the COVID-19
epidemic with the total number of inpatient and outpatient
visits to our member hospitals during the Reporting Period
decreased respectively by 12.9% and 12.2%, resulting in the
to decrease of the medical income of the member hospitals
as well as their contributed profits to the Group. Please
refer to the section headed “Business Review — COVID-19
Outbreak” of this report for further details of the Group's
measures to COVID-19 epidemic and the corresponding
analysis.

2020 F B EB D EMBEEFTHAAREAL52
B REFRLTHEAN31.7% TEHR
HEHAREEKEEBRZ2EAXZIFE
MERBYE PHEEERALKMZ
R BITBET129%H112.2% - HEBH KB
BRWA TR EHEHANEBENHFEER
HETHA EHRAEBEETERSEBN
BREAN - FBERARS [ EKOE —
RSB RBIED -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

As the corresponding constitutional documents of the
hospitals have been amended, results of Huaikuang Hospital
and the Run Neng Hospitals have been consolidated to the
Group since May and June 2020, respectively. Please find
more details in the section headed “Business Review —
Consolidating Certain Hospitals” of this report. According to
the abovementioned changes in the consolidation
arrangement statements, during the
Reporting Period, our financial results have been classified
in three segments which are Consolidated Hospitals,

Unconsolidated Hospitals and 10T/OT Hospitals.

in our financial

During the Reporting Period, the medical business revenue
of the consolidated hospital segment increased by 127.9%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1.644 billion, and the
segment
approximately RMB128 million, which is mainly due to the
satisfactory recovery of the operation of the Huaikuang
Hospital Group and Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital especially in the
second half of 2020.

results recorded an increase of 2.9% to

EEENWEDAN

HEEREIZMER] - EREBH M B R
Bt 29 B 202045 At F16 A {7 A # A A
SENHREE FERAARSZHEE
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED N

Since Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has completed its for-profit
reform during the Reporting Period, its financial statements
have been consolidated into the Group’s condensed financial
statements since April 2020. Its contribution in respect of
medical business revenue was RMB191 million. In addition,
the financial results of the Huaikang Hospital Group and the
Run Neng Hospitals have also been consolidated to the
Group respectively since May and June 2020, which

respectively contributed RMB510 million and RMB328
million in terms of revenue of medical services during the
Reporting Period.

BEEEAERERHREEATR T &R
H o M E B SRR B2020F 4 A AR
SEAHMBEHREAN ZRBRNGEER
IRIGWA B ARE191ETT - BN FHER
BirSBEAHERER D H AR 20205 A
MeARMMBMAREE I REE - REHHA
BRERGEEBERBEBAS B AARKES10
B ARSI 281ETT ©

2020 2019  Year-on-Year Change
20204 20194 A bt 284k
Consolidated Hospitals HERB RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 Percentage
ARETT ARBTT AR®TTT B

Revenue from medical BREBEWA

business 1,643,620 721,055 922,565 127.9%
General healthcare services #24 EERTE

performance 72,271 64,033 8,238 12.9%
Third-party supply chain E=HHERE

service fees R & 31,076 23,077 7,999 34.7%
GPO gross profit GPOEH| 38,485 41,155 (2,670) -6.5%
Profit contribution FEEREE 141,832 128,265 13,567 10.6%
Profit contribution rate FMEERIE 8.6% 17.8% -9.2ppt
Operating expenses and BEERAREM

other profit or loss bi=Fa (13,464) (3,554) (9,910) 278.8%
Segment results o EBFELE 128,368 124,711 3,657 2.9%
Segment profit margin 2 B F = 7.8% 17.3% -9.5ppt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Segment Results — Unconsolidated
Hospitals

During the Reporting Period, the overall medical business
revenue of the unconsolidated hospital segment decreased
by 32.6% year-on-year to approximately RMB2.344 billion,
while segment profit recorded a year-on-year decrease of
45.7% to approximately RMB131 million, mainly attributable
to above-mentioned changes in the consolidation
arrangement of the Huaikuang Hospital Group and the Run
Neng Hospitals during the Reporting Period, and also the
impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the corresponding hospitals
in the first quarter of 2020.

Nevertheless, Wugang Hospital and Wuhan Iron and Steel
(Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff Hospital received donations
and government subsidies which to some extent has offset
the impact of the decrease in the segment results.

EEENWEDAN

]

DERFE — FEHRER

WMEBRA - EHREBR O BOEBEEER
W AR TB8E32.6% ZH ARKE23 448 7T -
/UB%IJ/FiﬁIJﬁ- BRI TRAE TR EHARKE
1318 TEHR LM ERERERREE
b % SRR E BN RETHERBAR
NERSRIBR2020FE—FE AIEEER
H?;KE’]E/;%; o

o BB MBS (RE) REFE -
B T BB A R B R 1B 1R G S B
BE—ERE BT BB T ENTZE

2020 2019  Year-on-Year Change
Unconsolidated 20204 20194 Cilsd-Xld
Hospitals FEOF R BB RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 Percentage
ARETT AR®TrT ARETT Bt
Revenue from medical BEEKRKRA
business 2,343,886 3,478,554 (1,134,668) -32.6%
Hospital management BRERRBE
services fees 47,889 134,029 (86,140) —64.3%
Third-party supply chain FE=-HHERE
service fees RIS E 77,607 100,164 (22,557) —-22.5%
GPO gross profit GPOER| 17,608 19,365 (1,757) -9.1%
Profit contribution AMBEMES 143,104 253,558 (110,454) —43.6%
Profit contribution rate FEE R = 6.1% 7.3% -1.2ppt
Operating expenses and EEBEAREM
other profit or loss bi=Ery (12,131) (12,452) 321 -2.6%
Segment results pal i E 3 130,973 241,106 (110,133) -45.7%
Segment profit margin 2 B FI = 5.6% 6.9% —1.3ppt
Segment Results — IOT/OT Hospitals DEREE — IOT/OTER:
The revenue from medical business of the IOT/OT hospital  |0T/OT & Bz 55 &0 K ¥ & B PR ) B8 B ZE S UL
segment remains at a similar level when compared with the #&AI —FEREFF - MO IPELER L T 7
prior year, while this segment recorded a YoY decrease of 31.7% °

31.7% in its results.
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET N

CR Hospital Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the restructuring agreement with
Jing Mei Group in respect of Jing Mei Hospital and its
branches during the Reporting Period, and pursuant to which
CR Hospital Holdings and Jing Mei Group agreed to
establish a sponsorship joint venture and a management
joint venture. Such joint ventures shall be owned as to 49%
by CR Hospital Holdings and 51% by Jing Mei Group. The
contract parties also agreed that Jing Mei Group, the
management joint venture and Jing Mei Hospital shall enter
into a new OT agreement on terms similar to the original
IOT agreement in order to replace the latter, and pursuant
to which the management joint venture shall provide
hospital management services to the Jing Mei Hospital
Group and receive management fee income accordingly. The
abovementioned original 10T agreement shall then be
terminated with retrospective effect from December 31,
2019, whilst the new OT agreement shall retrospectively
become effective on January 1, 2020. For further details of
the restructuring agreement of Jing Mei Hospital, please
refer to the section headed “Other information —
Restructuring Agreement of Jing Mei Hospital” to this

report. Based on the abovementioned arrangement, during
the Reporting Period, the results of our sponsorship joint
venture and management joint venture with Jing Mei Group
which are attributable to the Group have been recorded in
the 10T/OT Hospitals Segment.

BEHRN AEETBZEMNBRARERE
R EREEERREER R TBD R

E%ﬁzﬁ# SE T B BRHERRER
FEHBRIERMRESEE D RIFIRA9%
51%mtt1§uﬁ}zj BRRENRMEEEE

~Al e MIRBREARZE  FTOTRERES
B AEEBREQARMREERALBEAIOT
Tzz’;mﬁfﬂm RNEGIFOTHE - WKLEHE
BEERENRAREERIREER ERRGE I
WEREEEBWZD  RIOTHEAEBPE 2019
F12A3TBRKRIE - RIBBEFOOTHHEEE
WE2020F 1 A1 HBERK - ﬁEQLLE‘\@E
rEABZE L FBERAREEMER — R
HEEbrE A a2 c AR LML HE - 3R
SHNERHEEBN LA ERHENR]
EEBERATNEREBASEMNKEEE
IOT/OTEE D &P R & o

2020 2019 Year-on-Year Change
20204 20194 [l £ 24
|OT/OT hospitals IOT/OT &P RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  Percentage
ARBTT AREFTT AR®TE BAL

Revenue from medical BREKBA

business 2,656,346 2,669,194 (12,848) -0.5%
Hospital management BEEEREE

services fees 65,058 98,600 (33,542) -34.0%
Third-party supply chain = HhREdE

service fees REE 71,603 91,610 (20,007) -21.8%
GPO gross profit GPOEFI 127,456 142,572 (15,116) -10.6%
Profit contribution AEEREF 264,117 332,782 (68,665) -20.6%
Profit contribution rate FMERERRE 9.9% 12.5% -2.5ppt
Operating expenses and other B4 & H M E A

profit or loss B (72,747) (52,553) (20,194) 38.4%
Segment results DEEE 191,370 280,229 (88,859) -31.7%
Segment profit margin 2 5 F R 7.2% 10.5% -3.3ppt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

During the year, the segment results of the other derived
businesses of the Group was approximately RMBO0.836
million. It was about 94.5% lower than RMB15.07 million in
the previous year. Such decrease was mainly due to the
significant reduction in business scale of consultation
business, physician companies and clinic network due to the
impact of COVID-19 epidemic.

The total operating expenses of the headquarters amounted
to approximately RMB122 million in 2020 (FY2019: RMB139
million), accounting for 37.7% of the total administrative
expenses of the Group (FY2019: 58.4%) and such a
decrease was mainly due to implementation of new
government policies which reduce the cost of social security
fee as well as our intent reduction of operating expenses
during the epidemic.

During the Reporting Period, other profit or loss of the
Group totaled approximately RMB104 million (FY2019:
RMB31.18 million), and such an increase was mainly due to
the foreign exchange gain as well as the increase in our
interest income of the bank deposit.

During the Reporting Period, the unallocated finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB14.95 million
(FY2019: RMB16.94 million), which was mainly due to the
decrease in interest rate of our loan.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax
expenses amounted to RMB97.86 million (FY2019: RMB141
million). The effective income tax rate of the Group’'s
recurring business was 23.4% (FY2019: 26.0%).

The performance of the Group’s hospitals during the
Reporting Period was affected by the COVID-19 epidemic.
The Group recorded a net profit of RMB320 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
20.0%. However, the impact of the epidemic on the
business of the Group is temporary.

EEENWEDAN
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED T

Pursuant to International Accounting Standards 38, an RIEBIEESIER|IFE3I8H - KYTAEHEBERA
intangible asset shall be regarded by the entity as having an ZEETDNE W ZEEABTEELFR
indefinite useful life when based on an analysis of all of the &R AZEAER A ATETAER » BItRZ
relevant factors, and there is no foreseeable limit to the HEFEEHERM=ABEERRNEHAE -
period over which the asset is expected to generate net

cash inflows for the entity.

The Group has considered the following factors and ZAEEDZENIIEZE  WALESHAEH
concluded that the Group has the ability to renew the IGREHFBRPMESEGBEERER - £
service contracts of Xukuang Hospital Group, Huaibei City  T#&4R CLIR) A O & = LIS BT /9 AR
Mental Health Center and 999 Brain Hospital (“Service &R ([REEE] @ M2k A ERIER
Contracts”, and each of the hospitals, the “Sponsored #EEPx|) @ BiSRELREAERDEAK
Hospital”) through the sponsorship rights, and it is SBEZEBERFEHBFHNEFLEETIENR
appropriate to classify the sponsorship rights and service & :

contracts as the intangible assets of the Group of infinite

useful life:

1. The sponsors of the Sponsored Hospitals are 1. HiERASERIESEFTAERIEA AARE B M
subsidiaries of the Group; IE=NGIE

o

2. The rights and obligations of the sponsors as stipulated 2. &iERARIEEFTAZIZ400) 5T A 2R i

in the articles of associations of each Sponsored ARER R ET - R E ()RS HEE
Hospitals include, among others, (i) access to the BB CER R R EERE ¢ (i)
operation status and financial reports of the Sponsored BHNTEZEGNE r MWITZEELAM
Hospitals, (ii) recommending members to the executive ARPEERNRREIEE &

committee which is the highest authority of the
Sponsored Hospitals; and

3. According to the articles of association of Xukuang 3. 1RIB1GTEEEETEEE - FERIZERT DA M i 8

Hospital Group, 999 Brain Hospital and also Wugang BN ERMA - BRESEWNIITEZE
Hospital, their respective executive committee BIE3HHBMAKBNKE 15 H
comprises three members recommended by the EEBHAOKE M1 BETHEBERT
sponsor, one member elected by the employees and FEFEMKE - FITZESU2EUE
one member who is the chairman of the labor union of TEEGRZUFRAMENHEARR
the relevant hospital. Executive committee has the EEREER -

absolute right in renewal of the Service Contracts with
the relevant resolution to be approved by simple
majority vote of the executive committee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Management of the Company performed impairment

reviews of sponsorship rights, service contracts and
goodwill annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicated a potential impairment. The
recoverable amounts of the abovementioned sponsorship
rights,

based on the fair value under income approach less costs of

service contracts and goodwill were determined
disposal. These calculations required the use of estimates
and professional and management of the
Company involved an external valuer in these calculations.

judgements,

Based on the management’'s assessment, no impairment
was required on the abovementioned sponsorship rights and
service contracts and goodwill as at December 31, 2020.

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange (Stock code 722.HK),
engaging in providing healthcare solutions and service in
Hong Kong. Details of investment in UMP Healthcare
Holdings have been disclosed in the Company’s annual

is continuously

reports in prior years. Pursuant to the relevant accounting
standards, the Company has categorized the investment in
UMP Healthcare Holdings as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at December 31, 2020, the fair
value of our investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings was
approximately RMB92.72 million.

Save for the capital requirements in respect of the
involvement in the reform of Jing Mei Hospital Group and
the acquisition of Huaiyin Hospital (which will be funded by
the internal resources and bank borrowings of the Group),
the Directors confirmed that, as at the date of this
announcement, there are currently no concrete plans to
acquire any material investment or capital assets other than

those conducted in the Group’s ordinary course of business.

EEENWEDAN
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET N

Starting from 2021, the first year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” of development of the country, we will focus on our
core business in provision of medical whilst
continue to strengthen our advantageous specialties and
transforming certain institutes to specialty chain clusters at
the same time. In terms of our business development, we
will take specialty chain hospitals and general hospitals as

services,

our two wings, and geographically we will focus on the
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the Yangtze River Delta, the
Greater Bay Area, and also certain key cities in China, and
make use of the energy of capital market and our highly
commercialized operation as the strong motors in building
our development model which linked up the medical service
business and the capital operations. In respect of our
specialty development, we will continue to implement the
strategic policy of strengthening clinical practice, incubating
chain hospitals, and shaping our brand, leveraging the
advantages of CR Medical's advantageous disciplines, and by
integrating existing hospitals and expanding
hospitals to cultivate six discipline clusters covering
cardiovascular, encephalopathy, orthopedics, rehabilitation,
gastroenterology and oncology in order to strengthen our
core competitive advantages and our brand name in these
disciplines. Regarding our general hospitals, our strategy is
the transformation to the status of “major specialties and
strong general practice”, and continue to improve specialties
based on the existing advantageous ones, further enhance
the operation system of our general hospitals and improve
the operation efficiency. CR Medical will continue to uphold
the enterprise mission of “benefit all with benevolence and
competence”,
competent medical group in China.

incremental

and aim at becoming a renowned and

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its
operations and also bank facilities. Its cash requirements
relate primarily to operating activities, business expansion,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital
expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

2021 FR[+HAIFABRZF - RAGERIA
BERBREIX BEMREZER - LA
BEMNEHERHEUNBEREM - EXRBEH
BTE - A ERHEE B R 2R A B
RER - EE ERRH AR R=AH
RNEE WHREEHNHE BEENEL
FITH 50 5 /5 8 5| A RS 12 B AR A5 X AT
BERELRUERMANEREN - EERER
JTE RPITSAEERCERIRRE S - BERE
HEMER RIEEEEmE  BHEEER
BERANERHMES - RIS A AINER A LR
BERBEOLMEM KH - 58 RE
B OBERI MR RIS KSR R - okt
BLOBFEYE TEEFHRBEREZENM
fE o HERA BRRAEE T E - A IR
EIRFER - 284 INBERELE  UREE
DEMBER  HEUWREEN  REEESE
RELRAWREELNGE - FHERSGHE
BRATCOLCH - RERTINEEED
RARZERE BA—RNEBREREKE -

RPN BEEEE BB AERFRE2IHB
AR REBXTBEBLEELEZES MR
TRERZERHES - AKEREFTRE
BHEEEY XHAR EEINHAG -
BAXH - MERBBIKMNAER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB3.09 billion in total
(December 31, 2019: approximately RMB2.276 billion) which
were primarily in RMB.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has obtained offshore
revolving term loan facility of HK$3.8 billion (or its
equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi). Among which, HK$3
billion of the facilities is with no fixed term until further
notice by the corresponding bank, whilst the remaining
HK$800 million is of the term of one year which shall be
automatically renewed if the relevant bank does not notify
otherwise. In addition, a consolidated hospital of the Group
has also obtained from a bank in mainland a one-year loan
facility of RMB15 million. As at December 31, 2020, the
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$799
million and RMB12 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB684 million) 2019: HK$646 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB578 million)), and unutilized
bank facilities of HK$3.001 billion and RMB3 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB2.529 billion). As at
December 31, 2020, the Group's offshore bank borrowings
carried interests at floating rates whilst its onshore bank

Group had

(December 31,

borrowings carried interests at fixed rate of 2.9% per
annum, and all of them would be due within one year. As at
December 31, 2020, the Group’'s amounts payable to the
sponsored hospitals of the Group amounted to RMB218

million (December 31, 2019: RMB256 million).

As at December 31, 2020, on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 7.6% (December 31, 2019: 7.3%). In addition, the
carrying value of each of our wealth management products
as at December 31, 2020 did not exceed 5% of the Group’s
total asset value.

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

EEENWEDAN
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET N

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers

manages the currency

hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

We are also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we have
been taking an active approach to attract, train and retain
sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel and other
medical staff members, otherwise the business of hospitals
affiliated to the Group would be affected to some degree.
Please refer to the paragraph headed "“Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration

Policy” for those measures mentioned above.

We also recognise that our relationship with patients and
partners is key to the resilient development of the Group.
We strive to provide qualified services and medical staffs
with extensive experiences to our patients. By leveraging on
sophisticated medical skills and equipment, we try our best
to cater to our patients’ needs for medical treatments. We
also cooperate with our partners to achieve the sustainable
development of our business.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group did not have any
contingent guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

liabilities or

As of December 31, 2020, the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.

Hubei Runkang (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land) entered into a
hospital management agreement on March 12, 2021 and
pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (as
the principal) shall appoint Hubei Runkang as the manager to
provide comprehensive operation and management services

A S B AR PR E T HT 4 & K0 B I L ©
EREABNIER)ERLEDRERE
AR ELBENESR  SRENEEY
B A B 7T 2 o

BT EE AT R - 8 — BB RREUERE
BEARS B RBRERANESERE
£EEABMEMEHBAER SR
BHEREBHZE —ENTE - L5
HRAHmEEEENmENT — BELH
PR B o

BATMRAMERARAERHNBRERAE
BEBREZRNORER - BRMAZHBBEAR
HEERY  SREALBEREETNHEEZA
8 ERRANBERIMMRE  FHme
MANBERE - RAITESERFH IR
D NERBRMARGOAFEER -

MN2020F12 B31H » ANEE I & % A (1)
SHAREEREMR N EEELE AT EN
HBEBEHER-

#H 1E20205F12 8318 AEFEF [ E KX
EEET -

MILER (RRARcHEZEMBAR) BR
NERBABRAR (EHEH HEEE
MEBAR)ENR2021FE3A12B R —HE
RETEEE R - B - RYIEIRE R
ERARI(HERZFR) BEFEMILEE (1E
AEBRBAN)RAETBUREAEBMEMRKL
Wi FEREREBRREH2MESERER

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

for its Yuenianhua Nanning Rehabilitation Hospital located in

Nanning City of Guangxi Province which include the
introduction of management and operation systems, building
management team of the hospital, and the introduction of
various resources such as hospital brand and medical
technology by Hubei Runkang. Hubei Runkang shall receive
service fee from Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd.
(during the preparation period) or the hospital (starting from
official opening of the hospital) for provision of various
management services under the hospital management
agreement. The term of such agreement shall commence
up to December 31, 2023; and this arrangement constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated March
12, 2021 for further

transaction.

details of the abovementioned

On March 28, 2021, JH Management (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the buyer) entered into a
share purchase agreement with Renfang Medical Holdings
Ltd. and Sinophi Healthcare Limited (as the sellers), the
shareholders of Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. and Sinophi
China Hospitals Limited (i.e. the target company). Pursuant
to such share purchase agreement, JH Management
conditionally agreed to acquire and the sellers conditionally
agreed to dispose of approximately 99.19% shareholding
interest in the target company at the consideration of
RMB882,767,635.96. As at the date of this report, the
target company is indirectly holding 80% equity interest in
Huaiyin Hospital, and the latter is a for-profit general
hospital located in Huai'an City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
with the scale of around 1,190 operating beds. Among the
sellers, Sinophi Healthcare Limited is an investment holding
company owned by a number of shareholders who are
natural persons, whilst Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. is an
investment holding company owned by NHPEA |V Health
Holding B.V., Sun Moral (HK) Limited and
Euromax Holdings Limited (together, the "Selling
Shareholders”). Among the Selling Shareholders, Sun Moral
International (HK) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a
listed company with shares listed on the mainboard of the

International

EEENWEDAN

% BIERBILEESIAETIERES - EfTK
# - AERBREEEK - W ABBmE -
BEERMESEER - it BRMEBEER
LB EREMEARHZEEERY - MR
IEEZBR (REFHDARN) KERBER (BE
REREXFMEDR) WNEEREREE - £
i i E HARR A E £2023F 128318 A #
ZHBBARNRAZFEBRERS - LRSS
ZHBHAARRIN2021F3A12HERD

I

M2021F3 0280 S TH#EB(ARAFZE
EMBAR RERER)BLCHBEIER
ERAFIRGEHERBERAR (ERER)
CHEEZRARRXAR ZKE KSinophi
China Hospitals Limited (B0 B 1Z8B3) 5132
—RNEERE - REZROBERS -
TEEERRUHREREME A BKRERE
HEBZERF9.19% MkHE  KEAARE
882,767,635.967TL - RAREHHE - BIERQ
RIFEREERERS0%IE H miE&EAE—
FURPEIHEELZTHENELRER
BT EFBURMEL B1,190/K - B Z—H
EHREEARARA—MEREERARILA
ZEEBAANBREHE ME—BEACHEE
TRABR AR A —HREZERERAR
I ENHPEA IV Health Holding B.V. * &£
2 (E %) B MR A AF) &Euromax Holdings
Limited#58 (# [ SRR ]) - EERBRE
B RABR (BB BRAAABE—REE
EFREMRARZEENE QR Euromax
Holdings Limited Rl LA A 2 E AR
RRMITEEZEFHA  MNHPEA IV Health
Holding B.V.A M EZIR + /15 2 FL5 A% #E &
FrgiErE4S — North Haven Private

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWET N

Stock Exchange, Euromax Holdings Limited is wholly-owned
by the controlling shareholder and executive director of such
listed company, while NHPEA IV Health Holding B.V. is
indirectly controlled by North Haven Private Equity Asia IV,
L.P., a fund managed by the private equity arm of Morgan
Stanley which is a registered investment fund with wide
investor base. The acquisition contemplated under such
share purchase agreement constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company. the
announcement of the Company dated March 28, 2021 for

Please refer to

further details of the abovementioned acquisition.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group had a total of 4,903
fulltime employees (December 31, 2019: 1,178 employees).
For FY2020, the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration
in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB685 million (FY2019: RMB355 million).
The
corresponding staff cost was mainly due to the acquisition
and/or consolidation of certain hospitals during the year.

increase in number of staff as well as the

The Group ensured that the
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group's remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

remuneration packages of

On June 28, 2020, CR Hospital Holdings, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the restructuring
agreement with Jing Mei Group which officially finalized the
shareholding structure and cooperation model of the joint
investment and development of the Jing Mei Hospital Group
by the contract parties. The arrangements are set out as
follows: (1) establishing a sponsorship joint venture: CR
Hospital Holdings and Jing Mei Group shall establish a
sponsorship joint venture, and the registered capital of
which shall then be subsequently increased by Jing Mei
Group by way of injecting its entire interest in the Jing Mei
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Hospital Group, and by CR Hospital Holdings in cash (with
the maximum capital contributions in the amount of not
more than RMB900 million from CR Hospital Holdings). The
sponsorship joint venture shall be owned as to 49% by CR
Hospital Holdings and 51% by Jing Mei Group; (2)
establishing a management joint venture: CR Hospital
Holdings and Jing Mei establish also a
registered capital
subsequently contributed by CR Hospital Holdings and Jing
Mei Group in cash. The management joint venture shall be
owned as to 49% by CR Hospital Holdings and 51% by
Jing Mei Group; and (3) management arrangements of the
Jing Mei Hospital Group: Jing Mei Group, the management

Group shall

management joint venture with its

joint venture and Jing Mei Hospital shall enter into a new
OT agreement on terms similar to the original 0T
agreement in order to replace the latter, and pursuant to
which the management joint venture shall provide hospital
management services to the Jing Mei Hospital Group and
receive management fee income accordingly. The
abovementioned original then be
terminated with retrospective effect from December 31,

2019, whilst the new OT agreement shall retrospectively

IOT agreement shall

become effective on January 1, 2020 and shall be effective
for the duration of the management joint venture. Entering
into the mentioned restructuring agreement aims at fully
exploring the respective advantages of Jing Mei Group and
the Group in jointly participating
restructuring of the Jing Mei Hospital Group, and further

in the reform and
introducing development funds, medical and management
resources to the Jing Mei Hospital Group, so as to improve
its management and operational mechanism. The
cooperation model under this restructuring agreement is a
further step compared with the existing IOT model, with
reform and cooperation being extended to asset level.
Please refer the announcement published by the Company

on June 28, 2020 for further details.

On December 30, 2020, CR Hospital
Consulting (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a joint-development of hospital agreement with
Shandong Yantai Zhifu Health Bureau and Yantai Zhifu
Hospital, pursuant to which the Group will provide operation
and management services to Yantai Zhifu Hospital and
accordingly receive services fee income for a cooperation
term of 20 years.

Management &
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management services, group purchasing
organisation (i.e. “"GPQO")
business from hospitals in Mainland China. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out

business and other derived

in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by the
Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 29 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2020 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Segment Results” under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
17 to 21 and in the paragraph headed “Financial Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 24 to 26 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on pages 26 and 28 of this
annual report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes the
stewardship. In this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection

importance of good environmental

work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
in all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2020 and as at the date of this Directors’ No
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management.

Report.

The Group has formulated the “Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ((EEWEZ 2 EE512])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ({EEZEEEYE 12§
J£)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "“Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” ({F#E AR EFBEIIRIZEREL)). The above
systems focus on the management of hazardous substances
(containing hazardous chemicals and medical
including storage location, container labelling, protection,

waste),

leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals conduct
supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and labelling
on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis results on
a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({1 Z A 4L H1
B &4 & JR)%)), the Group formulated the “Optimization
System of Resource Decision” ((ERAFRERFIE)), which
focuses on the management of resource decision-making
process and specifies the requirements on the quality,
reasonable allocation and use of newly procured resources.
The Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and safety
by using relevant information and makes further decision so
as to ensure the effective implementation of the above
policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({RR&EELEEEFE])), “Safety and
Protection Management Plan” ((Z2#EETE])) and
“Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” (& & : i
ZEE 5 28l)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” ((&iEZ2EETE])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group has
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({H &}
Z2E1#51El)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” (#8571 &=
f82)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
be covered in the Group’s annual
sustainability report, which will be published no later than
three months after the publication of this annual report, on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

measures will

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders including our Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business partners

and the community.

various

An account of the Group’s relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the "Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares” set out on pages 48 to 49 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to providing
all employees a safe and harassment-free working
environment with equal opportunities in relation to
employment, remuneration management, training and career
development. incorporated

Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.

This commitment is in our
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular
Company developments and obtain their feedbacks and

meetings and forums to brief employees on
suggestions.
As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider, we

patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to

consider

the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level of
service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical and
professional standards when dealing with suppliers and
contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout our GPO
business, the Group has implemented the Group Purchasing
Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of Conduct to
facilitate a common means whereby we can better
communicate with our business partners regarding their
compliance with local regulations governing labor, health and
safety, and the environment. In order to have a better and
close monitoring of supplier performance, our procurement
department conduct supplier performance review annually
targeting our major suppliers and contractors, and will
communicate with the suppliers that have unsatisfactory
rating for rectification or improvements.
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Results and Final Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income on pages 101 to 102 of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of 8.82 HK
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB7.4 cents) per Share
for FY2020 (FY2019: final dividend: 10 HK cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB9.0 cents)). The proposed final
dividend will be payable to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, June 11, 2021. Based on the number of Shares in
issue of the Company as of December 31, 2020, the total
amount of final dividends is approximately HK$114 million.
Subject to the approval by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on Thursday, June 3, 2021, it is
expected that the final dividend will be distributed on or
before Wednesday, June 23, 2021.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the articles of association of the
Company, pay dividend to the
Shareholders when the Group recorded net profit during the
period and payment of dividend would not affect its normal
operation. The Company intends to share its profits with
in the form of annual dividend and the
be used for the Group's

the Company will

Shareholders
remaining net profits will
development and operations.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and articles
of association of the Company.
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The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 105
and 106 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

dividends to

As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s share premium
amounted to RMB5,877,796,000 (as at December 31, 2019:
RMB5,992,888,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2020 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 260 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year ended
31, 2020 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

December

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2020.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 24.2% (2019: 44.0%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 13.2% (2019: 19.6%) of the total sales.
Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 19.5% (2019: 20.9%)
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 5.9% (2019:
8.1%) of the total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any direct or indirect interest in
the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The articles of association of the Company provides that
every Director of the Company should be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director, in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favor, or in which
he is acquitted.

The Company maintains a directors’ liability insurance policy
against potential legal liabilities and related expenses that
may be incurred by the Directors in the event of any
litigation.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2020
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management and Disclosure of
Information of Directors Pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 83 to
92 of this annual report. Save as disclosed, there are no
other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the service agreements/letters of appointment of
the Directors can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy is entitled to an annual
director’'s fee of HK$1,000,000, HK$500,000, RMB240,000
and HK$300,000, respectively.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into or
intends to enter into a service contract with any member of
our Group which is not terminable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

Remuneration of the Directors and Five
Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out 10 and 11
statements in this annual report.

in notes to the consolidated financial
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The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account of
the relevant Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload
and time commitment to the Group and the operating
results of the Group and comparable market statistics.

Independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Director’s Interests in Competing
Businesses

As of December 31, 2020, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had engaged in or owned any
interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2020, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Long Positions in Shares of the

Company

Name of Director

EEMA

Capacity/
Nature of interest

i/ fEmtE

Long position/
short position

TR KR

Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position
Anthony
HAETB EnEaA A
Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position
KiF EZEAA Sy}
Cheng Libing Beneficial owner Long position
DAV EREEA R
Ren Yuan Beneficial owner Long position
(Ea~ EREEA R
Fu Yanjun Beneficial owner Long position
R EZEAA R

Note: This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31,
1,500,000 Shares to Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony; 400,000 Shares to each
of Mr. Song Qing and Mr. Cheng Libing; 300,000 Shares to each of Ms.
Ren Yuan and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and a portion of which has been vested.

2018 (the corresponding number of Award Shares are:

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;

(b) were required, pursuant to section 352

or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

RAQRFARGHOER

Number of Approximate

ordinary shares percentage of

(Note) shareholding
TBERRMNEE
(ffFaE) FRBABES L
%
1,500,000 0.12
400,000 0.03
1,774,746 0.14
300,000 0.02
659,540 0.05
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible Participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at its sole
discretion and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or will contribute to our
Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).

3. Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (with the over-allotment option fully
exercised), which is also the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed as has been granted to (subject to certain
restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and accepted
by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee"”) and taken
effect upon the issuance of an exercise notice, if the
Company receives a copy of the offer document
(including the document for the acceptance of share
option) duly signed by the grantee (the "Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.
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Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.

Basis of determining the subscription
price

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board,
but in any event shall not be lower than the highest
of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the "Offer
Date”);

(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, no share
option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled
or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of
the Share Option Scheme is 2 years and 6 months.

7.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as a
means to
incentives for the key management personnel
Directors and senior management, employed experts and

recognise the contribution of and provide
including

core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the "Adoption Date"”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.

In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the
Board shall take into consideration matters, including but not
limited to the Selected Participant’s position, experience,
performance and contribution to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

years of service,
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The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make
further amendments to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme to the effect that the maximum number of the
Award Shares, which have been and to be awarded by the
Board throughout the duration of the scheme, to be revised
to 5% of the total
Company as at the date of the abovementioned resolution

number of issued Shares of the
and the maximum number of the Award Shares to each of
the Selected Participants to be revised to 1% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of the

abovementioned resolution.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. The Company shall
comply with the relevant Listing Rules when granting the
Award Shares.

Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up to
December 31, 2020, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

BEEENMR2018F8 A3 Bkt —FERT
W BEENET Bl 2 &K - K185 1R  EFER
BERETEIHAMR H A SREN IR D BB ERRERT
ARRRAREZTERREREHITRNBH
M5% BERSEESL2EER T RERH D
BERETABARGIREZTERZAERDE
BITIRDBEM1% -

ERGHIRIE L BB A E S
B o A D AIRME SRR S0 -
AR o

BARGhD ZEFEIMERM B H - B E£20206F
12A318 - BREROGRETE G LR
32,212,216 @R - HEXRE TEEIZ
HE AR FRBR o

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ETERS

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As of December 31, 2019, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%

or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Name of Shareholder

PR 2 7

Capacity/Nature of interest

S0/ fEmtE

Interest of a controlled
corporation
S EEER

China Resources Company
Limited
P EEFER AT

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Interest of a controlled

Group, Inc. corporation
=g SN et ] X LEER
L: Long position
Notes:
1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.

CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly
owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited.
CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which is
wholly owned by China Resources Company Limited; (2) 10,638,000 of
these shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is

wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in Carol Australia Holdings Pty Limited. Carol
Australia Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned subsidiary First State
Investment Managers (Asia) Limited) held the entire interest in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter directly held 128,601,000

Shares (representing 9.92% of the issued shares of the Company).

FERRREMALTRRADKAE
B IR 4Dz

#2019F 12 A31H * LA L (RBIEAR
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RS RARRIREE S KB &5 %336
BREGFEZECMRZERZR KR -
KEEREAEEEARRIEEITRAFLEY
A R o

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
BREAB ST
%

Number of
Shares held
FERMEE

474,319,516(L)" 36.58
128,601,000(L)? 9.92
[
B3
1. (1) EHP7%25 463,681,516/ M REMER (BE)F
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Securities

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2020 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions
Continuing Connected Transactions
CR PMM Framework Agreement

The Company and CR Holdings entered into the
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
supply framework agreement on November 7, 2019 (the
“CR PMM Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the CR
PMM Framework Agreement, CR Holdings may, through its
subsidiaries, supply PMM items to the Group and its
sponsored hospitals from time to time. The Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place purchase orders for PMM
items with CR Holdings or its subsidiaries from time to time
and CR Holdings or its subsidiaries may sell the products to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals at a price in
accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The details of
each purchase order, including price, payment terms and
delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the CR PMM
Framework Agreement. The annual caps for the purchase of
PMM items under the CR PMM Framework Agreement for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and the two
financial years ending December 31, 2022 are RMB1.00
billion, RMB1.14 billion and RMB1.40 billion, respectively.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the amount of
the purchase orders under the New CR PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by the Group was RMB417 million.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.

CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement and CR Trust
Strategic Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Bank entered into a strategic
(the “CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may place deposits with CR

cooperation agreement

Bank and use other financial services and products of CR
Bank, including (but not limited to) the provision of letters of
credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange and
discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and
foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals,
financial and cash management services, financial advisory
services and other financial services and products as agreed
by the parties.

The Company and CR Trust entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may use the services and
products provided by CR Trust, including (but not limited to)
cash management, asset management, custodian trust loan
services, assignment of receivables, advisory services in
relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and other
financial or trust services and products as agreed by the
parties.
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The annual caps under CR Bank Strategic Cooperation

Agreement & CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement for
the three financial years ending December 31, 2022 are set
out as follows:
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For the For the For the
year ended year ending year ending
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2021 2022
B E2020F BE2021F B E2022F
12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBEBT) (AREBEBT) (AREBEBT)
Maximum daily deposit ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ 400 400 400
amount placed with NEH RS
CR Bank (inclusive of ,A/i\%E(FjE
interest receivable) Mot JE R B )
Maximum daily principal BHEERERTR 400 400 400
amount and interest in ZREFTHET
relation to financial PATR 0 € Rt
products to be provided EmNEHEK
by CR Bank and CR mEEeER
Trust Motel F] & ()
Maximum service fees and  FEHRTT L EH 8 8 8
commissions for other Z50H5 T AR
financial products and HEE MR
services to be provided &= m M RBH
by CR Bank and CR maRB%ER
Trust ik

Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and
interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day,
without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

In 2020, the actual highest amount of the Group and the

Sponsored Hospitals' daily deposit balance (inclusive of
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest in
relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank
amounted to RMB331 million and RMB156 million,
respectively. In 2020, the service fees and commissions for
other financial products and services provided by CR Bank

were nil.
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In 2020, the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR Trust.
In 2020, the service fees and commissions for other
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Bank and CR are subsidiaries of CR Holdings,
therefore both of them are connected persons of the
Company.

CR Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Leasing entered into a cooperation
agreement on November 7, 2019 (the "“Finance Lease
Cooperation Agreement’), and pursuant to which the
Group may use general finance lease services (“Finance
Lease Services"”), factoring services and related consultancy
services (“Other Financial Services”) provided by CR
Leasing. The annual caps for certain services under the
Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement for the two financial
years ending December 31, 2022 are as follows:

For the

year ended
December 31,
2020

BE2020F
12A31H
(RMB' million)
(ARBBET)

The maximum aggregate MEHEERS
amount of the general Rm B
finance lease services

Maximum commission and/ & & & R %
or service fees in relation HENAe
to general finance lease &/ SR E
services

Maximum commission and/ ~ H b & B ART
or service fees for HENmAe
factoring services and %/ R%E

related consultancy
services
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For the For the

year ending year ending
December 31, December 31,
2021 2022
HZE2021F HZE2022F
12A31H 12A31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEHEL) (ARBEHEL)
200 200

13 13

28 28
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The commission and/or services fees to be paid by the
Company to CR Leasing in relation to the Finance Lease
Services and Other Financial Services to be provided under
the Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement should be
determined at arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market prices for
comparable services, after taking into account various
factors, such as finance costs and normal market rate. Such
commission and/or services fees shall not be less favourable
than those offered for other independent customers by CR

Leasing.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, (i) the aggregate
amount of Finance Lease Services of RMB8 million was
utilised by the Group; (i) the commission and/or service
fees in relation to Finance Lease Services were nil; and (iii)
the commission and/or service fees in relation to Other
Financial Services were nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Leasing, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is therefore
a connected person of the Company.

Supply Chain Cooperation Framework Agreement

On September 17, 2020, the Company and CR
Pharmaceutical (“together with its subsidiaries, the "“CR
Pharmaceutical Group"”) entered
framework agreement (the “Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement”) and pursuant to which the Group
shall Group Supply Chain
Management Services of medical supplies in relation to
establishment of regional platforms and streamlining of
supply chain management procedures in order to improve
the efficiency of supply chain management of medical
supplies of CR Pharmaceutical Group and reduce the
corresponding costs. The Group shall receive management
Group for the

into the cooperation

provide CR Pharmaceutical

service fees from CR Pharmaceutical
abovementioned services.
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The annual caps under the Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement for the financial year ended
December 31, 2020 and the two financial years ending
December 31, 2022 are RMB30 million, RMB50 million and
RMB70 million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the amount of
management service fee income under the Supply Chain
Cooperation Framework Agreement receivable by the Group
was nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Pharmaceutical, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

Annual review of continuing connected
transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor issued his unqualified
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 49
to b4 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56

of the Listing Rules.

has letter containing his
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2020:

(i)  these transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(il)  these transactions were entered into according to the
agreements governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in such note fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected
transactions of the Group are in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT <
EEEWE

BYERTESCEM LMFERER ST
WRNRE 202012831 BIEFE -

() ZBERBINAEERER—BELE
R

(il ZEXRFERLFREGRIIEAKE
NBERIBE =TT DS A T HRKR]

<t

(i) ZEXRZHEEGEEER 2 HHGTG
- BRFGRRBAFTEIE  WHER
ES

R ANFEREG A VB MAR M 46T TS
S B EL At B0 51 0 B PR R RO (R AR R B U7 32
SFERFEEB IR BN LHHRABTAT
BRENEERXFAFEBERS - AEEHEH
BRXHNBEWEIZHECFTALTRAE
THAZERHERTE -

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH



56

>

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

YAN HUA I0T AGREEMENT DISPUTE

On January 21, 2019, the Company received a letter from
Yan Hua Phoenix and
terminate the Yan Hua IOT Agreement with effect from
2019. On April 17, 2019,
submitted the civil claim statement against Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital in 10T
Agreement dispute to Beijing Second Intermediate People’s

Yan Hua Hospital to unilaterally

January 21, the Group has

relation to the Yan Hua

Court on the even date to seek the court’s ruling that the
unilateral termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan
Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on January 21, 2019
shall be void and that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement. On December 18, 2019, the Beijing
Second Intermediate People’s Court handed down the civil
judgment ([2019] Jing 02 Minchu No0.304) and the major
details are as follows: (1) the unilateral termination of Yan
Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital is declared to be void and that the parties shall
continue to perform its obligations under the Yan Hua IOT
Agreement; (2) the amount of RMB14,400,000, being the
damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, is to be
paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to CR Hospital Management &
(3)
Management & Consulting shall be dismissed; and (4) other
counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital

Consulting; other reliefs sought by CR Hospital

shall be dismissed. Pursuant to the laws of the PRC, the
Judgment is still not effective. Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital have filed appeal in January, 2020 to Beijing
Higher People’'s Court, the court was held on October 26,
2020 and the judgement is yet to be announced. The
Company will use its best endeavours and will take all
appropriate actions to protect the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders.

Please
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019 and April
17, 2019 for more details.

refer to the announcements published by the
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

In addition to certain continuing connected transactions
which has been disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” to this report, (1) on May 23, 2019, CR
Hospital Management & Consulting (a subsidiary of the
Company) as lessee and the Fengtai branch of China
Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (EHEMLR (IR)FHEREERAFEESI R
A]) (a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) in
relation to the lease of the 14th floor of China Resources
Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5, Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi
Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with a total leasable floor
area of 2,225.38 sg. m. for use as the Group’s office from
June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2024. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the rent for the period from June 1, 2019 to
May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90 (including value-added tax
calculated at 9% and excluding utility charges) per month,
and for the period from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2024, a
sum of RMB405,063.67 (including value-added tax calculated
at 9% and excluding utility charges and property
management fees) per month. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated May 23, 2019;
and (2) Unison Champ (a subsidiary of the Company) has
also entered into the subscription agreement with CMH
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Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. in relation to the Group's
investment to the CMH Fund on September 19, 2019.
Pursuant to which, the proposed capital commitment of the
Group shall amount to US$40 million, and the CMH Fund
intends to raise a total of US$1 billion. The CMH Fund's
primary investment objective is to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns by investing in companies that are active in
the healthcare sector and assisting their expansion globally.
Unison Champ shall appoint the General Partner as its
attorney to sign the limited partnership agreement on its
behalf. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated September 19, 2019. Save for the
aforementioned, no Controlling Shareholders or its subsidiary
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance, the provision of
services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to

whether for
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Management Contracts

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2020.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((EEZ:#E1))) of the Company in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal
point for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two
independent non-executive Directors,
Kwok Kong (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy. The Audit Committee, together with the
management of the Company, has reviewed the accounting
principles, accounting standards and methods adopted by
the Company, discussed the matters concerning risk
management and
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2020.

namely Mr. Kwong

internal control, auditing and financial
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((BEgzEHA))) of the Company in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management; (iii)
the performance-based
remuneration and ensure that no Directors or any of his

associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

and
reviewing and evaluating

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of one executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified as
potential Board members and selecting or making
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (ii) reviewing the structure, size
and diversity of the Board and the required skill mix as well
as making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to ensure the implementation of the Company’s
strategic goal; (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the
qualification of senior management nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer, reported to the Board for consideration
and adoption.

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted of
one executive Director, Mr.
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong.

Cheng Libing, and two
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
dealings by Directors in the
Company.

rules governing
listed securities of the

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that
all members of the Board complied with the Model Code
during the year ended December 31, 2020. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information of
the Company, they shall comply with the provision of the
Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has been
committed by such employees during the vyear
December 31, 2020.

ended

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, June 3,
2021, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 31, 2021 to Thursday, June 3,
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Friday, May 28, 2021.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, June 9, 2021 to Friday, June 11,
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
be registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of

shares will

shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, June 8,
2021.

Code of Corporate Governance Practices

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 68 to 87 of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’'s listed securities.

Sufficiency of the Public Float

Based on the information publicly available and to the best
of the Board's knowledge, information and belief, the
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.
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Events Subsequent to December 31, 2020

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)”
under the section headed
Analysis” on pages 26 to 28 of this annual report.

“Management Discussion and

Auditor

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on May
30, 2019, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the
auditor of the Company and Messrs. Ernst & Young was
appointed as the auditor of the Company. At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on May 28, 2020,
Messrs. Ernst & Young was reappointed as the auditor of
the Company.

The Company has appointed Messrs. Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Messrs. Ernst & Young will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible to stand
for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Ting Yuk Anthony
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 26, 2021
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s Fﬁiséxﬁd:

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company confirms that it has complied with all material
code provisions of CG Code during the vyear
December 31, 2020.

ended

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "“Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2020.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2020.
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Board of Directors

The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation, and
are committed to achieving the goal of
Shareholders’ value.

increasing

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive

Directors, and composition of Board are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another. There was no changes in composition of the Board
during the year ended December 31, 2020 and up to the
date of this report.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 83
to 92 of this annual report. The list of the Directors (by
category)
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

is also disclosed in all of the corporate
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2020, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the Listing
relating to the appointment of at
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least

During the year ended December 31,

Rules least three
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or
related financial management expertise.

accounting or

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
the non-

During the vyear ended December 31,

executive Directors

2020,
(including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees,

Directors have made various contributions to the effective

all the non-executive

development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
to protect Directors from possible legal action against them.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance.
December 31, 2020, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

For the year ended December 31, 2020, Chairman of the
Board is Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony while the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Cheng Libing. The
Company has complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should not be performed by the same individual.
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Under the leadership of the Chairman and the Vice
Chairman, the Board is responsible for the approval and
supervision of the Group's general development strategy,
the review and approval of the annual budget and business
plans, the consent of material investment projects related to
the Group’s business development, the
Group's performance and the supervision of the work of the
management, and ensures that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group, operates effectively and performs

review on the

the necessary duties, as well as discusses all the significant
and appropriate issues of the Group’s business in a timely
manner. All the Directors are entitled to propose the
inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board meetings
for appropriate discussion. The Chairman, and the Vice
Chairman, have appointed the secretary of the meeting to
draft the Board meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance of
the executive Directors and the secretary of the Board, the
Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided with
sufficient and information

reliable in a timely manner

required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

The Chief Executive Officer has delegated sufficient
authority for the operation and management of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and other
management members, who are

senior
in-charge of the daily
management of the Group in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board's resolutions unanimously, and
be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group's business, while
the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to the

Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Delegation by the Board

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure, the
Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures for
Board Meetings”. The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings"” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting is
composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
Deputy President, all being called together by the Chief
Executive Officer. As the approval organization for the
Company's daily operational management, the committee is
responsible for organizing and managing the Company’s
daily operations and accountable to the Board.

Board Meetings

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. Three other Board meetings were held during the
year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board has #Z=2020F12A31BItFEE2F EFE
convened and held five Board meetings. Attendance records D AT RITENEETCSH -EENES
of the Directors at the Board meetings are set out as @&@zxHFELESIIMOT

follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SELE/

Name of director BRIRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HMEBREE(EEFLR) 5/5
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA 6/6
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy ezt 5/5
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRIESE 5/5
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Yan TELRE 2/5
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) REEE(FIEER) 3/5
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B () 5/5
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TERT (EEHEE) 5/5
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NIEB L (F/4EH) 5/5
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EREANES

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all EREEFEEZBECNENSZI14BKE
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all 2 EEE UNErEREEHAKSEE -
Directors an opportunity to attend.
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For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete and
reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held. All
Directors may propose any business to be included in the
agenda of the Board or committee meetings and contact the
company secretary to ensure full compliance with all of the

Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend all
the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on the Group's business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance,
management as well as other significant issues. The Board
if appropriate,
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings
will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall

corporate governance and risk

may, authorize the Directors to seek

prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally, draft
minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the Directors
within reasonable time for their comments after such
meeting is held, and the final version will be open for
inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or their associates have a material interest

and this provision has always been complied with.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.
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Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his

resignation.

Each of the non-executive Directors was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has established a formal
procedure for formulating policies on
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

and transparent
remuneration of

Details of the remuneration of the senior management of
the Company, by band for the year ended December 31,
2020 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB'000)

6,001 to 7,000
5,001 to 6,000
4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

R (AR TIT)
6,001 27,000

5,001 26,000

4,001 25,000

3,001 24,000

2,001 %£3,000

T %£2,000
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RBEBAEMRRRFREE  WARZAS
HABSHTHEREIESR-

EFNTEFHERIVEEERNOREER
B HEEAREB=FRERE—R-

EERGREEE 2HMH

AEED AV EERAEBSAEREEY
ML EXNEBRBRAECEF - SES
HE2020F12A3MBIEFE ZHWMFBEH
RAFIRNEE M EHRER ZHIFE10-

HZE2020F12A3MBIEFEARASRE
BEZLHFNSEZ > MmFBEMNNT
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General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
("AGM"). Attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings are set out as follows:

Name of the Directors

BRRAXE

HZE2020F12A831MBIEFE > KA BE A
AEBIT-ABRERBEFR((RREEKX
) - BERREARS 2 HFERREESIT

Number of meetings
attended/convened
gRLE/

AFRIRE

AGM
BRBF
N

EGM
BR%F 5B
N

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) #TEBLE(ZEEHER) 171 nil/ &
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA A nil/ &
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemzt 7 nil/ &
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRPXAE n nil/4&
Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan TELRE 11 nil/ &
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBELE(FIEER) 0N nil/f&
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) BT (B E) 171 nil/ &
Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019)  ERBE K& (KR2019F 104 15 A BFT) 171 nil/#&
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TR (BEEHIEE) 171 nil/#&
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NEBL LT (F/4E) 17 nil/ &

The 2021 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Thursday, June 3, 2021. The notice of the annual
general meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

Continuous Professional Development for
Directors

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in the
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

KA E2021 ﬂﬁ%%ﬂikﬂﬂ%zom F6 A

30 (2 HIM) 817 - RIBFAG B SR
REMAAGN D R20EER A E T
R -

EEREASRER
REEMAESGH  SEFREE—H5%
B2 ABANE BREZATRAEEE
BRAE  ARFHEBINEREENET

NER AR ETHRUBETHERER LR
ARRRE R °

AEEGEHERESD2HBESEER
%X)E&E%ﬁT&—rZ%D;%&?SEHZ ° %%ﬁﬁiﬁ

2 RITEUE LME?BGETTH& @zizozo
¢12H31 HIEFEE - “é%%iﬁiﬁfﬂim

NAEZZAE - BE &Hﬁ%fZ%frf E1%53
?@Hﬂfﬁf%%lléﬁiiﬁiﬁﬂfﬁ%ﬁ%«EM*%&*%/H‘iﬁ
WELBEEXER -
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A summary of the training received by the Directors for the RiEE SR #H £2020F12 7
year ended December 31, 2020 according to the records 31HIFFE  EEMESEINZBEES0T
provided by the Directors is as follows:

Attending
seminar or
reading
materials
L EM e
Name of the Directors o BIEE R
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HEMBEE (EER) J
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A& J
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemzt |
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEAE {
Non-executive Director FHUTES
Mr. Wang Yan IEEAE |
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBELEE(FIEER) {
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B (B #) {
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) FRLT (BEHIHKE) |
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) IIE L (F/4EE) {
Nomination Committee REZES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee on EEEMW2013%F11 A4BKTIREZEE -
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one REFE—ZHITEE(KITKE)RMEE
Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Libing, and two independent M 3E#/TE 5 (A1 : TRIAE A (EF) K F
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix BIYt%&4) « KREDKE BB FRITES -
(Chairman) and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong. Majority of the

members are independent non-executive Directors.

ERBEERERLAT —ZT _TFwR
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The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
size and composition
knowledge and experience) of the

include reviewing the structure,
(including the skills,
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment

directorships, assessing the

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013, the
Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a
number of factors which the Nomination Committee would
consider in reviewing and assessing the Board composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, and educational

cultural background,

communication styles, skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,

knowledge and industry and regional experience and other

interpersonal

qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to the
Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform
Nomination Committee will seek independent professional
advice,

its duty. When necessary, the

at the Company's expense, to perform its

responsibilities.

REZEENAGLBEHNERERE -
HIZEEERRTESSRE  HELA
kB (BIEREE MR EER)  MEAR
BEEBRNALTETESSKE JERRE
SZEFQRERRABFRUGEA - FHEB
MIFMITERNBIUME BEREFTSREL
BREEENEZEITE LERIERA

AETR2013F9 A1 BARM D EEATE
FHESFEZTENGEX  EFQCHEMNE
BEEeREZTEMER ((EEE3 Rt
BE]  EREAREZESRR ETE
EEgHRNEREEENETREX -

REEFSZTRE  REZEERF N
AEEFESHEAKE  URESSHEMKE
MEFRELHERRES RERBSEM M
TEEEGENKER  @ZBEESZ T
EBRENMEZ T BENES - 81
BARRRIER - Fik - Bk XMEREBEE
ROBBIA ABRRDD  BEER BR
BRI  HEER  MBRITRALME
RBAREMEE  BES@ MEEEH
BB EEEARE Wt MAKE A S XK
BAMARZERBREARARIEL -

REZEEHENRIEFTESZTILEKR (8
FEERZBROKR)  BEEE W
EAMBNEHERETEETE L TTIEEE
MEEERHERE  WHEERIE - 24
ZESCDRREAERHERNBITHERE - 1
BERE REZEERSRKBIUEEERIN
EITERG - BRMEAREAE -
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Nomination
Committee has convened one meeting to
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
committees and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors. The particulars of the
attendance of the Nomination Committee are set forth as

review the

follows:

Name of the members of the Nomination Committee
Chairman: FE:

EEERRSE

B E2020F12A3MHILFE REZES
EARIAEZEURTEESEREZEGT 2R
B RERERKEURBY ERITES Y
B EERTEENARFEAFATEE
BEACZEARITREZESTEREEST RBEZ
BeHFEHBHINOT

Number of
meetings
attended/

convened
eRHE/

A IR ER

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRIESE 171
Members: RE :

Mr. Cheng Libing B 11
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA A

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect of
remuneration structure for all
management and making recommendations to the Board for
its consideration.

Directors and senior

FHNEES
EE@MN2013F 11 A4BKIFNEE S -
REE—2RITES (FERL) KMEBL
JFMITESE (A B2l (FFE) RER
BAEE) e KEAEDKEABYIIERNITES -

FHEZE e At BN ABERE -
HIZZIERRSANIEEREBESTNR
SREEABHFHRBORK  IAEFS
REHEBZRHEEEZE -
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ended December 31, 2020, the
Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior

management and service contracts of newly appointed

During the vyear

Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the

Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

HE2020F12A31HILEE FMEES
ERAM2AEE  URF2RBESRAAE
BABNTHHRERSFZEESORE S
Al FMEZESLEBFBHINOT -

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SHLE/

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee #HEZEE @ B 1% BHEKE
Chairman: FE:
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Wzt 2/2
Members: HE:
Ms. Ren Yuan EEREZL 2/2
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEE 2/2

Audit Committee

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the Audit
Committee currently consisted of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman); and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy. Majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board considered
that the members of the Audit Committee possess
sufficient professional knowledge and experience of
accounting and financial management for the performance of
their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to the
CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning on
January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to

EREE®
BEER2013F 11 A4 U ERELZEE -
BEE—ZIFPTES(FELE) KRER
NIHERITEE A BEY LA (EF) KH
SHLZ L) REOKEEFRBBULIENITE
E-EFEERR BERZESKEAEERS
S RMBEBEEMBRES  BABTT
BERBRE -

BEZZEENBE RSN AR EESE -
20161 A1 BB TR AR E
ERTANERTME - A&EBEE2MX20165F1H
1I8ERMEIEFTIBERZESHESEE - &
BEEERTAEHERRERERAIPEEE—
MOETEs - EX2ETREEAEME
= SNEEAZ ERD R RSP AT AN (a0 SR A BP B
B cEEBEVBEMEMBE AR
EBRANIERE  INPMABEFTRESS
THETHNZSHMV BN EESTE
WEBRENEZZEBBER  RAEEPBRSE
I R E B K P ES 12 5 E A AR R 155 B
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time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group's annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and

compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group’'s risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control function and
procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:

EEERRSE

ExeRUMmN  BEEBRRER  BHAS
B BEREABRREERRETEST S
EMEMBEMEE-

HZE2020F12A31MBLFE BZELEQ
BRI ERUBTEBREYENAEE
FERPHES BEEBRIS  BRERE
REF BEEBEASERBREERAI
EEHE  AEBAPEEBEREF 2K
WMz RmEANRBEIEZEEN - BZEEE
HEFBEERIET

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SELE/

Name of the members of the Audit Committee 12 BRERE
Chairman: FE:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A 3/3
Members: RE :
Mr. Wang Yan TERE 1/3
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy fizherng iR 3/3

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit is RMB3.77 million, including the annual audit
service fee payable to Ernst & Young amounted to
RMB3.17 million. The total fee paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Group in respect of non-audit service (in
respect of review interim period financial statements) is
RMBO0.6 million.

IBRBEANZERNNE

HE2020F12A31B IEFE - LEZ LI
BEZRBE N AR EBINEZEEN
ERHREAANRE37IE L HPBERN
CKEFMEFMNFEEZREEARKE
31787 - BE X,/ FE A & B JMNIE 4% S AD
MIEBZRE (AT HMBENITIE)EEZ
BRRBEARARMEGOSTT °
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of the external auditor. Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to the
approval by the Board and the general meetings of the

Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
in the
independent auditor’'s report from pages 93 to 100 of this
annual report.

financial statements of the Group is set out

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and
cash flow during that year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could prepare
statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

financial statements in accordance with

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board, as
supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, has
performed an annual the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

review on

SRAMIIMNERBEINER T B
AEFSFHERBRZ  %FZT -
REAAREZTERRRNRARRKR
HETAEE -
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control systems in different aspects of the Group such as
financial, operation, compliance and risk management, and
has also assessed the accounting and financial reporting
functions of the Group, estimated the resources and
budgets for training programmes and appraised the staff
qualifications and experience. In respect of

continuing connected the Group has

members’
transactions,
implemented a series of general
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of

management policies

internal control policies, including financial control system,
legal operations and
compliance management system, risk management and

anti-fraud and monitoring system,

assessment policies and internal audit rules.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems are
effective and adequate.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the
risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management, the
audit department conducts an investigation on

internal corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2020,

internal
the internal audit department did not discover any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation
against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of the
Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general
officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential

guide to the Company's Directors,

information, monitoring information

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are

strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact of any
unexpected significant event that may impact the price of
the Shares or their trading volume and decides whether the
relevant information is considered as inside information and
needs to be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors and the company secretary are also
responsible for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be
delegated by the Board from time to time.

issued by the Company under powers

Company Secretary

Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands, all
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general

resolutions tabled at the general

meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are primary forums for
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

communication

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

right of voting at general

requisition.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a

proceed to convene such meeting,

result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Investor Relations

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company's website at www.crmedical.nk. The Company also
replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any. The
general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

putting forward any enquiries

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District
Beijing, China

Email: ir@crmedical.hk

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 65, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman. Mr. Wu is a leader in the healthcare industry
and has extensive management experience in medical
system. Mr. Wu joined the board of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority in 1999 and was formerly its chairman from 2004
to 2013. He has so far been the longest-serving chairman of
the Hospital Authority. He has led the team of the Hospital
Authority to manage all public hospitals and public clinics in
Hong Kong and implemented the public health policy of the
Hong Kong SAR Government. He has also actively promoted
a number of public and private medical co-operation projects
during his tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor
to the State Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine
of the People’s Republic of China, a member of the Chinese
Medicine Reform and Development Advisory Committee. He
was a member of the State Council’'s Medical
Leadership Advisory Committee and an advisor to the Public
Policy Advisory Committee of the National Health and
Family Planning Commission. Other important public
positions that Mr. Wu has served include member of the
12th and 13th Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference National Committee, and a

Reform

member of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Task Force on
Land Supply of the Hong Kong SAR, and has been awarded
JP and GBS by the government of Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wu
also served as the chairman of the Chamber Council of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from 2010 to
2012, and is currently a member of
committee. Mr. Wu was a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY")
from 1985 to 2015, and served as chairman of the EY's Far
East Region from 2000 to 2005. He is currently the chief
advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The China
Oxford Scholarship Fund, an honorary professor of the
Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital, and an
honorary fellow of the Hong Kong College of Community
Medicine. Mr. Wu also has directorships in certain listed
companies of the Main Board of the Stock Exchange: he is
an independent non-executive director of Power Assets
Holdings Limited (stock code: 006), Guangdong Investment
Limited (stock code: 270), China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 966), Cstone Pharmaceuticals

its consultation
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(stock code: 2616) and Venus Mecttech (Hangzhou) Inc.
(stock code: 2500). He also joined Ocumension Therapeutics
(which has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in the second half of 2020, stock code: 1477) as
the independent non-executive director in 2020. He was an
executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited
444).
executive director of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(stock code: 1288) from 2009 to 2015. He was also a
director of the Fidelity Funds from 2011 to 2014. Mr. Wu is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

(stock code: He was also an independent non-

Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and the honorary chairman of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (Australia)
Hong Kong Branch.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 73, is an independent non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on March 23, 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of Pok Oi Hospital,
non-profit hospital in Yuen Long District, Hong Kong. As the
chief executive officer, Mr.
governance and management support to the board of
directors for development, management and supervision of

a well-known

Kwong provided corporate

these units for the past 10 years, He joined Pok Oi Hospital

as an internal audit manager in 2003. Mr.
Director of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association

Kwong is a

Company Limited, a non-profit organization supporting the
government to promote public healthcare messages to
people in the district. Before joining Pok Oi Hospital, Mr.
Kwong served as the principal of the Audit
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Mr. in the Audit
Commission of the Government of Hong Kong since 1980.
Mr. Kwong has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1982.

auditor

Administrative Region. Kwong served
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Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 39, joined the Group in
August 2015 as an independent non- executive Director and
also a member of the Remuneration Committee, and has
been redesignated as chairman of the Nomination
Committee on March 23, 2018.

He is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited ("CTFE") with responsibilities in making
investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and
a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also an executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code:
722; CTFE is a substantial shareholder of this company, and
the Company also indirectly owns 11.84% of this company
as at the date of this annual report). He has over 15 years
of experience in law and finance. He was an associate with
the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in
February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an
analyst in the investment banking department until January
2009. He then joined the investment banking department of
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and last held the
position of director in the Corporate Advisory Group, where
he worked from January 2009 to August 2014.

Mr.
School
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is

Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London

of Economics and Political Sciences and a

a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 2013. Mr. Lee is also a
Vice Chairman of the China Committee, the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce.
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Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy, aged 71, has been appointed as
an
2018. Ms. Chiu has years of banking experience in Canada
and the Asia Pacific Region. Ms. Chiu was a senior vice

independent non-executive Director from March 23,

president at the Republic National Bank of New York and
was responsible for the management and investment of
third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu has been an associate
and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers since July
1975 and August 1976 respectively. Ms. Chiu was appointed
as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong government in
July 1992 and as a Cavaliere by the ltalian Government in
1998. Ms. Chiu
Investments Group Limited and is currently an independent

December is the chairman of Prime
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8200) and CPM Group Limited (stock code:
1932), whose shares are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
She was also an independent non-executive director of
National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236)
from 1999 to 2019. Ms. Chiu is licenced to carry out asset
management business under Type 9 regulated activities
under the SFO.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 49, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director from November 25, 2016 and a member
of the Audit Committee from December 28, 2016. He
joined China Resources National Corporation in August
1994. From February 2016, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as the general manager of internal audit department of CR
Holdings. Since August 2014, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as the non-executive director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313), China Resources Gas
Group Limited (stock code: 1193), China Resources Land
Limited (stock code: 1109) and China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 836). From August
2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang was a non-executive director
of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (stock
code: 291). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in
economics from the Finance and Accounting Department,
Capital University of Economics and Business and obtained
a master's degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. Mr. Wang is a qualified PRC
Certified Accountant.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing, aged 55, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice chairman. Mr. Song
holds a bachelor's degree in Chinese medicine from Anhui
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC,
and obtained his chief pharmacist title from the general
logistics department of the People’s Liberation Army in April
1999. Mr. Song has extensive experiences in corporate
management, and has over 30 years of experience and
sophisticated background in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Song
Healthcare Group Limited (which is principally engaged in
investments in healthcare sector and operation and
management of medical institutes) and also takes the role
as the Company’s vice chairman lead the
healthcare segment of China Resources. The Company
believes that with Mr. Song’'s extensive experience in
corporate management and mergers and acquisitions, and
his deep understanding of the healthcare industry, he will
lead the Group to promote business development, actively
participate reform of state-owned enterprises
hospitals, accelerate the scale expansion plan of the
Company, further leverage advantages of China Resources
Group and further synergize the collaboration between the
Company and China Resources Healthcare Group. Mr. Song
was the director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Limited (which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 3320) from May 2016 to August
2018, and also its president from June 2017 to August
2018. Mr. Song was the director of China Resources Sanjiu
Medical & Pharmaceutical Co Ltd (which is listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; stock code: 000999). He also
served as an inspection pharmacist of quality inspection
department, a pharmacist in charge and the director of
production department,
management department and an assistant to president of
Shenzhen South Pharmaceutical Factory. Mr. Song served as
an assistant general manager, the director of technology
center, the director of medical & pharmaceutical department
of Sanjiu Enterprise.

is currently the chairman of China Resources

in order to

in the

the director of the enterprise
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Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 56, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2010 and responsible for daily
operations of the Group. He has been appointed as an

is primarily

executive Director and the vice Chairman in February 2016.
He has also been redesignated as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since August 2018. Mr. Cheng
served as the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t R
HEBREBHMERAR) from 2006 to 2008 and the
deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren Intech Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing Intech Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd. (Gt REEREIEL AR A F]) and Intech
Medical Chain (3% B &E#H#EME) from 2008 to 2010. From
1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served various positions at
Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1b 7 F fx B8 &5 5%
BAMRAF]), including assistant to the general manager. Mr.
Cheng also served in various positions such as an attending
doctor at Dongzhimen Hospital Affiliated to Beijing
University of Chinese Medicine (1t & A &2 %5 X 2 f(f & 5 & P9
E&PBt) from 1988 to 1998. Mr. Cheng is currently the
chairman of Beijing Jiangong Hospital Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Run Neng Medical Management Co., Ltd., the
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Ltd.
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Investment (China) Co., Ltd., and he also director of certain
other subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Cheng received a

Management Consulting Co., and he is also the

bachelor's degree in Clinical Traditional Chinese Medicine
from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (b R A E %K
E) in Beijing in July 1988.
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Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 47, joined the Group in October 2017
as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. Ms.
Ren worked as the deputy manager
department of China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings)
Limited (ZEEMEF (ZER) BRAR]) from June 2002 to
December 2006. From February 2004 to February 2010, Ms.
Ren served as the finance director of Wuxi CR Micro-
Assembly Tech., Ltd. (5 ELZEEHF AR AF]). Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Ren worked as the consultancy
and deputy general of the
information management department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (%38 (%£&) BFR A 7)) since March 2010.
Ms. Ren obtained her master’'s degree in accounting from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong (B X KEZ) in
December 2007. Ms. Ren obtained the qualifications of
China Certified Public Accountant (FEzEf&5TA0) and
China Certified Public Valuer (7 B & EFHEAD) in
December 1998 and September 1999 respectively.

of the finance

general director director

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 41,
executive Director on October 12, 2017. Ms. Fu joined the
Group in December 2014 and has been appointed as the

has been appointed as an

deputy general manager of the Company since December
2016. She is currently the chairman of the board of Beijing
Wanrong Yikang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (1t &8
EFEEZARAA) and Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical
Equipment Company Limited (It REEEHEER=MAR QD
A]), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and the chairman of the youth committee of the Group. Ms.
Fu previously served as the managing director of strategic
investment department of the Company. Ms. Fu has been
appointed as a supervisor of Beijing Jingkelong Company
Limited (stock code: 814) since May 2017. Ms. Fu also
worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming from September 2002
to October 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.
from October 2010 to December 2014. Ms. Fu obtained a
bachelor's degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China (Bl AR AZ) in July 2002 and obtained the
qualification of China Certified Public Accountant (5T fff}
& 5HAf) in May 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Zechang, aged 58, is the Executive President of the
Company. Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Xu
served as an executive Director of the Company from
September 2013 to November 2016 and from December
2016 to October 2017. He also served as the executive
dean of Yan Hua Hospital (1t #{EEFT) from May 2007 to
December 2010 and the vice dean of Beijing Jian Gong
Hospital Co., Ltd. (bR = ERAR A A from May 2005
to May 2007. Mr. Xu has experience as an attending doctor,
doctor, vice director

vice director of the cardiology

department and an acting director of the cardiology
department at the General Hospital of China PLA Beijing
Military Region (FEIARBNEIL R F R 42EP), a Grade I
general hospital, from 1991 to 2003, and a resident doctor
at the General Hospital of the People’'s Liberation Army of
China (FEI AR MEH L), the largest Grade Il general
hospital affiliated to the People’s Liberation Army of China,

from 1984 to 1991.

Mr. Xu attended the Military Medical School of People's
Liberation Army of China (FBIARMBMEEFEEEBER) in
Beijing in July 2006 and July 1991 respectively to study
medicine. He obtained his bachelor's degree in military
surgeon from Southern Medical University (FJ5 2Rl AE2)
(formerly known as First Military Medical University of
People’s Liberation Army of China (FEIARMEMEE —F 2
KE) in Guangzhou in July 1984.
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Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 50, is the vice president of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as the vice president of
the Company in December 2018. From September 2016 to
2018, Mr.
chairman of China Resources Wugang Medical Management
Company Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu
was the director of technology management department and

November Wu served as the director and

technology innovation department of Wugang Group, steel
smelting factory’s deputy general manager and the general
manager of innovation and innovation department, general
manager of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, chairman
of Wugang CR Gas*, general manager of Wuhan Yangtze
River Water*, assistant to general manager of China Baowu
Wugang Group* from September 2001 to November 2018.
He also served as deputy secretary general of China lron
and Steel Industry Association. He was the independent
director of Kingray New Materials Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600390). Mr. Wu was granted the title of senior
engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province and obtained his doctor’s
degree from Wuhan University of Technology in December

2009 and June 2012, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Hang, aged 53, is the assistant president of the
Company. He joined the Company in August 2012 and was
appointed as the assistant president of the Company in
October 2018. Mr. Zhou served various positions in the
hospitals or companies affiliated to the Company, such as
the general manger of Jian Gong Hospital,
Mentougou Hospital and general manager of Central and

dean of

Southern China Department of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhou was the assistant manager of
general manager office of China International Cooperation
Company For Agriculture, Livestock and Fishery and deputy
director of logistics department of Beijing New Oriental
School. Mr.
Finance and Economics, majoring in audit.

Zhou graduated from Tianjin University of
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERERAER

Mr. Du Lin, aged 41, is the chief general counsel and board
secretary of the Company. Mr. Du Lin joined the Company
in March 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Du was
the legal counsel on PRC law, senior legal counsel and chief
legal counsel of legal department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. from October 2008 to March 2018. Mr.
Du graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law with a doctor's degree in Law in 2008. He also
graduated from University of Leicester in the United
Kingdom with a master's degree in law in 2005 and
graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences
(currently known as West China Faculty of Medical
Sciences, Sichuan University) with a bachelor's degree in
medicine in 2002.

HMEE 415 ARBEEEERRES
TWE - HEMEER2018F3IAMALRR
Bl o MMARRDRR + HEAEEHK2008F 10 A
F2018F3AMMAEER (KE) BRAANAE
EBRHPBEEER  afEARER - BR
EARBERER o AR 2008F RN
BUAKRE » EERBIFE LN R2005F 2%
REBHRAT RS BASBBELEM IR
2002F ERERETBRARZ (GRBIMJIIKE
EREAR)  BESEB LB -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT A

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 101 to 259, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

loss, the

ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B R BETHRE

BERBRERERAFTARR

(RAEHETMHE T HRAA])
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
including in

responsibilities described in the

financial statements section of our report,
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RENER

ZPERETESHMAGRMO(EEE
APERDETTER - RMEXSFEA AR
B EBEARARE [ KOG F it 45 2 5
HEXAEMNEEIBOPIEE—TE - 1R
BEBGAMASRMH(EREAER
TFRPDUATERITA]) - REPBLR ER
CWERITTRIFNEMERERAME -
BFIEE - RPMEGSHNEBEETRE R
BEHASRMNESFT RIBHER -

BRRETEE

RRETFEEREAMNERHE - RBE
HAHGEMBRRNBEARSEEZNSE
He GLEHREEHGRAMBHRRBRET
BAUFABRNE R METRERN - 3,
THELEREHEFNER - BAY T
F— FIRAERE R0 FE S A b A 1tk

=TT
= H R

BPCREIT T ANRE [ EHEGLFiT 7B
HABEREXAENELIBIBANEE - B
HmEFELARETFHEMABNET  HE
- RPINET TERRRITREYFEN
REMBmREKNHERRARR M RNE
AR - RPIMITEAEFNER - BHEE
HTIAEREAZTEMATNER - BEE
MEBRBERERBFTERRETER -
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEHEESPRNAEHHN

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BERABRAEHFHEREEZHETFEG
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives as at 31 December 2020 were
RMB1,471,868,000 and RMB1,252,429,000,
respectively. The impairment tests performed by
management regarding the cash-generating units
("CGUs") to which the above assets were allocated
involved significant judgement for the determination
of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
MR2020F12 A EEENAERAERFH I ELE
ENRAARK1,471,868,000t K AR
1,252,429,0007T - EBEM DM EENEEZ R E
FE(REEEBM]DETHRENRAD KREE
MEeEEBMAAYE S EEL S K FE -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are
notes 2.4, 3, 17 and
financial statements.
ESNRENR S ROEE BT NER BN MG
W ERARESFE SRR MEARBERRNGES
MR ERNE2.4 -3 17K18°

included in
18 to the consolidated

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives included:

BB ERABRAERAFR BV EE 2 BER
HFTEITIR P 815 -

o Evaluating the independent valuers’
competence, objectivity and qualifications;

o EBUMEMZBER) FEUEREE:

o Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the discount rate applied underpinning
the discounted cash flow models by
performing re-calculations based on market
data and certain company specific parameters,
as well as evaluating the reasonableness of
parameters applied by the independent
valuers;

e ERAMEEERR  BREMBEELE TR
T2 BTENEE  UFHHRESRER
RETAMARE - WA BB (GEMTAZ28H
B

° Evaluating the reasonableness of other key
assumptions, such as growth rate and inputs
included in the financial forecast, by
comparing to historical performance and
industry data;

o  HIBERBRITHEEE - U EM BTN A
Hith F 2RBOINBREARBAENSIRNL

o Performing sensitivity analysis and evaluating
the adequacy of disclosures of impairment

assessment.
« EORBESTARHEAEHEZ RENTE
p o

EMBRERERAT —T-TFH
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Key audit matter

RRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEREESFRNMEHN

Accounting for business combinations
EBEOHE T IEE

As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed several business
combinations of hospitals during the year. As at the
respective dates of business combinations, the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired amounted to approximately
RMB939,576,000, goodwill of approximately
RMB8,257,000 and gain on bargain purchase of
approximately RMB9,428,000 were recognised
arising from the business combinations. The Group
engaged certain independent professionally qualified
valuers to perform the purchase price allocations on
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the business
combinations.

IR E M B RRM 422 KE - FA BEEETK
ZHEBEREBEH NEXKAHBEH  FMKRBAHE

R EEFENANEERTENAREI39,576,0007T *
EENARES 257,000t MEBWRBW RO ARE
9,428,0007t - TAXBKEHMER - ESBEDZE
ETBYBENASERMLERM  RBREKSHFFRATK
B RANEERTEAENBEN AR BEETEE
BIgDH -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in (i) the
assessment of whether the Group has obtained
control over the hospitals and whether the Group
has the practical ability to direct the hospitals’
relevant activities unilaterally; (i) the identification of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and (iii) the
determination of the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

AR EGTEE  RERS ke EAEEEY K
TRIEHEAHE R & () FHE EEERTRE
BEmiEtlE ket NE FHESBRAMEEMN
BB (i) FIEE E R AEBER R - Kii)
EEFKEBEARNEERMEAEEBENAREE -

The accounting policies and related disclosures of
the business combinations are included in notes
2.4, 3 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EBEHNSHBR RHER BN G E M HRER W
2.4 3K42-°

Our procedures in relation the accounting for
business combinations included:

B EB SN ST REMATREFEHE

o Examining the terms of the relevant sale and
purchase agreements, service contracts and
other related documents to assess
management’s judgement that the Group
obtained controls over the hospitals;

e FERHEMEERNZ RBERNKEMBREXAN

R ARHEEREY SSEBEEGEBE g
T VE B9 #I 1R
o Involving our internal valuation specialists to

evaluate the valuation methodologies adopted
and the assumptions used to determine the
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed,;

e EBABEERR  FTEAEKANMGERENRE
ERMRBAIERIEEMTEAEEBEN AR BEMN
AR RER

° Evaluating the independence, objectivity and
competence of the external valuers engaged
by management; and

e HEEEREZEMINBMEEMNBIIE  TEM
KisEeE &

o Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combinations.

e FHERERBAMFLNBEERESRD °
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the

information.

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
responsibility read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit

statements, our is to

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

BB S

THHRFERSRAEMER

BERRESHFHEMEEAR - HMEEE
RHERNEFEREANGEES - EFEEFE
R KR P Z BB R E -

BB GEAYBRERNBRL NREEME
B BT HZEFEMMESBEREMENX

HEERE M o
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BRBEERRSE o
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

risk of not detecting a material

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

té%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ%&%ﬁ%
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IR AR B A M MK LA E KA
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AR AT AR EE K ©
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS A
GEBRBEBRR

Year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020F12 A31HILFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 7E AREETIT AREFIT
REVENUE Wz 5 2,750,650 2,115,320
Cost of sales 3H & KA (2,114,143) (1,353,029)
Gross profit E 7 636,507 762,291
Other income EMiA 6 104,310 75,270
Other gains and losses, net HEfb s & ESEFRE 7 28,958 (26,562)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHE R (14,585) (16,135)
Administrative expenses 1TIHRE A (323,380) (237,434)
Finance costs 9% E A 9 (17,391) (16,942)
Impairment losses on financial TREERBERSE
assets, net F R (19,937) (1,577)
Impairment loss on an other EtEEEEREBERBE
intangible asset (3,588) =
Other expenses HEMER (7,677) (2,258)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(GF)E R &S
A joint venture =1 =X/ 1,072 4,502
Associates RN 33,896 144
PROFIT BEFORE TAX IR E 8 418,185 541,299
Income tax expense Fris i & A 12 (97,864) (140,665)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 320,321 400,634
Attributable to: FEfL -
Owners of the parent ISE/NEIEF=WN 310,131 390,865
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE 2= 10,190 9,769
320,321 400,634
EARNINGS PER SHARE ISYNCIESEY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEARGER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF el
THE PARENT 14
Basic (RMB yuan) ER(ARYT) 0.25 0.31
Diluted (RMB yuan) #E (AR T) 0.25 0.31

|l
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A
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A CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEBERK

Year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12 318 IEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBFT ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE A E 320,321 400,634
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hh 2 H B 18
Other comprehensive loss that will REEHABS T2 ER
not be reclassified to profit or loss DEEERNEMW
in subsequent periods: FHEIE
Remeasurement losses on defined FEBAMFTBIME T
benefit plan &8 35 (4,194) (1,658)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FETHEBALRE

FOR THE YEAR 316,127 398,976

Attributable to: JEfL -
Owners of the parent ISENEIE PN 305,890 389,539
Non-controlling interests eI 10,237 9,437
316,127 398,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A
e B RS AR O R &

31 December 2020 72020412 A31H

2020
20204
Notes RMB'000
B 7E ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WEREE 15 805,149 181,375
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 16(a) 240,483 156,050
Goodwill EES 17 1,471,868 1,463,611
Other intangible assets HEmEEEE 18 1,345,623 2,035,762
Investment in a joint venture R—EE&aRRIZEE 19 514,100 513,028
Investments in associates REERA 2" E 20 41,397 151
Receivables from invest-operate- REKE — &8
transfer (“IOT") hospitals — B ([10T)) Bkt
2 FEWRIE 21 77,214 80,979
Loan to a sponsored hospital ) — FiE] 2 o A B8 e 42 it
BB 3 22 51,197 55,062
Financial assets at fair value URARrhEBEFTEEHE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") et AR (AT AR
BETEEHESHH
AE=@]BE/mEE 23 92,718 113,485
Other financial assets at E M iR 8 SH K AN ET =AY

amortised cost EREE 24 100,095 —
Deferred tax assets REFIIAE E 36 188 —
Other non-current assets EMIERDEE 25 76,269 76,269

Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 4,816,301 4,675,772
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Inventories FE 26 142,035 62,121
Trade and bills receivables B W E F kI8 K eI
=g 27 618,103 618,698
Contract assets EHEE 28 19,840 12,120
Prepayments, deposits and other ENFIE - REEK

receivables H {th & W 5018 29 372,395 219,783
Due from related parties JE Wt BA Bsk 75 SR IR 46 5,472 9,384
Financial assets at FVTPL UArEEFTEEH

HE ABEH
EREE 23 105,296 244,769
Other financial assets at E M iR 3 SH K AN T =AY

amortised cost EREE 24 164,927 25,114
Pledged deposits EHEBER 30 17,454 —
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 30 2,701,370 2,006,220

Total current assets MEEERLE 4,146,892 3,198,209
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBBE
Trade and bills payables B 5 3RIE K& FE AT
& 31 564,125 241,303
Other payables and accruals H b fE 5 3R R AT
£H 32 577,102 252,120
Due to related parties & 1~ BA B 5 3R IR 46 97,751 4,843
Payables to hospitals sponsored R AEER 2

by the Group (the “Sponsored Befr ([ Ry AEEERL )

Hospitals”) IR 33 217,717 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T BIRITE K 34 684,301 578,337
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(b) 19,398 5,286
Tax payable e & 46,792 46,795

Total current liabilities MEEFEEE 2,207,186 1,384,255
EHBEZERERAT —ZT_ZF®H
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRIBRE

31 December 2020 722020412 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETIT ARETIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 1,939,706 1,813,954
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERREEE
LIABILITIES 6,756,007 6,489,726
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 16(b) 46,775 13,597
Retirement benefit obligations RIREFEE 35 47,323 18,120
Deferred tax liabilities R TBE B 36 317,615 317,834
Provision B 37 3,840 —
Total non-current liabilities EmEaEERE 415,553 349,551
Net assets BEFE 6,340,454 6,140,175
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREREBEEA
of the parent b=
Share capital &N 38 267 267
Reserves G 40 6,105,189 5,903,433

6,105,456 5,903,700

Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M = 234,998 236,475
Total equity 1A RS 6,340,454 6,140,175
Cheng Libing Ren Yuan
oV = &=
Director Director
EFE 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS A

me

BEREB®MR

Year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020F12 A31HILFE

Notes

B =

2020
20204

RMB'000
ARBTIT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELZEHNIR S
ACTIVITIES ViD=
Profit before tax S IEANE 418,185 541,299
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs B 7% & A 9 17,391 16,942
Share of profits and losses of i e ETR= N/ 54
a joint venture and associates B & A RIEY FE K&
B8 (34,968) (4,646)
Interest and investment income B K& E WA 6 (79,930) (64,984)
Dividend income on a financial WAanfBEFTEAE
asset at FVTPL ST ABEN T
A& E R RS WA 6 (2,618) (525)
Depreciation of property, plant and e &
equipment wE 8 86,572 38,983
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 8 18,913 5,911
Amortisation of intangible assets A 8 7,897 18,750
Covid-19-related rent concessions HEARENFER
from a lessor SHEMESER 8 (1,791) —
Gain on bargain purchase o (5 I W 7 (9,428) —
Gain on lease termination ﬁﬁ‘f\%&tﬂﬁl 7 (341) —
Gain on lease modification f EEE lam 7 (15) —
Fair value losses on financial Qfﬁ BETEEHR
assets at FVTPL FFABZEMNE
Eﬁiﬁ?@ﬁ EE
B8 7 25,140 13,491
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N =R 7 (44,314) 12,158
Loss on disposal of items of BEVE WEK
property, plant and equipment, RIEIEHE BEFE
net 7 = 795
Loss on liquidation of an associate —EBEARIEED
B a8 7 = 118
Equity-settled share-based payment RREREENRMD
expense KAXZ 39 8,721 13,083
Impairment losses on financial é?ﬂﬁ?ﬂ@ﬁ?@
assets, net R 19,937 1,577
Impairment loss on an other ET‘MHE/ BERE
intangible asset &5 18 3,588 —
432,939 592,952
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAD,(Em) (23,294) 16,764
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills  [EUEZ 5 718 & B UL
receivables ZyEE A (1) 88,818 (120,973)
Increase in contract assets BHEER (7,720) (2,656)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEfTFIE « REFS K
deposits and other receivables H fth FE YR IR A
(3 j][]) (782) 1,068
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due  JEU BEHE 75 sk 1B R L
from related parties (3 0) 3,912 (3,347)
Increase in trade and bills payables FET B 5 3k I8 & FE T
=S| 82,013 17,221
Increase in other payables and E b pE A SR I8 R FE AT
accruals & 3320 66,053 20,185
Increase in amounts due to related JE 1< R Bgk 75 7R 1B
parties N 92,908 1,596
Decrease in retirement benefit RIKEMNEER D
obligations (1,309) =
Decrease in provision B (1,189) i
EBBREZERERAT —T_THFH 107
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n_\éIﬁnﬁﬁEﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020512 A31HIEFE

Notes

2020
20204

RMB'000

B T

ARBTT

Cash generated from operations KEMEXRESMRE 732,349 521,810
Interest received B W F| B 9,613 8,124
Income tax paid BEAIFTEH (98,274) (163,882)
Net cash flows from operating KETRBFSRERE
activities FEE 643,688 366,052
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KEREESH
ACTIVITIES BeRE
Investment income on financial L/(”D\/‘ﬁ FQTEH‘EE,\
assets at FvTPL & BHFABEN TR
BERE W 55,746 44,279
Dividend received from a financial EJ«(/A/‘C ﬁfﬁﬁ'%ﬂﬁ
asset at FVTPL & BHABEN TR
BEWE 2R E 2,618 525
Purchases of items of property, plant BEBEWE - BELEZE
and equipment 5B (209,547) (36,365)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEWE - ME KK
property, plant and equipment I8 B FT1S3K18 7,399 3,710
Settlement of consideration for the Hﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ/éﬁﬁ’ﬂ
acquisition of other intangible HELE
assets (8,000) =
Purchases of financial assets at BEUAQ ﬁFTEquEH
FVTPL HEB ABRD
TRIEE (6,336,405)  (5,635,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial BRENAAREBENER
assets at FVTPL HEBT AEam
TR B E S IE 6,741,505 5,715,000
Purchases of other financial assets at ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂhﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁk$
amortised cost AENEREE (363,721) (52,174)
Proceeds from disposal of other BE B H 0 IR #E S A AR
financial assets at amortised cost ATENSREEMS
TRIE 126,768 84,923
Repayment from |OT hospitals REIOTER ZER 13,353 9,022
Repayment from a Sponsored REBRPERL 2 ENR
Hospital 5,893 —
Investments in associates B & A TZ&,\ (7,350) —
Proceeds from liquidation of an Gt NREEFTS KA
associate = 23,619
Acquisition of non-controlling W B FE 128 AR 4 2
interests (67,503) =
Acquisition/consolidation of W& B A A
subsidiaries 42 117,216 =
Settlement of consideration for the WEEM B A R&Y
acquisition of subsidiaries HEGE (190) (300)
Increase in pledged deposits B2 1R 77 38 0 (17,417) —
Net cash flows from investing KREFSFABERERE
activities R 60,365 157,239

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS <
REBREREB/R

Year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020F12 A31HILFE

2020
20204F
Notes RMB’000
k=3 AR®ETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RKERMEEHH
ACTIVITIES HenE
Proceeds from award of shares LR 1 R BT B 12D
under the Share Award Scheme A% 17 & BT 15 K18 = 42,985
Sales of treasury shares & EFRGD 380 =
Advance from the Sponsored RERMFEREL BN
Hospitals 44(b) = 695
New bank borrowings FrRITE K 44(b) 455,237 92,941
Repayment of bank borrowings RITERHER 44(b) (315,438) (17,156)
Principal portion of lease payments MENROEE D 44(b) (8,683) (2,733)
Capital contributions by non- EERREIEE
controlling shareholders 980 1,289
Capital contribution by a related — @AM AEE
party 595 266
Dividend paid B E (115,092) (131,487)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT T IEIERARR 2
shareholders % 2. (10,634) (10,933)
Distribution upon deregistration of T —RENEBAR®
a subsidiary PN (507) =
Interest paid EEEESA (14,220) (16,833)
Net cash flows used in financing REEBARESRE
activities FER (7,382) (40,966)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR& MIR&ZEEWIE N
EQUIVALENTS HER 696,671 482,325
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNReRBEEEEY
beginning of year 2,006,220 1,524,176
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFEH T EFEE
changes, net (1,521) (281)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FAXxBEESKRIREZEY
END OF YEAR 2,701,370 2,006,220
ERNBREREGRAT —T-TFH 109



A NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R MR

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

110

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-
1002, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business
of the Company in Mainland China is located at 14/F,
Kunlun Center Office Building No. 5, Courtyard No. 9,
Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the vyear, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group"”) were mainly
engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management services, group
purchasing organisation (“GPO") business and other
hospital-derived services in Mainland China.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Financial
include all

International

Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

ATFE R
EHBEEIERARARNESES M
R BBREMEAR o AARIFMISE
Bz b 3F A4th  Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, PO Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands + 2N B1E AR B (At Y
FTELEMBARPEARLNE ([F
Bt mEesREEHIRRLRERE
mMHROBFE14E o

REE KRB LREWERE (5HE
[AEE ] T2RERDBEAMIRHRELR
BERRE  REBKREERY  £E
REBAER ([GPO) XM A R E (B B
DTHE MRS -

ARREEMBRAZFBERIBERE
Fi SE 504K B -

fim B EL 7

BERMEHRRERRER G EAPIES
S((EReEREEE ) ELNE
PR M s Rl ([ BIR M 53R 5 22 A1 1)
(BREMAEERM GRS EL  BiRe
PRI (TG R ) M) - &
BAREGTRAIREERBUES 2 KE
EXREE - RERARABEAERR
ZE T ABSNEREEIN  BRANH
BRLELKAERE - FRIFEF I
B BBBERAARBTARK]D S
® MESBREUESRONTTAR
M o

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

B REERARMEE
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2.1

2.2

BAS'S OF PREPARAT'ON (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative

translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if

the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

in other comprehensive income is

or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business

IFRS 3

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 9, IAS 39 Reform
and IFRS 7

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent

IFRS 16 Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to Definition of Material
IAS 1 and IAS 8

2.1

2.2

i B E X ()
HREEXE@m

WEEE RIS RER T XA =B
TER—ERSETELREY A%
BeETHERTHRANRERE
SIHE - B AR 2 FERER RS
(3 4 25 5 42 B4 1E B — B2 R 5
T

MAEERENBRRZZHIE  Alg
RIFER(NZHMBARZEE (BER
B)RAE  (i)VERFERER < RE
B Rt AR 2 Rt EXZH
WHERNERREZRAAEBE (i) EM
REREZAAEE: Rii)EAmMRE
MEL ZBBRNER - FAENEME
AR Z A EBERIGED @ RIRK
AEECERLERBEEESRENE
SUNERRZHREE - IEE 2B
TEHOBREBRAXRKREMNE -

BB EBRNE

AEBERBRTFEZPHHERE K
WN2018F B 75 R & BE 2 HEZE AR T 5]
S FT BB B S SR 5 2 ) o

RIRBI B RE R XFE2TE
BRI ZEFT
BRI RE R FIXKEENE

%9% h m@
ATERIFE 395 K
BRI RS %
RIS 75 2 B5T
BRET RS 2R
F169 2 EFT
BRI
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=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the

impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the
revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "Conceptual Framework"”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and
parties to understand and
interpret the standards.

assistance to all
The Conceptual
Framework includes
measurement and reporting financial performance,

new guidance on the derecognition of assets and

new chapters on

liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition
criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.
The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and

none of the concepts contained therein override

roles of stewardship, prudence and

the concepts or requirements in any standard.
The Conceptual Framework did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change; (ii)
any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier

application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.
During the vyear ended 31 December 2020,

certain monthly lease payments for the leases of
the Group's buildings have been reduced by the
lessors as a result of the pandemic and there are
no other changes to the terms of the leases. The
Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the
pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease
payments arising from the rent concessions of
RMB1,791,000 has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to

IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 (2011)
IFRS 17

Amendments to
IFRS 17

Amendments to
IAS 1

Amendments to
IAS 16

Amendments to
IAS 37

Annual
Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 412

% 3R = 2 A

2.3 © 78 {8 js R 4 20 A9 B PR B

AEBEY EBAERBEHHHRRTEA T
E MR 1B 18 R AR FTR] K B 7T B

B M5 2R o

BU PR B 7 5 22 A
EIW BT

BRI BR B 765 4 o5 22 A
%9% N m@%
EBE39%  BEF
I mE &R
E7% - BRI
MEERF4H R
B B R 5 22 A
E165%. 21857

B % B 75 ¥ o5 42 B
F10REBEE e
B FE2857(2011)

ZIBE]

B R B 75 ¥ 5 22 A
F17%

B PR B s s 2
TR 2EET

BB B R &2 R
20184 2 20204 Hy
FREN#E

AR HER?

FIEFREHE —

EoEE

REFHABEAE
Rz HE
EHEZTE

A

REAF

BEAEATEY
HE?

W - BERKE
EREE 2 AT
ViE ek

ZiA R —
JETTE [RIH 2

B R B S 3R 5 2 A
1% BARE®

EEEELlA
BRE SR
HERI 2 165 BE b
AR &
&t AR

FARZERT?

L 720215151 Hsk 2 & RiBmEE BB ER
2 7202251 A1 Bk 2 & RisrFE BB ER
2 7202351 A1 Hsk 2 & FRiamFE B ER
¢ JRAMEERHIEN A - BE A

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

© As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those I|FRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate
to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon
designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users
of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate
the comparative information.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this
practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of
the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to |AS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORT'NG STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and a joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint venture, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint venture is
included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’'s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. \Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

2% to 5%

Over the shorter of
lease terms and 10%
10% to 20%

10% to 20%

20% to 50%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Medical equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings
and related leasehold improvements under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

B REERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

24 TESTHERE @

M- - BERREURITE @

T TR B RS B AR S S AT P 4
SR R RRESEE MR
ST HBRME - PR RN EEEE
PR SUNNE

BF 2% 25%
HEEENR FAHIZ10%

(AR EB%E)
BERE 10% £=20%
qE 10% £20%
/NS 20% £50%

EVE  BEARBERENZHLIET
[l RI (s A4 B » 2R B NS ED
=887 BREEHBILFEN
E-BE AERFHRTETEED
REFBREFRERETRE MR (NE
R) e

HERIFAMERLHETBELERK
RENDE WX BERXRFEEE
(BREMNTSHEANEARIL D) BIK
IFFERR o B SRR ATEA N E A Ha
HEENZEER LERFENERR
TR RSB HEMEEHEEMENK
BFRERAECHANERE -

HERTREFBRTERRNET M
MEEENR » ERKARERDEER
BARK  ATEHENE - KABRER
MEERAK - EEIRAZEKTARE
MOBEYNE BELRRENEER
Gl

EHBRERERAA

A

|
"
e

F

131



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PE R E

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

132

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating rights under IOT arrangements

The operating rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
16 to 48 years.

Sponsorship rights and service contracts

Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Good Supply Practice licence for pharmaceuticals
(“GSP Licence”)

The GSP Licence is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful economic life of 19 months.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. At inception or on reassessment of
a contract that contains a lease component and non-
lease components, the Group adopts the practical
expedient not to separate non-lease components and
to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms as follows:

Leasehold land
Leased properties
Medical equipment

50 to 60 years
1 to 9 years
1 to b years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

incentives

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

lease
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’'s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
model are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’'s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.
Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs
Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

loss allowance is
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's
own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to be that which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one vyear, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@)  Provision of general healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of in-patient services
is recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time when the
services are provided.

(b)  Provision of hospital management services

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over time
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Provision of hospital management services

(continued)

The service fees are calculated based on pre-set
formulas set out in the arrangements and certain
service fees are subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’ and Sponsored
Hospitals' net income before tax (3 &%) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group. Such service fees are accounted for as
variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of such service
fees because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

(c) GPO business

Revenue of the GPO business generated from the
sale of medical products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the medical products.

(d)  Provision of other hospital-derived services

Revenue from the provision of other hospital-
derived services is recognised at the point in time
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer or when the consultation services are
completed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related
goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’'s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share
awards is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

o service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’'s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements

The Group entered into a series of IOT agreements
with certain not-for-profit hospitals and their sponsors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to the
hospitals and/or the sponsors to improve the medical
facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the right to
manage and operate the hospitals and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 48 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or
their sponsors after the end of these periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements

(continued)

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
IOT agreements and whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making that judgement,
management considered the composition of the
internal governance bodies and certain committees
which oversee the operations of the hospitals. After
assessment, management concluded that the Group
does not obtain the decision making power under
these bodies and committees to direct the relevant
activities of the hospitals, and the Group does not
control these hospitals. Instead, these IOT agreements
are considered management contracts to generate
management service income.

Control over the hospitals under sponsorship rights
and service contracts

The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from other
parties and became the sponsor of certain not-for
profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a series of
service contracts with those not-for-profit hospitals in
which the Group agrees to provide management
services to the hospitals and receive management
fees. According to the service contracts, the
management fees to be received by the Group shall be
comprised of supply chain management service fees
and hospital management fees. The supply chain
management service fees were based on a certain
percentage of the procurement of the hospitals,
whereas the hospital management service fees were
based on certain percentages of the revenue and net
income before tax (M Z ##) generated by the
hospitals.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)

Control over the hospitals under sponsorship rights
and service contracts (continued)

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
sponsorship rights and service contracts and whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In making that
judgement, management considered the composition
of the internal governance bodies and certain
committees which oversee the operations of the
hospitals. After assessment, management concluded
that, other than the hospitals disclosed in note 42 to
the financial statements, the Group does not obtain the
decision making power under these bodies and
committees to direct the relevant activities of the
remaining hospitals, and the Group does not control
these hospitals. Instead, these service contracts are
considered contracts to generate service income.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the fair value less costs of disposal of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the fair value less costs of disposal requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB1,471,868,000 (2019: RMB1,463,611,000). Further
details are given in note 17.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the healthcare sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in note 27 and note 28 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of
sponsorship rights and service contracts

The Group’'s management estimates that the useful
lives of the sponsorship rights and service contracts of
the hospitals are indefinite. This estimate is based on
an analysis of all of the relevant factors, such as the
expected useful life of similar nature and functions, the
period of control over the right and legal or similar
limits on the use of the rights (including the ability to
renew the service contracts upon their maturity
through the sponsorship rights to appoint
representatives in the board of trustees of the
Sponsored Hospitals), and the useful life is dependent
on the operation periods of the hospitals. Based on
this analysis, the Group’s management considers that
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the right is expected to generate net cash inflows for
the Group.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and
service contracts are reviewed to assess whether their
recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying
amounts annually. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the cash-generating unit to which
the sponsorship rights and service contracts have been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. The impairment
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit, which has taken into account the estimation of
expected future cash flows of service contracts, and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised to
write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
sponsorship rights and service contracts was
RMB1,252,429,000 (2019: RMB1,844,203,000). Further
details are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Measurement of identifiable net assets for
purchase price allocation

Business combination requires an extensive use of
accounting estimates to allocate the purchase price to
the fair market values of the assets and liabilities
purchased. Determining the fair value of property, plant
and equipment and financial assets at FVTPL at the
date of business combination of business requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect its consolidated financial statements.

Any difference in the purchase price and the fair
values of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as either goodwill in the consolidated
statement of financial position or gain on bargain
purchase in profit or loss. The Group’s business
acquisitions have resulted in goodwill, which is subject
to yearly impairment testing and whenever there is an
indication that goodwill may be impaired. The Group
also assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Further details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Hospital management services containing variable
consideration

The Group’'s management estimates the service fees
from the hospital management services, which contain
variable consideration. The relevant service fees are
recognised based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’ and Sponsored Hospitals'
net income before tax (YZZ % #) and/or the
performance rating assessments of the Group. Where
the finalised net income before tax (Uz &%) is more
or less than expected, or the finalised performance
ratings of the Group are higher or lower than
expected, the difference between the finalised revenue
and the estimated revenue is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Consolidated hospitals — this segment engages
in the provision of out-patient and in-patient
services;

(b)  Unconsolidated hospitals — this segment engages
in the provision of services to the unconsolidated
hospitals;

(c) |OT/operate-transfer (“OT") hospitals — this
segment engages in the provision of services to
IOT hospitals and an OT hospital; and

(d) Others — this segment engages in the provision
of services to other kinds of clients.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
facilitating decision-making process of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measurement of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss
before tax except that fair value gains/losses on
financial assets at FVTPL, dividend income on a
financial asset at FVTPL, gain on bargain purchase,
loss on liquidation of an associate, investment income
on financial assets at FVTPL, investment income on
other financial assets at amortised cost, unallocated
interest and investment income, unallocated
impairment losses on financial assets, net, equity-
settled share-based payment expense,
foreign exchange differences, net,

unallocated
finance costs,
unallocated share of profits and losses of a joint
venture and associates as well as other unallocated
income, other unallocated administrative expenses,
other unallocated expenses and losses are excluded
from such measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment assets exclude goodwill, unallocated
investments in associates, financial assets at FVTPL,
other financial assets at amortised cost, cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results, and assets and liabilities by reportable and

operating segments.

Segment revenue and results

Consolidated
hospitals

HRER
RMB'000

ARBTR

Unconsolidated
FHEEBR
ARETT

REFTTHER @

AT IR A E MK L 50 J AR EE
WAMEEAREENMBBENDHN -

2B = I R A

10T/OT
hospitals Others Total
I0T/OT &% Hith @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSTT  ARBTL  ARETR

hosp\tals

RMB'000

Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ20205128318 LEE
External revenues ShEpk s
General healthcare services HEBERE 1,643,620 - - - 1,643,620
Hospital management services BB RS = 47,889 31,012 - 78,901
Third-party supply chain service fees %E?ﬂ%)ﬁﬁﬁ % 31,076 77,607 71,603 - 180,286
GPO business GPO%7% = 163,267 658,241 = 821,508
Other hospital-derived services BB AT E R = = = 26,335 26,335
Inter-segment revenue PHE K
Hospital management services B ERR% 58,957 - - - 58,957
GPO business GPO%7% 184,404 = = = 184,404
Other hospital-derived services Hi BT R 4,310 - - 2,865 7,175
Segment revenue AEplEE 1,922,367 288,763 760,856 29,200 3,001,186
Eliminations B (247,671) = = (2,865) (250,536)
Consolidated revenue REWE 1,674,696 288,763 760,856 26,335 2,750,650
Segment cost DERA (1,379,012) (148,670) (566,051) (20,4100  (2,114,143)
Other income Hft A 14,075 = 9,588 5,526 29,189
Other gains Hip s 356 - - - 356
Selling and distribution expenses HERAHER (2,639) (3,641) (7,921) - (14,201)
Administrative expenses THER (151,255) (6,551) (33,641) (10,374) (201,821)
Finance costs HEER (2,422) - - (22) (2,444)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net ~ & REEREFETE (18,258) - (1,920) - (20,178)
Impairment losses on an other intangible ~ EMEFAEREFR

asset = = (3,588) = (3,588)
Other expenses Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ% (7173) - - (219) (7,392)
Share of profit of a joint venture FEfE— Fﬁlé\%’/} W‘J‘?Fﬁ = 1,072 = = 1,072
Share of profits of associates FE(REE = 2 R F B = - 34,047 - 34,047
Segment results “*B%i‘ 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 451,547
Fair value losses on financial assets at AR BEEREZE;AER

FVTPL MEMEEALBERE (25,140)
Dividend income on a financial asset at DA EEFEAEEHHFABE

FVTPL HeBAENRS KA 2,618
Gain on bargain purchase muﬂzﬂﬁuﬁzm 9,428
Investment income on financial assets at ~ ARABEEBEEFHABLE

FVTPL NEREEREN 55,746
Investment income on other financial ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%iﬁfﬁzﬁ‘f%%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ

assets at amortised cost K& s 2,955
Unallocated interest and investment APEFERFERA

income 11,641
Unallocated impairment losses on APECHEERNBEERTE

financial assets, net pLy|
Equity-settled share-based payment REREEURDETRAR

expense (8,721)
Unallocated finance costs AAEHEER (14,947)
Foreign exchange differences, net EXERFE 44,314
Unallocated share of losses of associates KA EEEEHE D FEE (151)
Other unallocated income Hin KA RKA 2,161
Other unallocated administrative EtRARTBER

expenses (113,222)
Other unallocated expenses EtRHRER (285)
Profit before tax BAIFE 418,185
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &R& 5 3EE @

(continued)
DEM R EE @

Consolidated Unconsolidated |0T/0T
hospitals hospitals hospitals Others
RER  EHERBR  10T/OTER Hit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT ARETT ARBTT

Segment revenue and results (continued)

ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F128318LEE
External revenues shEpias
General healthcare services GEBERE 721,055 = = = 721,055
Hospital management services B R % = 134,029 98,600 = 232,629
Third-party supply chain service fees BEZHHREERBE 23,077 100,164 91,610 = 214,851
GPO business GPO#R = 191,919 716,891 I 908,810
Other hospital-derived services Hib BT RIS = — — 37,975 37,975
Inter-segment revenue PHE KR
GPO business GPO%£7% 199,867 = = = 199,867
Other hospital-derived services E Bl iTE RS 475 = = 661 1,136
Segment revenue 7 le 944,474 426,112 907,101 38,636 2,316,323
Eliminations K (200,342) = = (661) (201,003)
Consolidated revenue REWE 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 2,115,320
Segment cost PERA (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276)  (1,353,029)
Other income LU ON 1,655 = 10,206 4,584 16,445
Other losses e (790) = = = (790)
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHER (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25) (15,750)
Administrative expenses THER (65,043) (6,715) (20,298) (7,059) (99,115)
Other expenses EtEA (836) = = (1,125) (1,961)
Segment results PEEE 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 661,120
Fair value losses on financial assets at MDA EEFESEEZEFAR

FVTPL nMeREEALBEER (13.491)
Dividend income on a financial asset at WAL BEFEEEZEAAR

FVTPL NS REENRIMA 525
Loss on liquidation of an associate —HHENAEENER (118)
Investment income on financial assets at AR EEFEEEEH: AR

FVTPL HENEREERE WS 44,279
Unallocated interest and investment RABRFMBREEKRA

income 10,499
Impairment losses on financial assets, net £ BEEREFEFE (1,577)
Equity-settled share-based payment RESEEURDARAS

expense (13,083)
Finance costs HEER (16,942)
Foreign exchange differences, net EXEZRFH (12,158)
Share of profit of a joint venture ElE—Ra2ARFE 4,502
Share of profits of associates FE(RE & ARFIE 144
Other unallocated income Hi KA ERA 3,522
Other unallocated losses R HRER (5)
Other unallocated administrative HthRARTHER

expenses (125,621)
Other unallocated expenses EARSPEBER (297)
Profit before tax HAIFE 541,299
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

REFTTHER @
PUEERERE

|0T/0T
hospitals
|0T/OT &%
RMB'000
ARETT

Segment assets and liabilities

Consolidated  Unconsolidated
hospitals hospitals Others Total
Hft st
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR

BrRER  FORER

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARETT

As at 31 December 2020 R2020512531H
Segment assets NEEE 1,507,956 2,026,513 731,302 70,173 4,335,944
Goodwill EE 1,471,868
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEGEAAZYFARR
MERMEE 198,014
Other financial assets at amortised cost Hit B ER AT ENEREE 265,022
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged Re kR SENMUAREERER
deposits 2,718,824
Corporate and other unallocated assets RRIREMKAREE 270,755
Elimination of inter-segment receivables A EEKFERE (297,234)
Total assets BEE 8,963,193
Segment liabilities k=1 1,025,537 217,659 22,602 71,324 1,337,122
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEFTER 684,301
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies AR REMALEEE 898,550
Elimination of inter-segment payables A EENFERE (297,234)
Total liabilities BERE 2,622,739

10T/0T
hospitals Others
|0T/OT &bz Eft
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETRT

Consolidated  Unconsolidated
hospitals hospita\s
EHRBR
RMB' 000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARBTTL

RMB'000
ARBTT

As at 31 December 2019 R2019E12A31A
Segment assets NHEE 466,364 2,590,291 868,644 67,021 3,992,320
Goodwill S 1,463,611
Investments in associates ?FAH ERAMBRE 151
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BE S B HEEH ABR

MeRmEE 358,254
Other financial assets at amortised cost HitREER AT ENEREE 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents e RALEEN 2,006,220
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR REMRNEEE 231,614
Elimination of inter-segment receivables AEEEKFERE (203,303)
Total assets BEE 7,873,981
Segment liabilities AAER 201,285 258,791 10,108 59,570 529,754
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERTER 578,337
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ~ AAIREMKAEEE 829,018
Elimination of inter-segment payables PEEEMFERH (203,303)
Total liabilities BeR 1,733,806
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. && 9 3X&EX w)

(continued)
Geographical information ithEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KREINBEFHKA
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AR TIT
Mainland China/the PRC R R i, 2,750,650 2,115,320
The revenue information above is based on the Fit i A EBAR F R fEH A&
locations of the customers. % o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRnEBEE
The Group's operations are located in the PRC REBZEEFHUNAR - H
and substantially all of the Group’s non-current REXREEBZ2HERBEEY
assets are located in the PRC. LA o

EHBRERERAA

A
|

i

i

FH
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5. REVENUE 5. W&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wes oA -

2019
20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETIT
Revenue from contracts with EEARWA
customers 2,750,650 2,115,320
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEEERWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) Wz E R BHA
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F 1231 HiFFE

Other

General Hospital hospital-

healthcare  management GPO derived
services services business services Elimination Total

KeBER  BREE HiEk
R R#%  GPOXE  TERHK i st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETE

Types of goods or services Em RS E R
General healthcare services REBRRE
In-patient AR 763,313 = = = = 763,313
Out-patient PR 880,307 = = = = 880,307
1,643,620 - - - - 1,643,620
Hospital management services BREBERE
From consolidated hospitals REHERER = 58,957 - - (58,957) -
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER - 47,889 - - - 47,889
From 10T hospitals REIOTER - 21,717 - - - 21,717
From an OT hospital RE—HOTER - 9,295 - - - 9,295
From third party suppliers (note) REE=HEER (Ha) - 180,286 - - - 180,286
= 318,144 = = (58,957) 259,187
GPO business GPO¥7%
From consolidated hospitals REHRER = - 184,404 - (184,404) -
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER - - 163,267 - - 163,267
From 10T hospitals REIOTER = = 658,123 = = 658,123
From an OT hospital RE—FHOTER - - 18 - - 118
= = 1,005,912 = (184,404) 821,508
Other hospital-derived services B 1t 88 B 67 4 BRAS = = - 33510 (7,175) 26,335
Total At 1,643,620 318,144 1,005,912 33,510 (250,536) 2,750,650
Timing of revenue recognition BRKEHEE
A point in time PR (65 7S 2 880,307 - 1,005,912 33510 (191,579) 1,728,150
Over time R—BRHERN 763,313 318,144 = = (58,957) 1,022,500
Total At 1,643,620 318,144 1,005,912 33510  (250,536) 2,750,650
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Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

General

healthcare management GPO

services

SRR B

RMB'000
ARBTT

5. W&
EFEARWA @

(a) Wiz EH B &)

B FE2019E 12 H31 HiFE/EF

Other
hospital-
derived
services
Hi 2
PTHE RS e
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTR

Hospital

services business Elimination

RERER
RMB'000
ARBFTE

GPO%%
RMB'000
AREFT

Total

5t

RMB'000

A

B

Types of goods or services GIRETE 3 F]

General healthcare services FEBERE

In-patient bR 297,784 = = = = 297,784

Out-patient P2 R% 423,271 - — — — 423,271

721,055 = — — = 721,055

Hospital management services BREERE

From unconsolidated hospitals REFEHRER = 134,029 = = - 134,029

From 10T hospitals KEIOTE i 92,940 = = = 92,940

From an OT hospital RE—MOTER = 5,660 = = — 5,660

From third party suppliers (note) REE=HHER () = 214,851 = = = 214,851
ot 447,480 — — == 447,480

GPO business GPO¥#

From consolidated hospitals REHRER = = 199,867 = (199,867) —

From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER — — 191,919 — — 191,919

From 10T hospitals KEIOTER = = 716,891 = — 716,891
— s 1,108,677 — (199,867) 908,810

Other hospital-derived services Hi B 6T £ R = = = 39,111 (1,136) 37,975

Total &t 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320

Timing of revenue recognition B MR

A point in time MR AR 423,271 — 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 1,370,056

Over time R—BREREA 297,784 447,480 — —— — 745,264

Total s 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320
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5.

REVEN U E (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Note:

The Group entered into agreements with its third party suppliers
for the joint development of a regional integrated pharmaceutical
and/or medical consumable supply chain management system (the

“Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements”). The Group

provides supply chain management services to suppliers and
recognises relevant revenue based on pre-set formulas set out in

the Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements.

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

General healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of general healthcare
services is mainly derived from hospital services
provided at the hospital, which is recognised
when the related services have been rendered to

customers.

For in-patient services, customers normally
in-patient treatment which contains
various treatment components that are all highly
interdependent and regarded as a single
performance obligation. The period of in-patient
services is usually within nine days. Since the

receive

patient simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits of the Group’s performance in the
medical treatment, the relevant revenue of in-
patient services is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards the complete
satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
individual products or services transferred by the
Group to the customer.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the services are provided.

(a) Wzt &K BFH (&)

(b)
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REVENUE (continued) 5. H&:ET&(%E)

Revenue from contracts with customers EFERWKA @

(continued)

(b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) EA=H (&)
Hospital management services Bl R
The Group provides comprehensive hospital REE (A& I&:T;ﬂ,\, EERER
management services to the IOT hospitals, the R M= I0OTERT - SR
Sponsored Hospitals and an OT hospital and B &k —FEIOT & FEH&HX SR o K

receives a management fee from each of the
hospitals. The Group also receives supply chain
management service fees from third party
suppliers through setting up a supply chain
management system.

For the hospital management services rendered
on various aspects of daily operations of the
hospitals mentioned above, the contracts contain
multiple deliverables. As such services have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer, it is
therefore regarded as a single performance
obligation.

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards the
complete satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred by the Group to the
customer. The relevant revenue is recognised
based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’" and Sponsored
Hospitals' net income before tax (3 &%) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group.

The Group receives the payments of service fees
on a quarterly or yearly basis after the provision
of the services. A contract asset is recognised
where the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer is conditional.

EHBRERERAA

SEEAEY —EftEEE R
BENE = H W E R
BERBE -

NER LB EEEESTE
MEBREERBMES  AHNER
ZHEINOKR - ARAER
BENERRBHOREAAER - &
RERE—RBORK -

U B EE RGN KRR TIES
ZRKZBEHNEBHNEER  RE
HWHAR TR - TEHEBH
EETIARE B A% P EERE
PTERTENEETE - HEK
=m IR ESI TR E A
B XEREEFRIOTERR NS
MBS AR AR EE
ZREFLE -

REEHEERGR  AEERE
FEXEBFWIRRBEEBNK -
HARERIB|AEEERETP
HEORBUBRAKBOENRE
iRt - RIEREHNEE -

—ETFR
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5.

REVEN U E (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (continued)
Hospital management services (continued)

The estimated amounts of variable consideration
are updated to reflect changes in factors that
attributes to the measurement of consideration
for the performance obligations satisfied.

GPO business

The Group derives revenue from the sale of
medical products, such as pharmaceuticals,
medical devices and medical consumables, to the
consolidated hospitals, unconsolidated hospitals,
the IOT hospitals and other external customers.
Revenue from GPO business is recognised when
control of medical products is transferred to the
customer, i.e. when the medical products are
delivered and simultaneously accepted by the
customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point of time when the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Other hospital-derived services

It mainly represents the provision of professional
medical The
revenue is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer or when the consultation services are

consultation services. relevant

completed.

5. Wz @

EEERWA @)

(b) BHIEHE (&)
B2 1= 7 AR 7K (48)
AEREBNGIEHEBEETED
TRENEHRZREFENRE
BB 1M BT o
GPOZ 7%
REBEREHRER JEHFRE
Bt ~ IOTEF M EMINSEFHE
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HlwA

2020
20204

RMB’000
ARETTT

2019
20194

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Interest and investment income on: MERFERA :
Financial assets at FVTPL WAREBEFEAEH
BEE ABRN R
BE 55,746 44,279
Other financial assets at amortised HAZE SR ARG 21
cost TREE 2,955 —
Receivables from 10T hospitals REIOTE R 2 el
NIE 9,588 10,206
Bank deposits RITFER 9,613 8,124
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital ) — R B PR it
& ® 2,028 2,375
Dividend income on a financial asset NAnBEFEEES
at FVTPL ABENEREER
fi&% B A 2,618 525
Government grants AT 4 B 3,772 —
Others HAth 17,990 9,761
104,310 75,270

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7.

RMB’000
AREF T

Hipl s & 18 F 8

2020
20204

2019
20194

RMB’000
ARBF T

Gain on bargain purchase EEWERE 9,428 —

Gain on lease termination LIEHEE W= 341 —

Gain on lease modification HEZE Wa 15 —
Fair value losses on financial assets at WAAARABEEHEEESH)
FVTPL FABEHNEREER

nEEEE (25,140) (13,491)

Foreign exchange differences, net fERERFR 44,314 (12,158)
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREWE  WEIKREE

plant and equipment, net BEBFE — (795)

Loss on liquidation of an associate —MBE AT EENEE = (118)

28,958 (26,562)
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. FiAIFHE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after AEBEBATFIE LM, (GEA) A
charging/(crediting): THERF/H :

2020 2019
20204 20194

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Mo aE ARET T AR T IT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 1,469,284 1,094,564

Depreciation of property, plant Y% - B RE&E

and equipment e 15 86,572 38,983
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE

assets 16(a) 18,913 5,911
Amortisation of intangible assets & & &= # 84

(included in cost of sales) (FFASHE R A) 18 7,897 18,750
Total depreciation and mEREHESR

amortisation 113,382 63,644

Lease payments not included in T EIERHEEE G

the measurement of lease ENHEENK
liabilities 16(c) 4,609 3231/
Auditor’'s remuneration A G A 3,770 3,010
Employee benefit expense BTREAMZH
(including directors’ (BREEH)
remuneration) (note 10): (MF5E10) -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and ITE #H<e-
allowances TE4T J2 2 Bh 653,088 316,817
Equity-settled share-based LESEE N
payment expense R 1 R 8,721 13,083
Pension scheme contributions RS ET B 23,088 25,482
684,897 355,382
Pending medical dispute FARABEFZFD
litigation provision: B -
Additional provision RSN 37 1,052 —
Impairment of trade receivables, [EWE 5 Z I8 R E
net R 27 20,432 781
Impairment/(reversal of SREERE/ CRE
impairment) of financial assets | (Gt ATER
included in prepayments, HIE - RES K
deposits and other receivables H th fE Y FRTE) 29 (495) 794
Impairment of amounts due from  fEURREEEE 5 A
related parties BE - 2
Loss on disposal of items of BEWMHE  HWEKR
property, plant and equipment, XEIEEB BIEFE
net = 795
Covid-19-related rent HE AR
concessions from a lessor mEEEEE R 16(c) (1,791) —
Gain on lease termination HEKIEW R 16(c) (341) —
Gain on lease modification HESE W 16(c) (15) —
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIBEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERITHET :

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 13,012 15,027

Interest on payables to the Sponsored & {52 #u #E B b 2078 2
Hospitals F & 765 879
Interest on lease liabilities HEREMNE 3,242 528
Others HAth 372 508
17,391 16,942

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERATZEM <
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEBBHERIAMBERAA(EH
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the B FT]) S EmARA - (BB R RHE
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong By %383(1)(a) ~ (b) * () R(ME KA
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), A(BBRESMNEER) BAOI)E28
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong EEMBERFANNSEELT :

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Group
KEE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT AR TIT
Fees e 1,836 1,823
Other emoluments: HAan < -
Salaries and allowances Fre ezl 6,328 7,628
Bonuses TEAL 9,199 12,811
Equity-settled share-based payment R EE AR 3K
expense X 2,067 2,352
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEI K 57 237
17,651 23,028
19,487 24,851

EHBRERERAA T4

it
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain
directors were awarded shares, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the Share Award Scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such shares, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

10.

BEERBEZHE @

HZE20195 12831 ILEE - iREAK
NAEIMR M BT E - A TESERRK
D UINEHASENRE HEZ
HEEN MR LI - LFERHD
WAREECEGBHHETERRTRE
REBERTHETE  AFEHBHRE
PHEEEAE LS EMBERMEH
W -

(a) BUFHTES

FALZNFBILERTEZNHE
(U N

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony HATE B 5E A
(#ATE fB 5% &) * 887 879
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB B o S A
(BB B 5 5 4F) 443 440
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZERELA) ZRELA 240 240
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HeEZt
(& B2z ) 266 264
1,836 1,823
@ During the year, the Group recognised an equity-settled & FR - AEERABEBREERTH

share-based payment expense of RMB1,069,000 (2019:
RMB1,069,000) in respect of the shares awarded to Mr. Wu
Ting Yuk Anthony.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2019: Nil).

B ERIE S EE AR A RAS
AE#1,069,0007T (20194F : AR#E
1,069,0007T) °

FAMEELMEMNBIIERNTE
EMBE (2019F : &) o
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERAB M€ w
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non- (b) HITEERIHITES
executive directors

Equity-settled
share-based Pension
Salaries and payment scheme Total
allowances Bonuses contributions  remuneration

Ha EmmEIA B S

B A BONRAX  FEER Mees
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR

Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Song Qing (K& %) RERE - - 285 - 285
Mr. Cheng Libing (RS E5E4) Bz 2,688 3,598 285 4 6,575
Ms. Ren Yuan (FiEZ ) FiEzt 1,823 3,146 214 49 5,232
Ms. Fu Yanjun ({332 1) MEBRLL 1,817 2,455 214 4 4,490
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Yan (£ E % 4) IER4E = = = - -
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582

Equity-settled
share-based Pension
Salaries and payment scheme Total
allowances Bonuses expense contributions remuneration

BRE
FoaR TEAL Befp st MEas
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARETRH

Executive directors: YITES:
Mr. Song Qing (& 5%t %) RERE = = 285 = 285
Mr. Cheng Libing AR A
(KL &5 5) 2,689 3,510 285 50 6,534
Mr. Han Yuewei BRRELA
(BRELLE)” 1,643 3,509 285 59 5,396
Ms. Ren Yuan (FEZ L) Lt 1,585 3,114 214 78 4,991
Ms. Fu Yanjun (fJ33E 2 +) MEERL 1,811 2,678 214 50 4,753
7,628 12,811 1,283 237 21,959
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Yan (EE % %) IELAE = = = = =
7,628 12,811 1,283 237 21,959
& On 15 October 2019, Mr. Han Yuewei resigned as an * R2019F10A 168 - & B & &k 4 B
executive director. FRITES -

EHBRERERAA F

it
b=n|
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2019: Nil).

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2019: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2019:
Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporate and connected entities (2019: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2019: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2019: one) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

10. EERBEH M@

11.

FN - AEEBEREE (N HEMNE
MM EREMAREBE R INAKRE
B8 2 B2 RS BRBR AR (B (2019%F : ) o

FA - WERKIFEERS M E B
B ERRKERN - ek F=
o 4 (T {a] JE 1 BR (20194F - &) - R A
ARHEIRREMNE=FRHENENE
WBR (20195 &) - REBARESE -
HIEHaEAEEMEREEHER
EERKEMR S (2019F : £) °

FABEBESIREMEXRBHEL
B & 1) %2 HF (2019%F - &) o

TfuBaEHEER
FRNEMNGERHFEEEE =% (2019
FHB)ESF FEMSFBENE
MFE10- BEFAFHME (2019
F:—R)&aFES (WIEAARAE
BBH) NS FBOT

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Salaries and allowances e EaEah 3,848 1,927

Bonuses TEAT 3,472 2,119
Equity-settled share-based payment LR 4 E AR TR

expense X 428 214

Pension scheme contributions (defined — R{R& 525K
contribution scheme) (FEHAETED) 8 50
7,756 4,310
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 BT E

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

M. AN ESHFEE @™

MENF T BEBFES RIFBHES
HEEHE -

Number of employees

BE2H

2020
20204

2019
20194

4,500,000/ 7T 2 —

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 87L&
5,000,0007% 7T — 1
2 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, shares
were awarded to non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 39 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such shares, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

B E2019%12831HILEE  siEE
ERFBERRRT EERNASERER
BERFEERTRD  FBHRT Bk
EWEFN ERNEBHERRRER
MR ARBEERE TFTHEETE -
FFARNFM B HRENEE EMA Lt
EHFEEERIFBRES T REENEH
W& -

FA AEEENOURSFHES X
SEMEMNMEEREMARKERR
A SR BB 2 22 Rh s RE R R (E (2019
FE)

TE

it
b=n|

[
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[
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2. INCOME TAX

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at
the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income arising in the PRC during the year.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2019: Nil).

Current — Mainland China

BIER — B A

12. Fr8 %

EpREAGERRIWAZE » RAE
M EFHEF B ZEFT1SHi25% (2019
F:26%) HRAEERAFERNL
EBERBELEDRBFESHERTFE -
;ﬁtﬂi})ﬂqﬂmiﬁﬁéﬂ S B % (2019

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Charge for the year rFEER 99,138 139,321
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHRERE (867) (116)
Deferred (note 36) ESE (F15E36) (407) 1,460
Total tax charge for the year AEREHEETE 97,864 140,665

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the PRC statutory tax rate to the tax
charge at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

AT BEDAE R R E OB ATFE
BEIZAREARR R HENOH B ER
(N

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Profit before tax 15t 7 ) 418,185 541,299
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of A BE FEH E 25%
25% (2019: 25%) (2019% : 25%) Y
1A 104,546 189,825
Lower tax rates enacted by specific FFE R AR EITHRIE
jurisdictions RS (1,029) 5,303
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FLBEHIM BN EAFI B
previous periods B (867) (116)
Profits and losses attributable to a joint  f&E{5— FEJ/\** NI
venture and associates NI E = E (8,742) (1,162)
Income not subject to tax REFBUA (14,938) (3,145)
Expenses not deductible for tax T BB R A 2 15,478 6,561
Tax losses utilised from previous BRI EANTREEE
periods (5,661) (16,003)
Tax losses not recognised RIER WIS BB 5,147 10,036
Others EAb 3,930 3,866
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax AEEARHEHNTHE
rate 97,864 140,665

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB11,349,000 (2019: Nil) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

DEBHERNINTREBLAEHARE
11349 0007T (20194 : &) B & E 4R
/CI\ Q*U/FEJ&JE’J'

1835 Rk > [ (5 B A 7
JO

o
/IIJ]U
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. BE
2020 AONES]
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Dividend recognised as distribution WRAERNFEEAD B
during the year: iR
Final 2019 — HK10 cents (2018: 20196 R — Bk
HK12 cents) per ordinary share TR0
(20184 : 127(L) 119,218 136,767
Less: Dividend for shares held under B IRIEAR (D S EDET £l
the Share Award Scheme BB RMDBRE (4,126) (5,280)

115,092 131,487

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET

Final dividend proposed after the end of ¥R Hi oK 1 %tk A Hf
the reporting period: %2
Proposed final 2020 — HK8.82 cents EiR&2020F K8 —
(2019: HK10 cents) per ordinary T EERR8.8281L
share (20194 : 10/811L) 114,367 129,668
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to REFEIR R S M A AR R RERE
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the B RITHRRBF RS L& -

forthcoming annual general meeting.

EHBRERERAA T4
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

Earnings 2R
Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the parent

14. B AR EEREREEARE
LEREF

BRERREERNRBEIATAES
e «

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
AR®ETT

RMB’000
ARETT

REstE SR ER NS

VR A SE/NCIR )il

for the purpose of the basic and BaBEARLEFE

77

diluted earnings per share calculation

310,131 390,865

Number of shares
%15 21 B

2020 2019
20204 20194
‘000 ‘000
+ +
Shares & 4
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EsIEEREAAREF 2
shares in issue during the year for MEFHFARAE BT
the purpose of the basic earnings per LmRE R
share calculation 1,255,930 1,253,291
Effect of dilution — weighted average  fI#EFHEBRE A &8
number of ordinary shares: -3
Shares awarded under the Share RIR D R BT 8
Award Scheme 2 Bt 5,140 1,495
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EstEERE S AT~
shares in issue during the year for I EAB BT
the purpose of the diluted earnings LA EE
per share calculation 1,261,070 1,254,786

The weighted average number of shares used for the
purpose of calculating the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of
shares repurchased and held under the Share Award
Scheme.

ARt EE 2= 2020%F % 2019F12 A 31
AIEFESREARFMEERF 2N
BEHRNEE - THEARZRKR N =B
EBERBERN I EBETES
e ©
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BER&E

Leasehold Medical Motor Office  Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
Br HEEEHR EBEXG aE RARE ERIR Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETR

31 December 2020 2020128318
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A318 K

at 1 January 2020: 20201818 :

Cost A 75,413 94,031 144,494 3,525 45,535 25590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation RitiE (47,156) (48,373)  (84,218) (2,163)  (25,303) - (207,213)

Net carrying amount RHEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25590 181,375
At 1 January 2020, net of R202051 818 - Mk

accumulated depreciation RiHinE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
Additions RE 117,906 4,983 48,153 602 13,562 27,299 212,505
Acquisition/consolidation of WiiE /Ao B AT

subsidiaries (note 42) (GEZY) 298,846 12,321 149,334 7,854 13,411 23,474 505,240
Disposals RE (257) (6,019) (263) (9) (305) (546) (7,399)
Depreciation provided during the FRTERE

year (20,046) (11,765)  (42,797) (1,126)  (10,838) = (86,572)
Transfers B 15,453 14,329 1,303 - 2,547 (33,632) -
At 31 December 2020, net of R2020512A318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation 2 E 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
At 31 December 2020: R2020F 128318 :

Cost AR 507,361 119,645 343,021 11,972 74,750 42,185 1,098,934

Accumulated depreciation EEiE (67,202) (60,138)  (127,015) (3,289)  (36,141) - (293,785)

Net carrying amount EEEFSE 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
31 December 2019 2019%12A31R
At 1 January 2019 R201951 818 :

Cost &S 179,842 73,855 154,689 4,878 39,117 24714 477,095

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (66,065) (43,474)  (79,098) (2,768)  (26,327) —  (217,732)

Net carrying amount RHEFE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24714 259,363
At 1 January 2019, net of R201951 818 Mk

accumulated depreciation R E 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24714 259,363
Additions RE 259 7,013 7,421 = 8,707 19,720 43120
Transfer to other non-current assets ~ EREZEHMIFRHEE

(note 25) (FizE25) (76,269) = — — = = (76,269)
Disposals BE = (6) (3,537) (74) (888) (1,351) (5,856)
Depreciation provided during FRTERE

the year (6,856) (7,051)  (18,556) (633) (5,887) = (38,983)
Transfers B (2,654) 15,321 (643) (41) 5,510 (17,493) —
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019512A318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation ES i 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25590 181,375
At 31 December 2019: 20195124318 :

Cost AR 75,413 94,031 144,494 3,525 45,535 25590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation RitiE (47,156) (48,373)  (84,218) (2163)  (25,303) —  (207,213)

Net carrying amount EEEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

16. LEASES 16. &

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office properties and
medical equipment used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 50 and 60
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 9
years and leases of medical equipment generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years.

AEBEEREEA

AEEREEEFERANRIFERE
BEREREHESR - —XEMNBHE
INEAREFr B & R ESHEH RL0F K
BOFMEE L ARBEEL LTI
AR BREBNIERE - MABE
HENHERRBE/IZIF  BE
REHENHEHNRBE R1E5%F -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHBEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use AEBEFAGFAREEREER
assets and the movements during the year are as SET

follows:

Leasehold Leased Medical
land properties  equipment Total
HE+i HEME BERE G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R20195 1818 140,345 138 = 140,483
Additions NE = 21,478 — 21,478
Depreciation charge during FEWEER
the year (3,375) (2,536) — (5,911)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019612A318 &
at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 136,970 19,080 — 156,050
Additions NE 24,395 2,072 = 26,467
Additions as a result of RUeEE  AHHEA
acquisition/consolidation of AlfAE (H3E42)
subsidiaries (note 42) 20,831 71,469 5,414 97,714
Depreciation charge during FEHEER
the year (3,639) (13,820) (1,454) (18,913)
Lease termination MEKIE = (19,836) = (19,836)
Lease modification — HEEE — HEHE
Reduction in the scope of 2R
leases i (999) . (999)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 178,557 57,966 3,960 240,483
As at 31 December 2020, the land use certificate M2020F 128318 ' &A%

of a leased

land with a carrying amount of

RMB23,726,000 was not yet obtained by the

Group.

B R REEEER AR
23,726,000 7T BV FH & + 1 &9 £ b
BRE -
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE&E @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEREEA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAMRE
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the FAMEEENREERESN
movements during the year are as follows: N

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 18,883 138
New leases & 2,072 21,478
Additions as a result of FRRE = 1= /NG
acquisition/consolidation of mARE (H5E42)
subsidiaries (note 42) 76,883 Y
Accretion of interest recognised FARRONEBE K
during the year 3,242 528
Covid-19-related rent concessions  HHAREHFEREE
from a lessor A2 TR (1,791) —
Payments during the year FER (11,925) (3,261)
Lease termination MEKIE (20,177) —
Lease modification — Reduction HEEE — HEHE
in the scope of leases B (1,014) —
At 31 December ®12H31H 66,173 18,883
Analysed into: DA
Current portion EVHAER > 19,398 5,286
Non-current portion JEBNHAEE & 46,775 13,5697
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBGENIHY T EMBEREK
disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements. M sE499 55 o
As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial MEFFETRRMIE2.2FTHE - &A%
statements, the Group has early adopted the B B 12 5 R 40 B B B 7S R 5 2E R
amendment to IFRS 16 and applied the practical F165MIEE] - WK EA1TH
expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted BEZEARFEALEARE
by the lessors for leases of certain properties LYENHEEMKTHRRESE
during the year. RESESR -

EHBRERERAA T4
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. *HE(?E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) EEBEREBEA @
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) FHAEENSBRERERNT :

188

to leases are as follows:

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB’000
AREETIT

RMB’000
ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 3,242 528
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {EAEEEMNNEER
assets 18,913 5,911

Expense relating to short-term

HEHHEERHENAX

leases (included in cost of (BIEEHEHEXNAA)
sales) 362 =
Expense relating to short-term HEHHEEMNAX
leases (included in (BEETHRERA)
administrative expenses) 4,247 3,237
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHEAREHHTHES
from a lessor HEREER (1,791) —
Gain on lease termination mIERE WS (341) —
Gain on reduction in the scope of & & Ej§ 4 <
leases (15) —
Total amount recognised in profit  RIEZFER M EEE
or loss 24,617 9,676
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in (d) HERSREBRBEEVEREN
note 44(c) to the financial statements. 344(0)43&&% °
The Group as a lessor AEBEERAEHBAA
The Group leases certain buildings and office AEBERBLEHETHLAELY 2

equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was

RMB1,549,000 (2019: RMB1,953,000).

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

are as follows:

Within one year

LY RHTRRME o NREBRFERNERL
e WA B ARBE1,549,0005T (2019
F: AR#¥1,953,0007T) °

MN2020F12 8318 AEEGHEFA S
S AT BEBUHE & L E 18 T A K HE
AW AR BEEMZOT ¢

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBET T AREETIT

—FN 1,306 2,206
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBETIT

At 1 January: ®1A18 :

Cost B AR 3,191,110 3,191,110

Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)

Net carrying amount FREEF R 1,463,611 1,463,611
Cost at 1 January, 1 A1 BB

net of accumulated impairment Mk 25 RE 1,463,611 1,463,611
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B AR

(note 42) (PfizE42) 8,257 —
At 31 December M12H31H 1,471,868 1,463,611
At 31 December: M12H318 :

Cost DN 3,199,367 3,191,110

Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)

Net carrying amount IREEFHE 1,471,868 1,463,611

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and
sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives with carrying amounts of
RMB1,463,611,000 (2019: RMB1,463,611,000) and
RMB1,252,429,000 (2019: RMB1,844,203,000) are
allocated to the cash-generating units of Ample Mighty
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (the "Ample Mighty CGUs") for
impairment testing. Goodwill acquired through the
business combination as disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements with a carrying amount of
RMB8,257,000 is allocated to the cash-generating unit
of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Zhong Qi
CGU"), for impairment testing.

PR N R ] A R Ay H At
BILEENRERNR

BREBEHNE BB REBIERR
BeR(EBEERAIFERFEEH) KE
BEA ARK®1,463,611,0007T (2019
& AR¥1,463,611,0007T) & AR
1,252,429,0007C (20194 : AR
1,844,203,0007T) ERMEAR AR 2 &
BB AR RBERR AR RENBAA
MIRSELBEN ([ERRSELSBMN])
VAVE R (BRI & o 40 B 7% R 3% B9 5E42FR
FEEREBAMKB EE  REE
B ARY8,257,000CE Bt & AR A
ZEEWB AR EREABRBRAT
WIREeEASN ([EVRSEEEAM])
LAPER BRI, -

FERBEERERAT —Z T FR
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190

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Ample Mighty CGUs
have been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and are within Level
3 fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2019: 15%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Ample Mighty CGUs beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2019: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

The recoverable amount of the Zhong Qi CGU has
been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculation using cash flow projection based
on financial budget covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and is within Level 3
fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2019: Nil). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Zhong Qi CGU beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2019: Nil). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

17. BE @)

EENEROFEHAFHNEM
EBEEENRENR @

BHER S EEBEMN AR E SRR
ERARBEREEEKAEMETER -
ﬁEﬁH RIS REBADNIERNSREERE
E%ﬁtm/@*ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁErjﬁﬁ%ﬁ%'ﬁﬂ&
A E S EARNRBETENSE
=R - EARBRERERANMIAERE
156% (20194 : 16% ) » AR IEET BB
hFH ERHBRSEASBMZRERE
B 1 & K B3% (20194 : 3%) ° 3% 1&
ETTt BEEMS L RAFHER

BARESEABEMZJRESETIRE
HEARBEREEEKAEMETE -
ﬁﬁﬁ RIS REBADNIERNSREERE
E%ﬁta’]/@%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁ% TEE i

AN E 2R AR EBEIFTENS
=R - EARRERERANMIAERE
15% (20194 : &) - AL (BB A
FH)EARSELBENZEESREDN
BEERAE3% (20194 : #&) - ;ZIERE
THBEEET S ENRTFIEERE -
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17. GOODW"_L (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of
disposal calculations of the Ample Mighty CGUs for
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 and of the
Zhong Qi CGU for 31 December 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill and sponsorship rights
and service contracts:

Budgeted — The value assigned to the
budgeted revenue is the average
revenue achieved in the vyear
immediately before the budget
year, taking into account the
expected growth rate.

revenue

Discount rates — The discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific
risks relating the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used are with
reference to the long term
average growth rates for the
relevant markets.

B REERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

17. B8 @)

BHENRERUCEHAFEFHNEM
EBREENBEIR@®

ERREZEEAEEN2020F12A31H
M2019F 12 A31BNEHRREELE
LA K 5 E R 2020%F 12 A31 B E R
REEFBUNARBEREREEKA
RrEF - T TEBEEARHERS
REEHEE R BWHEFRES RE
TRENRNSERRER

BE WS — PERBEWNEN
BERERESFE

ZHIH—EHRER
MEH K BE
ZRFITEEERER o

LIpE R — FRZMBEREH
AN B AR R % B

LA B A4 TE LR

B % — FRAZHMERAS
=B W50 EH

FlERE -

EHBRERERAA B
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HWEF EE

31 December 2020

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated

2020%F12A31H

20201 18K

Operating
rights under 10T
arrangements

IOTZH T 2
i
RMB’000
ARETTT

Sponsorship
rights and
service
contracts
BYHER
MR &
RMB'000
ARBTT

GSP Licence
GSP

SRR
RMB'000
AREFT

Total

Akt
RMB000
ARETT

amortisation B - HIbR ety 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
Additions NE — 10,403 = 10,403
Transfer to other receivables (note 29) EREH M RERZRIE

(PB45E29) (86,880) = = (86,880)
Considerations for business combinations EBEHCHE

(note 42) (Ht3xa2) - (602,177) = (602,177)
Amortisation provided during the year FRNHEERE (7,676) - (221) (7,897)
Impairment during the year FRRE (3,588) = = (3,588)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 93,194 1,252,429 - 1,345,623
At 31 December 2020: 20208128318 :

Cost BN 149,639 1,252,429 4,185 1,406,253

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZEtEERRE (56,445) — (4,185) (60,630)

Net carrying amount EREEFE 93,194 1,252,429 — 1,345,623
31 December 2019 2019%12831H
At 1 January 2019: R2019F 1818 :

Cost BAR 489,543 1,728,026 4,185 2,221,754

Accumulated amortisation ESE §5 (124,973) = (1,141) (126,114)

Net carrying amount REEFH 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated R2019F1 A1EH

amortisation RO - R BT 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Contribution of intangible assets by FERERBETEE

non-controlling interest (note 50) & (P3E50) = 116,177 = 116,177
Transfer to other receivables (note 29) B H e M FNIE

(P £29) (157,305) = = (157,305)
Amortisation provided during the year FREEEE (15,927) — (2,823) (18,750)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12 31 191338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020: M2019F12A31B &

20201 A1H :

Cost PR 299,639 1,844,203 4,185 2,148,027

Accumulated amortisation RETH (108,301) = (3,964) (112,265)

Net carrying amount RAEEFE 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762

BRI A F I B PHEM AR & F
DEERERCESBAERERR
BRI IR N M MR E17

Sponsorship rights and services contracts with
indefinite useful lives are allocated to the Ample
Mighty CGUs for impairment testing. Details of
impairment testing are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

19. R—EEELQTAZKRE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARET T
513,028

RMB’000
ARETTT

DB EFE 514,100

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

AEESLERRMEHNT :

Place of Percentage of ownership
Particulars of registration and interest held by the Percentage of voting Principal
capital held business Group rights held by the Group activity
Ealipe=E AEBFAERER. ASERFEREEL
FTisEARE R o Bt ERiisd FTEXEK
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20194 20204 20194
CR Wugang (Hubei) Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 51 51 51 51 Hospital
Hospital Management RMB433,041,528 China consulting
Co., Ltd. services
("CR Wugang”)
EBRRMOBL)BREE SMEAARE HE/ B b AR
BRAR(TEBRM]) 433,041,5287C R A,
The above investment is indirectly held by the L ETBAAARBEERFE -
Company.
CR Wugang, which is considered a material joint EFRMERRBAEENEREGE R

venture of the Group, is accounted for using the equity

method.

Bl A AREEIEARK -

EHBRERERAA TER

it
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PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—BE&EE&EARAZRE@w

(continued)

NEREER T B BRI B R B A5 B R
2 MEBEHERBESHTERRNER
EITTHE WO RAMEHRRBPARE
BEETHE

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of CR Wugang adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the financial statements:

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBETIT

194

Cash and cash equivalents BHeBEEEEBY 96,766 43,825
Other current assets HEMReEE 411,666 461,641
Current assets mENEE 508,432 505,466
Non-current assets FERBEE 7,960 8,844
Current liabilities mea R (113,804) (113,824)
Net assets BEFHE 402,588 400,486
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in  EAREER A E RN AH

the joint venture: TS ET AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHREENLLE 51% 51%
Effect of fair value adjustment at B A 7 (B E AR

acquisition e 308,780 308,780
Carrying amount of the investment KERMBR@EE 514,100 513,028
Revenue & = —
Interest income A B YA 3,164 2,661
Depreciation and amortisation I E K 892 900
Tax T 18 — —
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEFE R EEIRALEZE

for the year 2,101 8,828

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

DIHEEFRE

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

20. REEE RN B2 RE

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETIT
41,397 151

On 28 June 2020, the Group entered into a
restructuring agreement on the formation of two
associates (the "“Restructuring Agreement”) with Beijing
Jing Mei Group Company Limited (Jt RREEEHFRE A
A]) ("Jing Mei Group”), pursuant to which Beijing Jing
Run Renkang Hospital Management Co., Ltd. (“JR
Renkang”) and Beijing Jing Run Renkang Holdings Co.,
Ltd. ("JR Holdings"”) were established and held by the
Group and Jing Mei Group as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. Upon establishment, JR Renkang and JR
Holdings became associates of the Group. Pursuant to
the Restructuring Agreement, the entire interest in
Beijing Jing Mei Group General Hospital and its
branches and affiliated medical institutions (the “Jing
Mei Hospital Group”) would be injected into JR
Holdings by Jing Mei Group and JR Renkang would
provide hospital management services to the Jing Mei
Hospital Group

Particulars of the material associates are as follows:

Particulars of Place of registration
and business

BalpSES

capital held

FrisEAE R

JR Renkang Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China
RMB5,000,000

RELCE AfMERARS HE/ R E A
5,000,0007C

JR Holdings Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China
RMB1,000,000,000

REER AMERARK L/ E A

1,000,000,0007C

ANEER2020F6 A28 AL RS
EBERAA(TRESE]) 542K /M H
s NRIFI EA R ([EARE] -
BRIt R CREREEERA
A(RBCER)) Rt R B CRER
BRABR(TFBEER] THAEE
RrHEBE DR FHEL9% K51% ° K
Mg RBCERERBEERKAAEE
N E o IRBEMARE LR RKE
EBER RESR B EEME (R
HEREED SHREEEFARE
TR - FOBC R R BT & E iR
B EERE -

EABEAANARDT :

Percentage of ownership interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities

AERERERAEESZBDL XK
2020 2019
20205 2019%F
49 —  Provision of hospital
management
services
REEREERY
49 —  Provision of
corporate
management
services
REQAERRY

The above investments are indirectly held by the
Company.

FRRETIRARRIEERE -

ERBRERARAT —T_TFH

1%



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. NBRE R TR ZRE W

(continued)

RECEEFBERRESARENE
RESE QB R AL AR -

JR Renkang and JR Holdings are considered material
associates of the Group and are accounted for using
the equity method.

TRHBT BB CREMEERD
MBERME  MABEENSRIzE
BERNEZRETTHE  TERESY
TR ) BREE A 1T HI Bk

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of JR Renkang and JR Holdings
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:

JR Renkang  JR Holdings
FHECE FOEER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT
Current assets mBNE E 103,300 13,573
Non-current assets EMENE E — 10
Current liabilities mENAE (30,776) (1,624)
Net assets BETFE 72,524 11,959
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in B2 ZN & E pA B & A B AY
the associates: e AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEENLLE 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the AEERD(EE QA
associates and carrying amount of the BEFERZEEDN
investments BREE 35,537 5,860
Revenue & 92,736 3,491
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEFBERE2EWAELE
for the year 67,524 1,959
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Bt M R I

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’'s associates that are not

individually material:

Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) i fil/N
and total comprehensive income/ M/ (B8 R2E
(loss) for the year WA/ (EBE) B
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBE AR ZIRE
Group's investments in the BEREE

associates

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

20. REBEE R B Z2RE @

TRIR T HRAKEE BB IEERAEE

ERANRBHBHER

2020
20204

RMB'000
ARETT

(151)

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARBTT

144

151

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS

21. REIOTER < EWWRIE

2020 2019

20204 20194

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

B 5 ARBTFT ARBTT

At 1 January ®1A1H 92,555 123,812

Repayment from IOT hospitals KB I0TEE 2 &R (13,353) (9,022)

Interest income FLBE YA 6 9,588 10,206
Reclassification to other BN BEEZHMER

receivables FRIA 29 = (32,441)

At 31 December M12H31H 88,790 92,555
Less: Current portion included & @ &F ATEfIFHE -
in prepayments, REBESREAM

deposits and other FEW R IE 2
receivables BVHAEB 7 29 (11,576) (11,576)
Non-current portion JEENEREE & 77,214 80,979
ERBREREGRATD —T-_TFH 197
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PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 21. 2REIOT &P 2 FE W IE (=)

22.

(continued)

Pursuant to the IOT arrangements with certain not-for-
profit hospitals, the Group made investment amounts
to the I0T hospitals that will be repaid to the Group
(the "Repayable Investment Amounts”) in return for
the operating rights of the 10T hospitals over a tenure
ranging from 16 to 48 vyears. The Repayable
Investment Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
will be repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the 10T arrangements.

LOAN TO A SPONSORED HOSPITAL

Loan to a sponsored hospital
B

22.

BEBEETIFEFBRMIOTEHE - &
SERIOTERELIRESE %52
EREERASE([EEERES
) MIBREUOTERMKELRE - A5
16E48F - EEERESCHAER
B WERIOTREI RIS
FEHHEETAEEH -

o —EEREERERNE

N
TA

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
AR®ETT

RMB’000
ARETT

[ — 2B IR A

51,197 55,062

The loan to a sponsored hospital is unsecured, bears
interest at the prevailing benchmark lending interest
rate of 4.75% (2019: 4.75%) per
promulgated by the People’'s Bank of China and is
repayable in November 2023.

annum as

m—HRREERRERENERNRER
o FREAEPEARBITEMIIRT
EREEFEML.75% (2019F -
4.75%) M ZBR2023F 11 AEE -
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Listed equity investment, at fair value

AR

EHABRARE - BAA

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

EETEEHESE

/&

ABRZENEMEE

2020
20204

2019
20194F
RMB’000
ARBFT

RMB’'000
ARETTT

(note (i) BE (M) 92,718 113,485
Unlisted investments, at fair value JEEMRE  BAR
(note (ii)) B1E (FEE(i)) 105,296 244,769
198,014 358,254
Analysed into: 2R i1
Current portion B EB 105,296 244,769
Non-current portion ERENE D 92,718 113,485
198,014 358,254

Notes:

(if)

The listed equity investment was classified as financial assets at
FVTPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. It was held for
long-term strategic purposes. The Group does not intend to

dispose of it within twelve months after the reporting period.

The unlisted investments were wealth management products issued
by banks in Mainland China, with expected annual return ranging
from 2.8% to 3.1% (2019: 3.7% to 4.7%) per annum. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVTPL as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest.

The fair value of the Group’s listed equity investment
at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately RMB63,340,000.

fat

(i)

(ii)

HRAEERETNEBEMEERARRR
ABEERDREER  RETRARESEA
NARBEAEEEZHFARENERE
B DRAERPERBERS AEEEER
BEHRT_EAREE -

FEEMRERTHEAMBITETNG = EE
Ed Bt F Rz EE28%ZE3.1% (2019
F:37%%E47%) 2 c BREERR &R
ETERARS RS - B LR E S
BANAARBEFEEEZH I ABZNG

RUMBHREAKZBAH AEE LT
BAREMDOABEORARE
63,340,000 7T °

EHBRERERAA

TER

it

[
4

[
Ay

199



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

24.

25.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
AMORTISED COST

HibRBERETENESH
ﬁE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
AREEFTT

RMB'000
ARETT

Unlisted debt investments, FLEMEBRE -
at amortised cost tirg: Xz DN 265,022 25,114
Analysed into: Pak =1
Current portion mENE D 164,927 25,114
Non-current portion JEREN B 100,095 —
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's other financial H 22020128318 Z"EEE ML

assets at amortised cost represented unlisted debt
investments with fixed interest rates ranging from
1.05% to 3.46% (2019: 3.05%) per annum and
maturity dates in 2021 to 2022 (2019 : 2020).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In the prior year, the operation of 999 Medical Clinic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (999 Clinic”) was suspended as
the location of the site was included in the local urban
renewal plan. The Group entered into an agreement
with a real estate company in which the property of
999 Clinic will be demolished and a new property with
a floor area of no less than that of the demolished
property will be given to 999 Clinic as compensation
when the construction and the development of the
new property have been completed. Accordingly,
property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
RMB76,269,000 were transferred to other non-current
assets in the prior year.

25. £

BENAGTENSREERIELTER
®E  BEEMEREF1.05%E3.46%
(20194 : 3.05%) ' B/ Hi B /20214
%2022 (20194 : 20204 ) »

HitbERBEE

NE—FE  BRMEEHATEEN
e AERET=NABEMZIOR
ﬂll)ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁt A (= NP2 HiE

o REBE—EMENREI T —
IEJWJ* CHEH=Z NPT I ERR
WHEFER T SRR B - I H R
BB DR IRBR MR IR A
=hMZEERME - At - RE—F
EREEEAARY76,269,0007T K )
¥ BEARBERZHMIERDE
Eo
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26. INVENTORIES

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

26. &

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIT AREFIT

Pharmaceuticals &0 125,723 53,480
Medical devices and medical BESWNMEREN

consumables 16,312 8,641

142,035 62,121

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

27. EREZRERERRE

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTET
Trade receivables W E 5 FIB
— Public health insurance programs and — A HEFEREBHEI K&
social organisations for medical BERGH A
services 214,361 =
— Other customers — HEFR 429,319 619,453
Bills receivables i 400 —
Impairment EE (25,977) (755)
618,103 618,698

The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
periods range from 30 to 180 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

REEREFHRFEREENUEESR
it BREFPKRIN IRFPBES

ALK - (EFREA30E180K - A%
I B0 kR AR B A R LS SR T A 4 R A B
T WHRBREEESIEMN - UREEE
B - S RERETHEMGHER
REEWEFEWE 5 KB REKREE
R EEAER AR REMEES
BIEME - BB S RBERERER A
BB -

EHBRERERAA T4

it
b=n|

[
Ay
[
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27.

(continued)

EWEZREREWREE @

R & BRREWE 5508 R EREED
FREC DT (IR E B H R FNBR B iE 1
w T

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREFIT ARETIT

Within 1 year 16 A 540,565 552,411
1 to 2 years 1224 75,382 66,238
2 to 3 years 2E3F 2,156 49
618,103 618,698

R E SR EREEERENEFBER

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

202

of trade receivables are as follows: N
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT
At beginning of year F 1) 755 65
Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries U iE & GFH B A 7] 33,585 —
Impairment losses, net (note 8) BB EEFRE (sEs) 20,432 781
Amount written off as uncollectible R B H M EE & 58 (28,795) (91)
At end of year FR 25,977 755

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than three years and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

REHRE B PR BEREETRED
i ATEBRHEEER - BEXRERA
BERUBEEANZERTFERN D E8
HIRE - At ERR TR SR -
ERRENRERS AR ESHNER
BEFM - BAORMARREEAANR R
ANEENAEBENER - —KRME -
IREWEZHEAR=FIAL X H
W EHITITED - RIMEH R
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. EWWESREREREE @
(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk EBEASEFARBEETENEKE
exposure on the Group’'s trade receivables using a SZRENEERBREREIN AT

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020 1202012 H31H

Past due
#61 2R

Less than 1to 2 2to3 Over
Current 1 year years years 3 years
BAl 2R1F 182 2E3F HiBE3F

Trade receivables from public WA HKE R E

health insurance programs RERRBLEHE

and social organisations for BES

medical services (note): FRIE (HFEE) -
Expected credit loss rate EHREERERX 10.94% - - - —  10.94%
Gross carrying amount BEREE

(RMB'000) (AR FT) 214,361 = = = — 214,361
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE

(RMB'000) (AR FT) 23,451 = = = = 23,451

Trade receivables from other EREMEFES
Eod

customers: IR
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEX = 0.06% 0.37% 1.82% 100% 0.59%
Gross carrying amount BERmEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥TT) 13,859 335,740 75,512 2,196 2,012 429,319
Expected credit losses EHEEESE
(RMB'000) (AR¥TT) = 193 281 40 2,012 2,526
As at 31 December 2019 7"20195F12A31H
Past due
#1 HR
Less than 1to 2 2to3 Over
Current 1 year years years 3 years
BRI 2R1F 1226 2E3F HB3IF
Expected credit loss rate EHEEREX = 0.07% 0.46% 1.58% 100% 0.12%
Gross carrying amount BEREAE
(RMB’000) (AR®FIT) 7,080 545,713 66,544 50 66 619,453
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥TF ) = 382 306 1 66 755
Note: Under the current policies of the PRC public health insurance e : BEFEAEBERBZIMBITEE
programs, a government-approved quota is assigned annually to HEEEET TR A LB RRREE
each medical institution in respect of the medical fees that are WE B EEAES R — AR ZEE -
allowed to be recovered from the public health insurance AEBERBUEHREIE - SEFTALBER
programs. The Group estimates, when preparing its financial AR IZEPE FTETEERMNEE -
statements, the quota approved by the public health insurance I TE B 25 3R R A B &S AT R [E] §) FRIE FE R
authorities and assigned to its hospitals and recognises the AR - BB MR IEEAEERER B
impairment losses for the amount that it estimates to be TE R SRR A 8 52 e U 5 K8 o

unrecoverable in the statement of profit or loss and write off such
trade receivables in the statement of financial position when such
amount becomes unrecoverable.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for bills M2020F 12 A31H » EREEATEH
receivables as at 31 December 2020 is within one year e EERAAE—FAN - KR2020F
and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 was 12A31AEEBERETK -

assessed to be minimal.

EHBRERERAA
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A
[
A
B
it
>d

203



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

28. EHEE

28. CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 31 December 1 January

2020 2019 2019

20204 20194 20194

12H31H 12H31H 1H1H

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETTT ARETFTT AREF T
Contract assets arising EHEEXRS :

from:

Hospital management B2 B 38 AR 7%

services 19,840 12,120 9,464

B H B B =t IR B8 B B IR AR A PR ER
B aR e iR E R RE A KEER
ARAEBEORRFRTE - ERER
FIRK AR (B E ST RIBEAGT
HE)  HRBEHNEENBEEHNH
BREWE SHFIE - 2020006 & E
B 3E 0 (20194F : 1 0) JhF R N2
performance rating assessments are finalised. The 88 B & IR AR S P2 -

increase (2019: increase) in contract assets in 2020

was the result of the increase in the provision of

hospital management services at the end of the year.

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of hospital management
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on the performance rating assessments of the Group.
The amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to
consideration become unconditional, i.e. when the

MI2ANBAMEENKEREER
ARER—FA -

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for
contract assets as at 31 December is within one year.

REHRE B PRABEREETRED
i AIERHEEER -AEANEE
BHEEEERANBER - KR
WESHARFRE  REARANEE

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets

are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

REWESHBENREERAEFE - &
HEEMNBEXRTIIREBEALFRAUERE
BRHOFFER S AR EKE 58S
HAREATE - ZaTE R T IR g4
R EXHENURREBEHTESNS
BBEEM - B AR R R AE R
BANGEREEENER - 12020
F&2019F 128318 ' BEFF A EE#E
-REOAND
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OTHER RECEIVABLES

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

29. ENFIE - REE R EME
eS|

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB’'000
ARETT

Prepayments to suppliers 1) 4 FE 78 2 5T B9 TR ST K 38,102 12,466
Current portion of receivables from I0T KRB I0TERT 2 FEUR KA
hospitals ") BV EAEE 11,576 11,576
Other receivable from “Yan Hua R EF B/ E M
Hospital” (note i) FE W SRR (B EEi) 189,747 189,747
Other receivable from “Jing Mei RETREER | AEMA
Hospital” (note ii) JE W sk Ia (Bt &) 86,880 —
Others HAth 47,337 7,121
373,642 220,910
Impairment RAE (1,247) (1,127)
372,395 219,783
Notes: B 5

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2019, 21 January 2019 and 17 April 2019, Beijing Yan Hua
Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Company Limited (it &%
(EBEEEELAEEIEAR AT (“Yan Hua Phoenix”), the sponsor of
Yan Hua Hospital, and Yan Hua Hospital unilaterally terminated the
IOT agreement entered into between the Group, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital (the “Yan Hua IOT Agreement”) from 21
January 2019. The Group has submitted a civil claim statement
against Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to the
Yan Hua |OT Agreement dispute to the Beijing Second
Intermediate People's Court on 17 April 2019 to seek the court's
ruling that the unilateral termination of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on 21 January 2019
shall be void.

Having considered the terms of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, the
Group has further claimed that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan Hua
|IOT Agreement. Accordingly, the Group reclassified the related
receivables and operating right under the IOT arrangement with
Yan Hua Hospital to other receivables during the year ended 31
December 2019.

On 18 December 2019, the Beijing Second Intermediate People's
Court issued a judgement in favour of the Group. Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital filed an appeal to the Beijing Higher People’s
Court in January 2020. The court hearing was held on 26 October
2020 and the judgement is yet to be announced.

As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, the Group
entered into the Restructuring Agreement with Jing Mei Group on
28 June 2020. Pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement, the |0T
agreement with Jing Mei Hospital (the “Jing Mei IOT Agreement”)
was terminated. The Group is entitled to a refund from Jing Mei
Hospital of the carrying amount of the operating right as a result of
the early termination of the Jing Mei IOT Agreement. Accordingly,
the Group reclassified the operating right under the 10T
arrangement with Jing Mei Hospital to other receivables during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

(i)

A A E AEA2019F1 158 « 20194
1A218 K2019F4R1 7B R EFTIHEE -
REBRAOBBRALREICERBREEE
BHRAR ([FEBE]) FMFEIBFRR2019
F1A2IBREFELILEAER - FKEE
K FAC BB AT S WIOTH % ([#ALIOT#H
&) o AEBBER2019F4 17 B E/LIOT
HHEFBAARTE_FRARZRERR
ERFREFHECERRIECE - EZROE
B 1 7 #e (L BB R (b B BT 201941 B 21H
B E R IACIOT 1 S A o

ZEIFACIOTHHNGH - NEEE—FE
SKIR(L BB R 3R B BT B S 5 R AL IOT 13
HZEBEHA® B BE20196F12A3181E
FE - AEEBEFERIOTZH THEH
FEU R IBAM RS S ST S BT H R

R °

R2019F 128188 ' Ik EME—HRARE
REMABRFER  AEEEF - HEA
BB 2 R20205F1 AR SR A
RIEB iR E5F - W E R 2020510826 HF
BEEREN » MIARBMHIR o

WA TS MR M 20FT I - ASBEHERESE
E 20206 A28H T EA T © RIBE
g EREEERIOTHE ([ REIOTH
FHIRIE o {ERIBATR IE REIOT R 5% 19 5
e PSR e A Sl
BEMNRR - HEL  NREBREE2020F
12ANBIEFEERRERER 2 EHIOTER
PTRREEES B H M ERERE -

EHBRERERAA
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29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 29. ERRE RIEBERHEME

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which
there was no relevant history of default. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2020 was 0.3% (2019: 0.5%).

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of other receivables are as follows:

EIERTY

FHlBETRREHEMEERSHRH
BHFESLHRESMEMERRES
e EABRT  E8@EKRE S
B2EREBMNEL BIBLERAERE
TEEITREIN - ARBEEEUEE
J BR & B AR S50 0 R AR A AR R B0 TR
Al e R2020F 12 A31BIRAMEIEX
£0.3% (20194 : 0.5%) °

A R Y OB R B B RS R BB R
mF :

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT

At beginning of year F 1) 1,127 333

Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries 488, & GHH B A 7] 615 —
Impairment losses/(reversal of EEECREBRE

impairment losses), net (note 8) o) FEE (Hsk8) (495) 794

At end of year FR 1,247 1,127

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30. ;@3&@%@%%%&5#&#
¥ TA

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREETIT
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTTA 5 2,698,107 2,006,220
Time deposits EHFR 20,717 —
2,718,824 2,006,220

Less: Pledged time deposits as B BRI JE T

guarantee for the acquisition of H& 4 25 1 7E HA

non-controlling interests PN (17,454) —
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMBEEHEEY 2,701,370 2,006,220
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

31.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB2,688,115,000 (2019: RMB1,993,848,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of
delivery goods, is as follows:

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

30, RE R BREEEBEY R EEH

31.

FRm

RBERR - AEBEUARETENSE
S RBTEBSERBARE
2,688,115,0007T (20194 : AR ¥
1,993,848,0007T) - AR I T BEH B
BREBKEMERE  EREPEAM
SNEBIRIRD R AETE - SERMESE
ME - ANEE S BEREETINES
BREBNRTBAREEBAEME
eggz o

RITES UET RRITHEZBFIERIA
B BHERERFRAN T —RE=E
ANE  REARENRRR S ZRKM
E o WIRE B # 52 B E B TF 5RM) R BRER
MB - RITEHNREBRFRATFAR
BRI NEENBN R ©

BNEZREREANRE

WERNENE ZHIEMENRIER
BN ERRZS B EBERIT

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBFT

RMB’000
ARETIT

Within 60 days 60K A 347,108 170,322
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 186,274 62,657
Over 180 days 180K A 30,743 8,324

564,125 241,303

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally granted a credit term of 0 to 90
days.

ENESRARBNERERSRE  —K
HOEQORMEEHIRE -

EHBRERERAA T4

it
b=n|

[
Ay
[
Ay



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B
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32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2. HWENRERESTER

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Staff cost payables FE B TR A 249,946 85,290
Deposits from suppliers HEBRES 28,182 23,190
Other PRC tax payable PR EMEAT S 29,080 21,102
Unpaid travel expenses and Az ZIRAS &
administrative expenses TEHER 13,052 6,531
Unpaid expenses in relation to 2 H ¥R HEBEL
professional services AT 14,774 11,947
Payables for purchases of BEME  BELEEEZ
property, plant and J& 5 3018
equipment 4,838 1,880
Unpaid consideration for the WEEMT B A Rla
acquisition of subsidiaries REAAFRE 17,184 190
Payable to Healthcare Security BB EIRERBFIE
Administration 13,709 —
Contract liabilities AHEE (a) 117,176 4,666
Others Ht 89,161 97,324
577,102 252,120
Note: B o
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AXHEBENPMAWT

31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
20204 20194 20194
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARBTIT ARBTIT
Short-term advances received from BIREF R EE®R
customers
General healthcare services A BERY 110,924 — —
Hospital management services BPr B IR RS - 1,649 1,055
GPO business GPO7% 6,252 3,013 11,667
Other hospital-derived services Hofth B BT 5T A BR 75 = 4 32
Total contract liabilities AR aEERE 117,176 4,666 12,754
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to provide BHBEBEREGEBERBMERREE
general healthcare services and hospital management services, to RS RN ER BRSWLBAEMEZE
deliver medical products, such as pharmaceuticals, medical devices B - AR IR M H i B B 67 A AR 75 o kB
and medical consumables, and to provide other hospital-derived B R EREARR - 20206 & AV A BV N (2019
services. The increase (2019: decrease) in contract liabilities in F R EERHRAFRE A O BRAT
2020 was mainly due to the acquisition/consolidation of hospitals B (2019 : RFRIEE P W H) EGPOZ
during the year (2019: the decrease in short-term advances ARG DB -

received from customers in relation to GPO business at the end of
the year).
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33. PAYABLES TO THE SPONSORED 33. ENENERRNRE
HOSPITALS
The payables to the Sponsored Hospitals are FES R i RE BE P SN TE A SRR - AR
unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 0.35% (2019: 50.35% (20194 : 0.35% ) * ZBIREK
0.35%) per annum and are repayable on demand. EE -

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 34. GTERITER
BORROWINGS

Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
Current ik (%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRFI=(%) APHE ARBTT BENE%) IHE  ARBTRT
Borrowings &= 1-3 2021 684,301 34 2020 578,337
— unsecured — mE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT
Analysed into: DT ¢
Bank loans repayable: RITEREE
Within one year or on demand —FRFIZEK 684,301 578,337
Except for a bank borrowing of RMB12,000,000 Br—IER2020F 12 A31H BB AR
(2019: Nil) as at 31 December 2020, which is 12,000,0007T (20194 : &) KR 1T 15
denominated in RMB, the remaining bank borrowings TUAARBEHESIN - R TRITEKITIA
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. HBITEHE °

EHBRERERAA T4
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. ER{KERFE
REEBAGE

2020 2019
20204 20194

Defined benefit plans

RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
ARETT

Total estimated benefit payable to HETENEERABRBT
qualifying staff HBEE 47,323 18,120

The Group operates unfunded defined benefit plans for AEFEARESERMERERMNS ER
qualifying staff of Jian Gong Hospital and Huaikuaug ABEERBEENRERNGE - RIE
Hospital. Under the plans, the qualifying staff are ZEFE AEBABNEZRIKE
entitled to retirement benefits. A e

The plans expose the Group to interest rate risk and ZetElE AR EHEEF ERARRKE
the risk of changes in the life expectancy for the EMESHECHRR -

pensioners.

REBMBEEZHEZFHWOT

The movements in the present value of the defined
benefit obligations are as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5E ARBTT ARBTT

At 1January ®m1A1H 18,120 17,638

Consolidation of a subsidiary AH—REWNE

NG]! 42 26,318 —

Current service cost B AR A A 802 191

Interest cost =N N 1,351 508

Benefit paid =ENE R (3,462) (1,875)
Remeasurement losses in other RE b 2 EEE

comprehensive loss HEFTEEE 4,194 1,658

At 31 December M®12A31H 47,323 18,120

The remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations
represent mainly actuarial losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions, financial assumptions and
experience adjustments.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

REBMEENEHAHEZEREANA
OfRR - M RRME 5 AR
EENREEEBSE -

FUERMNE RSB ETIER B H
BUERRBEMENEFESE -
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. R EMNZFE @

(continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued) RAEBAE @
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end MEMKREANETER/ERRKDT ¢

of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
20204F 20194
Discount rate AhIR & 3.05%-3.80% 3.00%
Expected rate of the average per FEFFAB AT RKRAZ
capital disposable income growth ERE 10% 10%
Average longevity at retirement age for ERIEERIKAERFH
current pensioners = 94 94
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant HEFREHR  HEEZERXNEEH
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is EAMO TR :

shown below:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in defined Decrease in defined
Increase in benefit in rate/ benefit
rate/year obligations year obligations

FLE & F FLE & F
M=/ BEEM, M=/ BEEM,
FEUER N ORd)  F8RD O 4)

% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
2020 2020
Discount rate BHIR & 1.00 (4,231) 1.00 5,204
Expected average per TEER A AT LR WA
capital disposable F iR R
income growth rate 1 3,530 1.00 (2,877)
Average longevity at RINFROFHED 1 year 1 year
retirement age 15 2,174 15 (2,256)
2019 20194
Discount rate RAIR =X 1.00 (1,126) 1.00 1,020
Expected average per TEER A AT R A
capital disposable Fi51E & K
income growth rate 1.00 1,190 1.00 (1,008)
Average longevity at BRIKFRHOFEHS® 1 year 1 year
retirement age 14 1,372 14 (1,465)
ERBREREGRAT —T-TFH 21
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. k@R EE w0

212

(continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that
changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group expected to make
payment of RMB4,604,000 (2019: RMB1,872,000)
under the defined benefit plans in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

RERFE & )

EXEINNBERED T RRIE—ETE
MFH - &I AR HEE AR ERE IR
BENTEMRRBELSESCMERTE
BHNETEENZE - HRESTER
EERRNEC  WRFMEEMERE
P& o EXE2FNERE DM AR L RBR
RERMNBENERZ(  BRERT
KA e B AR -

20206 12H318 ' AEERERT
BAETE B mE KRBT ARR =@
AEHEHMAREAL604,000T
(20194 : AR#¥1,872,0007T) °
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36

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

AR

FRAEEHRABEREEZESHUT

EERERR

Fair value Depreciation
adjustments Fair value allowance in
arising from changes of excess of
acquisition of financial assets related
subsidiaries at FVTPL depreciation
KD EE
HUERB
UGNl 0k LA E
ARABEEAE QnEEE RmERE Hith
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 316,374 — — — 316,374
Deferred tax charged/ FRME,/(GTA)
(credited) to the mEER
consolidated statement BEERT
of profit or loss during (HiEE12)
the year (note 12) (626) 2,274 - — 1,648
Gross deferred tax #2019 12A
liabilities at 318 %2020F
31 December 2019 and 1A1BZEBE
at 1 January 2020 EHBAE 315,748 2,274 = — 318,022
Deferred tax charged/ FRME/(GTA)
(credited) to the BABRHE
consolidated statement ZIEIER
of profit or loss during (H#E12)
the year (note 12) — (1,579) 1,690 282 393
Gross deferred tax 122020512 A
liabilities at K M= bid
31 December 2020 HMEARE 315,748 695 1,690 282 318,415
ERERERERAT —ZT-_TFWH 213
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36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. Eﬁﬁ(%)
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE

Impairment of
financial and

contract assets

CREEHEE

ZRIE

RMB'000

AREETIT

At 1 January 2019 ©K2019%F181H -
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFFAGEETREK 2

statement of profit or loss during the year EERE (FFsE12)
(note 12) 188

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H k20204

and at 1 January 2020 1AMTBZBELERBEE 188
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFFAGEETRR 2R

statement of profit or loss during the year FERT (FiaE12)

(note 12) 800
Gross deferred tax assets at 7R2020F 12 A31 H 2 BRI

31 December 2020 WMIBEE 988
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36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of

financial position. The following is an analysis of the
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

36. IEIER @
EEHIBEEE @
FIBRME  BUEELEFHIBEEEMNERE
BEEMBMRBRRFIES - U AL
B EmEms WREHRSREND
r

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AR®EFTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in AR A B TEARNIREK FER
the consolidated statement of BEREFIEEEFE

financial position 188 Ty
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R A B TSR R IR K FER
the consolidated statement of BEERIEEEFE

financial position (317,615) (317,834)

Net deferred tax liabilities EAERTE B (EFEE (317,427) (317,834)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in UWTIEE MERELEHRIBEEE ¢

respect of the following items:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBTT

Tax losses M EE 19,079 37,007
Deductible temporary differences ARz ERER 22,784 23,374
41,863 60,381

The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.

bBiEREARELRBEE/IN =
hERNFHNEEBEREERESBEA
A R FE RN o il IR B A
RBBRLEHRBEE - TTHARNERFRKE
AR R TR B 85 2 RTBEE
B -
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36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and a
joint venture established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint venture will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB2,265,509,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB2,019,815,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

6. IELER @

FEERHIEEE @

BIEFPBEPEMSEE - HERBEARLD
RIBINEREREMINEIREET IR
BIRR BBU10% MTERS - BAEKE
200841 A1 H#BAER - #RAMN2007F
12A3MB 2 BFTEEKE - IR+
Bl BN IR B E M EER AR
WitE - AT EABEATERTE - 5t
AEEMS  BATER10% ° ALt -
FLAE2008F 1 A1 HFIHE £/ W
AEEE B ESEEFR B R AT
B AR BRI ERBTERT -

7202012 A31H - MBEAAREER
REAMAEY 2B AR RAEERRIA
BUANTEIRT 2 REE B W BB TE
R MERIELR - EERE - St
BARIME & QRIE AR A RS E
B B8 U 25 A AT RE MEERE o 7220204F 12
A31H  VEERELEHEEBE ZH
RHPBERHHE AT REE AT ZKE
HEEREZECRBENARAREK
2,265,509,0007C (20194 : AR ¥
2,019,815,0007T) °

AR BRI & B A A
e Bk R -
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37. PROVISION

At 1 January 2020

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Additional provision
Amounts utilised during the year

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

37. &%

Pending
medical
dispute
litigations

FREBE

FEFD

RMB'000

AR®ET T

720201 H18 -

U BE — R BT B A &) 42 5,029
BH AN A 1,052
FRNEHEEEE (2,241)

At 31 December 2020

7202012 A31H

3,840

The provision for pending medical dispute litigations
was estimated based on management’s best estimate
of the Group’'s liabilities of the settlement of the
pending medical dispute litigations. The estimation is

FRBEFZFANRERREEERE
HEMARNEEFZNANFREE
FRYEH ) S =R A E &Y - TETER
AR S WHEBEENER TETE

reassessed on an ongoing basis and revised where al °
appropriate.

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. B
Shares &)
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Authorised: EE
3,040,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,040,000,000 1% & i
HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% 7o #) & 38 i 633 633
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
1,296,676,516 ordinary shares of 1,296,676,516 % & Ix
HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% 7T #) & 38 i 267 267

Share awards

Details of the Share Award Scheme and the shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme are included
in note 39 to the financial statements.

B 17 82 B

R i 52 Rt 8 AR R Ak 17 82 Bt 81 3R
FY B0 B R 1B B0 B 7 TR AR P R 39 -
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme as a means to recognise the
contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel, employed experts and core
employees.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme
include the Company’s directors, senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group.
The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 7 July 2014, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 August 2018. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to each eligible participant in
the Share Award Scheme is limited to 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 August
2018.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share
Award Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected
and the number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme is determined by the board of
directors. The board of directors also determines
whether the shares will be awarded with or without
payment of a price by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price"”) and the amount of the Grant Price. The
shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme
will be purchased by a trustee (the “Trustee”) from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Group and
be held on trust for the Selected Participant until such
shares are vested with the Selected Participant in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in
respect of any shares held on trust for the Company
or the Selected Participant.

39. R A&

R2014F7 878 @ NAQ BRI 5 82
BhEtElc UREFTEERAS - EBREH
REZOEENERI A TEE -

R RENET SIS IE 2 EERFERQF
MEE ALEEREERE  JEMNZE
RMZ LB T - iy ZENET 2 82014
F7ATERERBARI0OF BRIESTT
HUB S &R ©

EHZE2018E8A31H @ BIERD LB
EEAATRTHERAROEBER S A
RATEEITRABS% © AT AR TR
DB EINEEE B2 EENTAR
DEERNARRNR2018F8A31HE
BATIRAH1% o

BE2NENRBFENERBEE
(MEE2EE ) - RERD EE)ET S 2
BORNBEHEESRE -EFQE
RERTHEEZ2EEINER (K
HERDMELEBRNSBERE TR
o ZEATZFTEAD BREB A 82
BIRFEIE TR - SSIEAKEEER
RBePRAFMESEER - WAMEFETR
REERSEERE  BIELERNKRE
i REFFEINRERBREESEE D
Ik o

XEANBEHAEET A FAHNARLQA
HEESEENERRDITERRE -
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 39. IR R B & o
The following shares awarded under the Share Award FA - BERDRZEFEIR DA AT
Scheme were outstanding during the year: 1 B AR BT

Number of shares

#E
Share price as
at the date of As at As at
grant Grant Price 1 January Granted during  Vested during Forfeited 31 December
Date of grant HK$ HK$ 2020 the year the year during the year 2020 Vesting period
el =P
HER REER #2020 120206
REAH BT ‘ 1A18 FREL FNEE / 12R318 GEHHE
30 May 2019 5.27 5.27 9,279,900 - (4,894,950) = 4,384,950 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
2019454308 201951818 2202154 A1R
30 May 2019 5.27 = 9,239,900 = = (260,000 8,979,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
2019458308 201951818 2202254 A1R
18,519,800 - (4,894,950) (260,000) 13,364,850

Number of shares

R gE
Share price as
at the date of As at As at
Grant Price 1 January Granted during  Vested during Forfeited 31 December
Date of grant HK$ 2019 the year the year during the year 2019 Vesting period
J ; X R2019% 72019%
R B H ; 1A18 FRE Fy 128318 GEHH
22 December 2015 8.98 9.21 207,334 — (207,334) a — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
2015% 127228 20156128228 %2019%1 418
22 December 2015 8.98 — 162,667 = (162,667) = — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20156127228 2016612 82282201961 A18
30 May 2019 527 527 — 9,279,900 - — 9,279,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
2019F5 4308 20191 A18E2021F4 18
30 May 2019 527 = = 9,279,900 = (40,000) 9,239,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
201958300 201961 A18E202254A18
370,001 18,559,800 (370,001) (40,000) 18,519,800
During the year, the Group recognised equity-settled RAFE - NEEERILE =L S AR
share-based payment expense of RMB8,721,000 (2019: DR FREY A AREKS 721,000
RMB13,083,000). (20194 - AR#13,083,0007T) °

&

it
b=n|

EHBRERERAA
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A
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 39. R R B & @
The movements in the Company's treasury share FARRAIRERRMDFEE 2 Z
reserve during the year are as follows: T

Treasury
share reserve
EFRG, &
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H (384,650)
Award of shares R AR (D 99,587
Vesting of shares 810 57 B 1,918
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 R2019F 12 A31H &
20201 A1H (283,145)
Sale of treasury shares & EFRGD 380
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H (282,765)
40. RESERVES 40. f# &
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the AEENAREEMUREENRERE
movements therein for the current and prior years are BHERMBEREFEI00EEFE 1068
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in REERERRERTIIR -
equity on pages 105 to 106 of the financial
statements.
(a) Statutory surplus reserve (a) ZEBRBAE

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a portion of the profits of the
Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China has
been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve
which are restricted to use.

(b) Share-based payment reserve (b)

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of shares awarded which are yet to be
vested, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to treasury share reserve and
capital reserve when the related share awards are
vested, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related share awards expire or be
forfeited.
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40 RESERVES (continued)

(c) Actuarial changes reserve

The actuarial changes

note 2.4 to the financial statements.

41.

INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

reserve comprises the
remeasurements arising from changes
demographic assumptions, financial assumptions
and experience adjustments, as further explained
in the accounting policy for defined benefit plan in

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

40. f#E @
(c) BRESEREE

in

41.
AEMELE

BEEBEEDETERADR
2 MBRENERABYE L
M AN EH R - BB R
K2 4% REEF BN B
BRSO — SRR o

BEBEAFEREZ ZHFE

TREHNEBESEAERERNAR

non-controlling interests are set out below: SEWE RTINS :
2020 2019
20204 20194
Percentage of equity interest held by HIFZERERFAN
non-controlling interests: A& AE LA
Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. IERmREBRERAR
(“Jian Gong Hospital") (MME=8k]) 20% 20%
Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd JHEBEEEFRE A
("Run Neng") ([HEgel) 35% 35%
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to FEE A% HE 2 JE 5 B Y
non-controlling interests: FEFME(E8) :
Jian Gong Hospital 2= B 2,110 10,937
Run Neng EaE 3,960 (101)
Dividend paid to non-controlling XA T HREE B IEER
interests of Jian Gong Hospital w2 IRE 10,454 10,483
Accumulated balances of REE B2 R IEER
non-controlling interests at the M
reporting date:
Jian Gong Hospital 2= B P 110,092 118,242
Run Neng EAE 118,430 114,470
EBPEEERERAT —ZT_TFRH
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BB E AFERERZFER

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BB A E @
|NTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial LB AR B ERSZHT M
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts T TR BESBRAAMEKE
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Al &% :

Jian Gong
Hospital Run Neng
fi2 = %&bt e
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT AR%®FTT
Revenue g == 620,710 13,933
Total expenses, net RFE T FE (610,159) (2,620)
Profit for the year FEFE 10,551 11,313
Total comprehensive income for the FEEEARARLREE
year 10,789 11,313
Current assets MBEE 496,193 232,225
Non-current assets FERBEE 288,435 111,586
Current liabilities MEBAGE (217,450) (5,441)
Non-current liabilities B EE (16,718) —
Net cash flows from operating KERFBERERE
activities FER 81,354 1,052
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & EEFTE(FTA)
activities HEmEFE 85,358 (8,841)
Net cash flows used in financing BEEBTARESRE
activities FRE (50,179) —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekReFED
cash equivalents SFIE OB ) 116,533 (7,789)
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BB E RFEERERE 2R
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING == NG
|NTERESTS (continued)

Jian Gong
Hospital Run Neng
fi2 = B2t e
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT
Revenue g 722,488 —
Total expenses, net BT FRE (667,805) (287)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE(&E8) 54,683 (287)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for  FEE2EW A (EE)

the year FRR 53,024 (287)
Current assets mENEE 505,923 215,471
Non-current assets EmEBNEE 286,757 111,586
Current liabilities wREAE (182,951) —
Non-current liabilities EREEE (18,522) —

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & & EEFTE,(FTA)

activities ReREFHE 136,366 (287)
Net cash flows used in investing KREEESFABRERE
activities R (28,122) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing REESEENFTE(FTA)
activities HEeREFRE (52,418) 215,758
Net increase in cash and cash BeMReEEYM 2
equivalents 12 0 56,326 215,471
EEEERRARAT —T-TFW 223
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During the vyear, the Group had following events/
transactions which constituted business combinations
in accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised) "“Business
Combinations” (“IFRS 3 (Revised)").

(@) On 3 December 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with China National Zhong Qi Group
Co., Ltd. (PEHEERTEHEEBRARF]) ("CNHTC"),
pursuant to which (i) a company, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital Company (“Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”),
would be established and held as to 75% by the
Group and 25% by CNHTC; and (i) cash of
RMB254,235,300 and the hospital-related assets
(e.g., sponsorship right, land use right, buildings
and medical equipment of a hospital in Jinan, the
PRC, etc.) would be contributed into Jinan Zhong
Qi Hospital by the Group and CNHTC,
respectively. Immediately after the completion of
transactions on 30 March 2020, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital became a subsidiary of the Group.

42.

RBAH

RAF  REENNTES, X HEK
B B B 75 e 5 Y R SB35 (1B A1) %75
& 6 J(TBIBR B %5 ¥R 5 2 R 3£ 35% (&
F1) 1) Frig M X A OF -

(@) H2019%12A3H ' AEEHAF
BERAEEEERAF ([FE
BRTEEE])FLHE - BIE
ZaE o (VK —MARER
BAERARAR(EmERE
frl) » REEFFRIS% KRG
REERTEREERHE K 25%H
o RAEEMARRHER R
BEESRRBEEABERKEA
AER#254,235 300 T HIE S A K
Bl B EE (FIR i - ti
fERAHE - BEYARPBRERE—
HERNEELES) - RS
2020F3 A30R &Rk - Em
FRBRAKAEREE —HKH B

AR
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

On 2 May 2020, the articles of association of
Huaibei
Hospital”) were amended. Having considered the
power of the Group based on the amended

Miner General Hospital (“Huaikuang

articles of association together with the relevant
service contract entered into by the Group and
Huaikuang Hospital, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group has obtained the practical
ability to direct the

Huaikuang Hospital unilaterally and control over

relevant activities of

Huaikuang Hospital since the effective date of the
amended articles of association on 2 May 2020.
liabilities of
were consolidated

Accordingly, the assets and

Huaikuang Hospital in the

Group’s financial statements thereafter.

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of Huaikuang Hospital and the
sponsorship right and service contract held by the
Group were recognised as other intangible assets.
Accordingly, the sponsorship right and service
contract with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB486,000,000 formed the consideration for the
business combination.

B REERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

42. ¥ S5 8tw

(b)

EHBRERERAA

MR2020F 5820 @ BT A%
B ([VETREERT)) 2 EFRIERETT
TR - ERNAEEEREBKR
B E 1R (G SRR R AR B8 Br 5T 37 AY
HERBER 2 EN EERA
NEBBEMER T T BERE
PABREE BB AL N RERR
BT B 12 il 4 o PN VETREE BT 18X
BEHEIRIEF M 20205 A2H
AW EBRBREONEERABES
HEAEENPBRE -

RIBEEBE A NEB /K
BEROERA  UHEAEERF
ERRBPEMREERERASHE
EEEE - HEM  BREE
AR #486,000,000 7T A £2 3% 4 F1
ARG & REA T ILIBXEBKE H 8
=

|
||
A
i
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 1 June 2020, the articles of association of
Beijing CEEC Hospital, Beijing CEEC Shuozhou
Hospital, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital,
Guangxi Hospital, Gaoxin District
Xingyuan Community Healthcare Centre, Gaoxin
District Tianle Community Healthcare Centre,
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road Community
Healthcare Centre and Hefei
Changning Community Healthcare Centre
(collectively, the
amended. Having considered the power of the
Group based on
association together with the relevant service

Hydropower

Gaoxin District

“Run Neng Hospitals”) were

the amended articles of

contracts entered into by the Group and the Run
Neng Hospitals, in the opinion of the directors,
the Group has obtained the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the Run Neng
Hospitals and control the Run Neng
Hospitals since the effective date of the amended
articles of association on 1 June 2020.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Run
Neng hospitals were consolidated in the Group's

over

financial statements thereafter.

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of the Run Neng Hospitals and the
sponsorship rights and service contracts held by
the Group were recognised as other intangible
assets. Accordingly, the sponsorship rights and
service contracts with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB116,177,000 formed the
consideration for the business combination.

42. ¥ 8 8tw

(c)
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42. ¥ S5 8tw

REXAHEH  HEEEIBK - ER
ET&JF?@%%%I&E’]TE&%U%E&E%
ZAREEAT:

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the
Run Neng Hospitals as at the dates of business
combinations were as follows:

Notes

Jinan
Zhong Qi Huaikuang Run Neng
Hospital Hospital ~ Hospitals
B HEE R
ERER b
RMB'000  RMB'000

Mz BABR
RMB'000

ARETT ARBTRT ARETT

Property, plant and equipment 1% - BB k& & 15 69,900 362,310 73,030 505,240
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16(a) 45,796 — 51,918 97,714
Inventories FE 6,450 29,313 20,857 56,620
Trade and hills receivables FEWE 5 3B R
EELI&ZK%E; 31,732 97,672 17,105 146,509
Prepayments, deposits and BHIE f%*”
other receivables &ﬁﬁﬂﬁgqﬁl =] 643 74,498 21,709 96,850
Financial assets at FVTPL AR (E TE?EH
/\g u-l_]\;ﬁﬁ:ll
MEREE — 200,000 70,000 270,000
Pledged deposit [REEES = 37 = 37
Cash and cash equivalents RekAE2EEY 260,787 52,755 57,909 371,451
Trade and bills payables BHESFER
ANES S (34,514)  (137,210)  (69,085)  (240,809)
Other payables and accruals HAh A IR K E
&R (27,858)  (162,028)  (53,920)  (243,806)
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowing = = (12,000) (12,000)
Lease liabilities HERR 16(b) (24,965) = (51,918 (76,883)
Retirement benefit obligations — RIKEFIF T 35 = (26,318) = (26,318)
Provision B 37 = (5,029) = (5,029)
Total identifiable net assets at AR BEZ A #
fair value RIBE#ERRE 327,971 486,000 125,605 939,576
Non-controlling interest e I (81,993) — — (81,993)
Goodwill on acquisition W E Em e E 17 8,257 — — 8,257
Gain on bargain purchase BB = 7 = = (9,428) (9,428)
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412
Satisfied by: PNV ESEE
Cash Be 254,235 — _— 254,235
Other intangible assets HMEREE — 486,000 116,177 602,177
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412

REBEHEE @ EURE 5 FIE & EK
EREEMEUGIEN AL BED A
AR #146,509, OOOE&AE%
74,633,0007T ° Féuﬁz FRIA K U =
ﬁﬁéﬁiﬁmﬂ’éuﬁzmﬁm/ﬁ@aﬂéﬁa billl="

The fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables as at the dates of business
combinations amounted to RMB146,509,000 and
RMB74,633,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade and bills receivables and other

receivables were RMB180,094,000 and RMB75,248,000,
respectively, of which trade and bills receivables of
RMB33,585,000 and other receivables of RMB615,000
are expected to be uncollectible.

AR 180,094,000 & AR
75,248,0007T © HA - EUE S FIA K
U Z 15 A R 33,585,000 7T LA K Efih
FE U I8 A R #5615,000 T 78 HA £ % I
IEI o

FERBEERERAT —Z T FR

227



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42. ¥ 8 8tw

EREABRNESAHEERE &
HREBAHAMINHOREER L2E
(H¢@m%éﬁﬁiﬁ%h&$%
B& AL EREELEBRIBSATE K
MBEMAEETE - 258 n &ﬁﬁﬁ
BHORBER  RARZEERT RS
Al PR & EE M RERRZER o FRRERA
BN TEHA A B R HR TS o

Goodwill arose in the business combination of Jinan
Zhong Qi Hospital because the consideration paid for
the business combination effectively included, inter alia,
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected
synergies from combining the respective operations of
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital and the Group. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The gain on bargain purchase of RMB9,428,000 arising /F'EJﬁu/\gﬁmif“/\fﬁgiﬂ’]%fﬁqﬁlﬁﬁqﬁ
from the business combination of the Run Neng mARYE 428,0007T * T EH RN EK
Hospitals was primarily attributable to the AHHREARY116,177,000TE R
consideration for the business combination of B RBR AN FEENAAEE-
RMB116,177,000 being less than the fair value of the

identifiable net assets of the Run Neng Hospitals.

AEBFERNERA B RRGOEE

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using

the present value of the remaining lease payments at N#FBE FFEMRENHEESE - &
the dates of business combinations. The right-of-use AREEEDNEBASENHEEENRE

assets were measured at an amount equal to the = o
lease liabilities.

ZEEBAHNBEREDTOT ¢

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of these
business combinations is as follows:

RMB’000
ARBTIT

Cash consideration HeRE (254,235)
Cash and bank balances acquired B EER S RIRTTHE R 371,451
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BeRREeZEEWMERA

included in cash flows from investing (GFAREBEBAERS

activities m=E) 117,216

BEBEHAR - BrEAER - ER
RIS 1 z%ﬁﬁl%zizozo
F12A3MBALEFEMNRATEBRMT AR
#1,027,862,0007C © &4 G FE & B
T AR #16,537,0007T °

Since the business combinations, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the Run Neng
Hospitals contributed RMB1,027,862,000 to the
Group’s revenue and RMB16,537,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Had the combinations of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huai IMREERE B - AERETAEE
Kuang Hospital and the Run Neng Hospitals taken AERMEHEELEEZ=2020F12 A
place at the beginning of the year ended 31 NBIEFEY  AEBEEZE2020F12
December 2020, the revenue of the Group and the RA31BIEFEHKRAMAIER S 5 A
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December AR %3,154,349,0007T f1 A R #&
2020 would have been RMB3,154,349,000 and 307,970,0007T °

RMB307,970,000, respectively.
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ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

In addition to the acquisition of 75% equity interest in
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital as detailed in note 42 to the
financial statements, on 21 August 2020, the Group
has succeeded in the bid for the remaining 25% equity
interest in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital held by CNHTC at
a cash consideration of RMB84,687,000 through the
listing-for-sale process conducted by the Shandong
Property Rights Exchange Centre. The acquisition was
completed on 31 August 2020. The carrying value of
the 25% interest in the net assets of Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital as at the date of acquisition was
RMB83,684,000. Accordingly,
RMB1,003,000 was recognised in capital reserve.

the difference of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB2,072,000 (2019:
RMB21,478,000) and RMB2,072,000 (2019:
RMB21,478,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for office properties.

(i) During the vyear, the payables to the
Sponsored Hospitals of RMB37,854,000 was
settled by offsetting against trade and bills
receivables.

(il)  During the year, the Group acquired right-of-
use assets and other intangible assets of
RMB24,395,000 and RMB8,000,000,
respectively, and the considerations were
settled by offsetting against
receivables.

other

B REERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

43. WIEK B QRN FEIMER

BREF SRR M 42Tl B B &
TEBRT5%RERNFIEN  REER
20208 A21 HBBILREEER ST
DETHBEBEHERERF RARK
84,687,000 LR S ¥ EXINKE T+
HERNSEEERANEREERE
#R25% AR 1% o W B 7 20205F8 H31 H
TR R R - BErRERBRFEE
5% BEENEREAEEAARKE
83,684,0007T - HHfEH - ZREA R
1,003,000 THERBEARRTE °

4. GEBEERERKRWME

(a) TEHFREXRF

(i) FA- AEESEBEAYEMR
ERERB o EREEER
HEABEMNIERSIL M 5
B ARM2072,0007T
(2019 : AR ¥
21,478,0007T) #1 A R #&
2,072,0007T (20194 : AR
#21,478,0007T) °

(i) FA - EAEPEERRE
AER#37,854,0007T Y38
K 5 e Uk 2 5 7B K e I =
BmEsE -

(i) FA - XEERBTEEAL
AR #24,395,0007THIE
BEENSBEAARE
8,000,0007T A E fth & 2 &
= - H{ECEHEE M EURGK

N/ e d
WHEE -
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[1
A
i
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED MEREREHMRNME @

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

44.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

(b) RERMEETDHELENERE
2E)

2020 2020
Payables
to the Interest-
Sponsored bearing bank Lease
Hospitals ~ borrowings liabilities
JE ) 22 o FTEERTT
BB FNIA B
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
At 1 January 2020 M2020F1 18 255,571 578,337 18,883
New leases NS — - 2,072
Changes from financing MEABDEER
cash flows o - 139,799 (8,683)
Foreign exchange beE 5, &
movement = (45,835) =
Interest expense FERX - 12,797 3,242
Interest paid classified as DA E/EZEHIR
financing cash flows EMHERF B
i3 - (12,797) (3,242)
Increase arising from g At B A
acquisition/consolidation A) EE A A9 38 N
of subsidiaries = 12,000 76,883
Covid-19-related rent HAA AR
concessions from a ¥ s 5 AE 8
lessor e ER = = (1,791)
Lease termination HEXRIE — — (20,177)
Lease modification — HEEZSE —
Reduction in the scope BEEE L
of leases = = (1,014)
Set off with trade and bills  E2fE Y E 5 IH &
receivables JE L SR R 4 8 (37,854) — —
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 217,717 684,301 66,173
2019 20194

Payables
to the
Sponsored
Hospitals

JE 1} 52 e i
B2 [T 7K I8
RMB’000

AREFIT

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
T EERTT

f& ;R
RMB'000
ARBTT

Lease
liabilities

RMB’000
ARETIT

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 254,876 490,672 138
New leases FHEE — = 21,478
Changes from financing BMEEFIHEEN

cash flows = 695 75,785 (2,733)
Foreign exchange [ 5 &8

movement ar 11,880 -
Interest expense A B F X 879 15,027 528
Interest paid classified as D E AR EEEIR

financing cash flows 2RBERFE

53 (879) (15,027) (528)

At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31 B 255,571 578,337 18,883
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

44. ZFERERERROME @

(c) HERSRHARE

UTRRRERKRMEENHE
ERSMEAERE:

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARETIT

Within operating activities KEEEA 4,609 3,237
Within financing activities RMEEENA 11,925 3,261
16,534 6,498

45. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: BETHERBE -
Property, plant and equipment BEEME - BFE
B
Repayable investment amounts RIFIOTLZ HE M
to IOT hospitals under 10T |OT 28 B 1 /Y
arrangements JEEERE
et}

Capital contribution to a m— M B R R
subsidiary EE

Capital contribution to an ) — [E B & X A
associate FE

45. AiE

REBNRERRBUAT ZEARALE

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB’'000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETTT

20,429 9,076
538,000 545,889
- 254,235
869,117 —

Note:

(i) On 10 November 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for
the increase of capital of the Group’s associate, JR Holdings, with
Jing Mei Group, pursuant to which the registered capital of JR
Holdings would be increased to RMB1,000,000,000 and the Group
committed a capital contribution to JR Holdings in the amount of
RMB869,117,000.

fit

(i) AEEEREEERN2020F11 A10B HIEE
AN B A A A B IRRT M ek v Rt
FREEBRMNEMERABENE AR
1,000,000,0007T * i 2% £ B 7 &4 ) 72 R 22 A%
FE AE%869,117,0007T °

EHBRERERAA T4

it
b=n|
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46. EEE R Z
(a) BABITEIRE H A E s FTE M 4
8% THEXDHEN AEH
FNEBBFTNERZZHWAT

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the balances, arrangements and
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following material

232

transactions with related parties during the year:

2020
20204

RMB'000
ARBT T

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETIT

Healthcare services B &Rk
Subsidiaries controlled by FREEBRFRA
China Resources a) ([ BE
Company Limited (“CR E ) BT A
Co.")* L)E=ENGI 1,113 — A
GPO business GPO %%
A subsidiary controlled by Fh [ 2 ) P 4% )
CR Co. ) — e B B
INE) = 91 A
Other hospital-derived H fth B8 BT 07 4 AR 7
services
Subsidiaries controlled by B 2E B P I
CR Co. ColhyE= NG 198 2,627 A
Other income Hfth gt A
Subsidiaries controlled by B0 2 B P I
CR Co. RIBT B A A 982 2,398 A
Purchases of goods RIEBE M
Subsidiaries controlled by rh [ 2 ) P 4 )
CR Co. B B B8 2~ A 264,730 35,994 B
Investment income on NAREBEFER
financial assets at FVTPL HS 5t A8
NEemEERE
W=
Subsidiaries controlled by B2 P I
CR Co. B B B 2~ 7] 2,105 5,546 C
Interest income on bank SRITFRFEWA
deposits
Subsidiaries controlled by B 2 B P I
CR Co. ColhyE NG 452 274 G
Other purchases and HXBREA
expenses
Subsidiaries controlled by B 2 P4
CR Co. # B B 2~ 7] 4,070 9,225 D
Lease payments HEMR
Subsidiaries controlled by FR B 2 R P42 )
CR Co. ol by NG 5,621 2,924 E

*

CR Co. has significant influence over the Group.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties:

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

46. B ST R I @m0

(b) E2B

N

AT R R E R AR

e

Due from related parties FE Uit B8 Bt 5 sk 1E
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT
Subsidiaries controlled by Fh B O P i Il &9
CR Co. Ry =NG]!
Trade in nature Z54HEE 3,538 6,045 A
Non-trade in nature FEHMUE 1,934 3,339 =
5,472 9,384

An ageing analysis of the trade-related
receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

R EHRBREEZ AR
EEEEZMAREKE 5K
TR RRE DT

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREETIT AR T T

Within 60 days 60K A 3,342 6,045
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 196 =
3,538 6,045

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year.

Due to related parties

FEW AR T IR A - 2 B
KRAR—FRERE -

V& 3 B B 05 SRR

2020
20204

RMB’000

2019
20194
RMB'000

ARBTT

ARETTT

Subsidiaries controlled by

o B 2 B P 6 Y

CR Co. Y= NG!

Trade in nature 25 ME 93,361 2,137 B

Non-trade in nature FEESMHEE 4,390 2,706 @
97,751 4,843

The amounts due
unsecured,
demand.

interest-free and

to related parties are
repayable on

FETRARE D RIBREEM - 2
RARBRIEE

ERBREREGRAT —T-_TFH 233
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BB AR 5
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HEHMIMEREELER : (8)
(continued)
Bank balances IRITHEER
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AREFT
Subsidiaries controlled by H .%ﬂﬁﬂ 1 A9
CR Co. LIPS 260,427 27,146 C
The bank balances carried interest at a rate of WRITHEBRDIRFEHNZE0.35%
0.35% (2019: 0.35%) per annum. (20194 : 0.35% )T 8 °
Financial assets at FVTPL LUAREEFEEHESE
ATABRHNEREE
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
A subsidiary controlled by R 2 A i %UE'J
CR Co. — 1 BT /8 2,519 120,675 C
The financial assets at FVTPL carried interest at a WAREBENZAEEEHT AR
rate of 2.8% (2019: 3.8%) per annum. BN EREERFFNE28%ETE
(20194 : 3.8%) °
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of ) AEEFEEBRABZHH :
the Group:
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Short term employee benefits MHEERF 32,758 34,887
Post-employment benefits BB 212 A 89 450
Equity-settled share-based LR DARRD 2 -
payment expense F X 3,050 3,335

Total compensation paid to key MEBEBABTNAHN

management personnel i AR RE 35,897 38,672
Further details of directors’ and the chief EEREH o HemE—THB
executive’s emoluments are included in note 10 HR VSRR MIFE10 -

to the financial statements.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BEE H X5 w0

RMB4,760,000 in 2019 constituted a connected transaction as
defined 14A of the Listing Rules
Transaction(s)”) and was governed by the decoration agreement

in Chapter ("Connected
dated 23 May 2019 (the “Decoration Agreement”) entered into
between China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co.
Ltd. (“CR Hospital Management & Consulting”), China Resources
Healthcare Technology Development (China) Co., Ltd. (ZEE{EER
REXHE(PE)EMRAR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited) and Beijing Uconia Decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd. (It RESHERHTIZEMR 2 F], a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”)). Such
transaction was subject to the Relevant Requirements but was
exempt from circular and independent shareholders’ approval
pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant
requirements had been complied with. The remaining related party
transactions also constituted Connected Transactions but were fully

exempted from the Relevant Requirements.

(continued)

Notes: B 5
The corresponding related party transactions constituted continuing A. TERERAEE T RSB T BB AE S LT
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing BRATETARND FAAEMERNRFER
Rules (“Continuing Connected Transaction(s)”) but were fully ER((HEBERS]) - ERE EmHA
exempted from the relevant disclosures and other requirements, F14A76(1)EET 2R ET LR AIE T
including, announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ EHEBREREMBE BEAE  BRHRE
approval and annual review in accordance with the Rules Governing YRR ERFERERN (HEEK]) -
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) (the “Relevant Requirements”) pursuant to rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.
The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing B. BB TR IEXFERERS ED 5
Connected Transactions, which were respectively governed by the R2019E M FEERA AR HEER (KE) 5
original pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables AR ([EHEE]) B A2017F7/H218
supply framework agreement dated 21 July 2017 entered into ZRER  BRSEMREBEMEEIERR
between the Company and China Resources (Holdings) Company % MR 2020F U B IR AN A Rl EHE B EE
Limited (“CR Holdings”) for fiscal year 2019 and the new HEIA2019F 11 A7 W FERBHERIT
framework agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered into WABTHBAZER ZEXFEETHAZ
between the Company and CR Holdings for fiscal year 2020, and Sk e
were subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant
Requirements with respect to these transactions had been
complied with.
The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing C. HERE IR IEXFERERS ED 5
Connected Transactions, which were respectively governed by the 20195 B B 4F & 2 AR A B B R 2 B 4R 1T
original strategic cooperation agreement dated 21 July 2017 BHARAR ([EHERTT]) BEA2017F7
entered into between the Company and China Resources Bank of A21 8 2 RERE 1E1H % R 2020F B &
Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”) for fiscal year 2019 and the new B A B EERRTAHH2019F11 77
strategic cooperation agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered HZ 3 EIEE (ERNTT - WEEBTHRE
into between the Company and CR Bank for fiscal year 2020, and Ko ZEXSHEETHBEEX -
were subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant
Requirements with respect to these transactions had been
complied with.
The corresponding related party transaction amounting to D. R2019F B AN —IBEE R ARE4,760,000

TREBERB T RSB T LHRAIF14A
EMEENRERS (BERXS]) - WikE
HEREEXRAETRAR ((EHBREER
#)  FEEREHNREXER(PR)ARA
A(EHRREEARAR TBZ2EMBR
A RILRESHEEHTIZERAA (FHE
wERIR([EEEL]) TEBZ2EHBA
7)) H# 4201945 A 23 A 2 (& ([24&
ek ]) $1T - BRAR HAE TR E R (R
1B TR RIS 14A.76(2) 16R1E 34 2 58 5 S B S
BRERHL/ERIESR) I B BT E A RIARRE -
BRTHEB IR T REERS  EETE
o THAER -

FERBEERERAT —Z T FR

23
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

The corresponding related party transaction amounting to
RMB1,002,000 in 2020 constituted a Continuing Connected
Transaction, which was governed by the original cooperation
agreement dated 21 June 2018 and the new cooperation
agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered into between the
Company and China Resources Leasing Company Limited (¥ 878
EABR2AF]), and was subject to the Relevant Requirements. The
Relevant Requirements with respect to this transaction had been
complied with. The remaining related party transactions constituted
Connected Transactions, which were governed by the lease
agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between CR Hospital
Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai branch of
China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. GEHE AR (JLR) BHEMREARAREAH AR, which
is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor, and
were subject to the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from
circular and independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant requirements had
been complied with.

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties as
of 31 December 2020 which are non-trade in nature, RMB786,000
(31 December 2019: RMB786,000) were deposits paid pursuant to
the lease agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai
branch of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (EEE AR (ItR) FHEREERAAE
A A7), which is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land)
as lessor, and RMB105,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) were deposits
paid pursuant to the lease agreement dated 7 November 2019
entered into between the Company, with a partly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital, as lessee, and
China Resources Leasing Company Limited as lessor. The
remaining amounts as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
incurred in relation to the transactions with connected parties of
the Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.

Among the total outstanding amounts due to related parties as of
31 December 2020 which are non-trade in nature, RMB1,148,000
(2019: RMB2,240,000) was payable pursuant to the Decoration
Agreement, while the remaining amounts as of 31 December 2020
and 2019 were incurred in relation to the transactions with
connected parties of the Company which were fully exempted
from the Relevant Requirements.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020

46. BB AR 5

BeE : (&)

M2020F AW —IES A ARNE1,002,000
TR RSB T —AREHER
5 WERANRRERHESRARBYA
201856 A21 BMR & 1ER = H H1/452019
F11 A7 B EERZERIT - WAEESTIAR
EX -MEEXFGEETHBER - #HTH
B AR SERTRERS  DIREERSR
RERAAERRME S REBEMSLASR (b
R EHEREBRAREES AR (KAE
HEMTEBRBARZ AR EREETR
2019565 A23 AR WS HENIT - B
RHBETHBERERE ETHRANE
14A.76(2) 558 5o i 1k &2 B S IR SR AL R Z 3Rk )
B ESFiEAMAERRE -

20204512 A31 B 2 IEE 5 15 pE U BR Bt

FIEBEE P AR 786,0007T (20194 12
A318 : AR¥786,0007T) /5 1R &2 H 5T
ERBAERERA REBREM LR ER)
EHERZEERARNEES AR (KAEBES
HTEBMHBAR AR EREHAFR2019
F5A23ATYMEEHHEAIANES © A
R #105,0007C (201912 A31H : T) 1R
BAARIEARR—HIEL2EMNBARIER
FRERENBRIEARBARERHEESR
ARMEABEAR2019F11 A7ETZHA
ERFEMIARIERS - MR20204F k2019F
12A31BRBREIRBEAAREBMEALY
RPEL MEBXZETEHEETIAR

B

20204512 A31 B 2 IEE 5 1 B FE T R E:

HIBREREE R ARYE,148,0007T (2019
F: AR2,240,0007T) J5 1R 5 5 (& 15 53 B
EEWEM K MKR2020%F k201912 A
SBMBRBENREBEARARBBMEALZIRS
EE MABRSEZEHRETHEBAEX -



CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2020

Financial assets
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

47. E D8

e

i
TS @

2020 F
2HEE

Bt M R I
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TRITA

HIRE

Bhlem T AMKRmEER

Financial
assets at
FVTPL — Financial
Mandatorily assets at
measured as amortised
such cost
RAanEE
u+iﬁﬁ
BEEA
BEA2H R
BE — HKAFEN
Rl ALLET & TREE =¥
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT
Receivables from 10T REIOTERR 2 /B
hospitals FIE - 77,214 77,214
Loan to a sponsored m) — [ 28 e i BE Br
hospital RIEWER - 51,197 51,197
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 KB K &
WEE = 618,103 618,103
Financial assets included in  FF ATEFIH « R
prepayments, deposits B KH fth fE U
and other receivables HIEN B EE - 334,293 334,293
Due from related parties JFE L B Bt 5 3k IR = 5,472 5,472
Financial assets at FVTPL RanBEFZEA
HEH ABx
WEMEE 198,014 — 198,014
Other financial assets at Hh 12 8 $H R AR
amortised cost AENCREE - 265,022 265,022
Pledged deposits e Ry — 17,454 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY - 2,701,370 2,701,370
198,014 4,070,125 4,268,139
ERBRERERAT —Z-ZTFRH
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. E7EERMI Amw

CATEGORY (continued)
2020 (continued)

Financial liabilities

2020 5 (@)
THERE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

7 B N
NERBE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Trade and bills payables BN E S RIB M EREE 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other payables and 5T A H fib /& {<F 70 I8 & fE 51

accruals ERMNEmAE 180,900
Due to related parties &~ RE B )5 5K18 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE ) 22 9 i B B SRIR 217,717
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIER 684,301
Lease liabilities HEBE 66,173
1,810,967

2019 20194

Financial assets THEE

Receivables from 10T

KB IOTE R 2 B Uk

Financial
assets at
FVTPL —
Mandatorily
measured as
such

AanEE

BEHEE)
= /’\E/\]
TREE —
58 il LA LE FH &
RMB'000
ARBTT

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

12 i
AT E R
TRMEE
RMB’000
ARBT T

hospitals IR = 80,979 80,979
Loan to a sponsored ) — FEI 28 g i B Br
hospital REMHER — 55,062 55,062
Trade receivables EUWE 5 FRI8 — 618,698 618,698
Financial assets included in 5t ATEfTFIE - 13
prepayments, deposits B & & A b eI
and other receivables RIER S RIEE — 204,830 204,830
Due from related parties JE Y 8 B 5 0B — 9,384 9,384
Financial assets at FVTPL WAnEBEFER
HEE ABS
M E R EE 358,254 — 358,254
Other financial assets at Bt 32 8 g A AN
amortised cost STEMNEREE — 25,114 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents BeMEEEEY — 2,006,220 2,006,220
358,254 3,000,287 3,358,541
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. oL@ T H w
CATEGORY (continued)
2019 (continued) 2019ﬁ': (%)
Financial liabilities cTHEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R HEK AT E
MERMAE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Trade payables ERTE 558 241,303
Financial liabilities included in other payables and &+ A H i f& < 208 & fE 51
accruals ERAMTRmARE 141,062
Due to related parties J& 1<t A Bet 75 7R I8 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE {1 22 o i B B SRIA 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITERK 578,337
Lease liabilities HEBE 18,883
1,239,999

EHBRERERAA

A
|

i
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, balances with related
parties, the current portion of other financial assets at
amortised cost, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
payables to the Sponsored Hospitals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of receivables from |IOT hospitals, loan
to a sponsored hospital and the non-current portion of
other financial assets at amortised cost have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the listed financial asset at FVTPL is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of the unlisted financial assets at
FVTPL are estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

48. TR T EMNAARABERAR

BEEX

EREFETRELRESFEY 2K
HER  BUEEZFBERERER &5t
ATAM IR - REE S N HE M EWGIARR
TRVEE - HBAMOT AR - H i
WA ENSREENNBED - &
NBSHAKLENEE - st ARMEN
RANMEERNEHAE  BAIEHR
BB IR A KT BIRITRER - BRNE
LT AREEREE  IARAREBE
EATRRME(E

TREEMNBENAABERENRS
(EHFBFELERINRETBERR
BMTIAMNSBAR AT EMBRE
RARFERAAEE

KB IOTEE BT 2 FE W RIR ~ [A) — [ 28 3
REER e 1R (1 B0 B R DA I L F 8 S B AR
AAENESRMEENIRHEINARE
BERREAHAKESRE  KAAA
B - EERR LR RN
TRABRBAISMREERKEFE -

A S BIEE 8 B BB AR |
TERMAENA R EEEATSEE -

RonEBEFELEZHT ARRNIE
EhEREENAABERREARR
DR AR TENTISAE - 5K
FRRSREMLERLGEEN -
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
|NSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair

measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

value

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H
48. TR T EMAREBEERAR
BEEHw

[RBEEER

TRHABTALEEBT ANA A (EE
HEEAR

BARBEGTEZEE
R2020F 12 H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERATEENDAEBEFTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

GBI Z BEAA EvNgN|

BE BZEBAE HRBAME

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—%) (EF=®) (F=H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFEEEZHA
BRNEREE 92,718 105,296 — 198,014
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12H31 H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTEENARBETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

BTG L BEAA EvNaY|
BE BEBAE BREAE Fe

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(F—%) (F=&) (F=%)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFEEEZSHA

BRNEeREE 113,485 244,769 — 358,254
The Group did not have any financial liabilities R2020%F 12 A31 8 » AN B I & ({7

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020 (2019:

Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial

assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

NAREBEFENSEHARE (2019F :
/) o

ER - LRMEENMEREEESE—HMN
E_BZETFEERABENENS
B 8B E = R EE (2019
F:@|) o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at
FVTPL, payables to the Sponsored Hospitals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as receivables from 10T
hospitals, loan to a sponsored hospital, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, balances with related
parties, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities, which mainly arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's loan to a
sponsored hospital and interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this risk by
closely monitoring the movements in interest rates and
reviewing its available credit facilities and their
utilisation regularly.

49.

BEEREERERBE

FEENIZEcRITARERSNES
EEY  DEAFR - MR
AAENTSREE  ULnBEFERR
HEABRGENEREE  ENEME
B RIBIA LG BRITER - ELE R
TANTIRANEAREENELRH
B - AREEREMEESHMEEM
B1E - HIAKE 10T &R 2 FEUFOR -
[ —FERPEBFRRHNER - BRE
SRR NMEWRE - ST ATRNFIE - R
Ee MEMRYGAN S B EE - R
RO MER BNEZHAREMNE
B SFARMENIRNEFERANE
BAE ULHERE ZBEHEEXB
Hgegg -

AEBTRTAEANTIEARENE
Rk HNERRR - EERR RBES
Rk RERERER EFSFELMF
EEESEBARNRE  BHMRMOT o

SRS

AEBAZNTSHNXEFRAMERE
REE R —E SR BRI E A
NEBZBH RN BRITERERH -
AEBYEERITESR T A HEF
KR o  AEBRBE Y EENRE
TERBREHAREERERAEAE
LR B i A L
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact on loan to a sponsored
hospital and interest-bearing bank borrowings).

49.

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

BERREEEEZERBE @

2= B B )

TRETTEMBHEMEERFTEN
BRT  AERESFATME GBEY R
—H SR EE R ENE RN BRT
fERHFE) BHREEREE K

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
basis points before tax
B IR IEINE
i Crd) g/ Crd)
RMB'000
ARBTT
2020 20204
Loan to a sponsored hospital ) — A SR BB P IR (A B K 50 256
Loan to a sponsored hospital A — AR i B2 P IR (VB R (50) (256)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITERK 50 (3,422)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITER (50) 3,422
2019 20194
Loan to a sponsored hospital M) — 2R i B BT IR MO B K 50 275
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — 2R B BT IR M B K (50) (275)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEK 50 (2,892)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER (50) 2,892

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from operating and financing
transactions of operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currencies.

S BE = B

AEEARZEERR - ILBERER
KEKLLEMNENEEEEAIINEE
ETHRENBERS -

TE

it
b=n|

[
Ay
[
Ay
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. B E b EIE B FE R BUR @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S EE 3 B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRERTEMBEHMESRFTEN
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible BAT AXEEBAMNE(BEEEE
change in the United States dollars (“US$"”) and HK$ MBENAARBEEZS) RBREHRY
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, EL([ET)) MBTLERES IR A g &
of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the SRR o

fair values of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
US$/HKS rate before tax
./
78 T IE 2 75 7 F) E
#an O A) g0, O 4)
% RMB'000
AR®ETT
2020 20204
If the RMB weakens against the US$ AR HETRE 5 54
If the RMB strengthens against the A BR¥ K ETHE
uUs$ (5) (54)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR X BTiE 5 (33,064)
If the RMB strengthens against the WA R X BTHAE
HK$ (5) 33,064
2019 20194
If the RMB weakens against the US$ 1A R K ETizE 5 9
If the RMB strengthens against the I AR X ETHAE
US$ (5) (9)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 20 AR 5B Tz E 5 (28,307)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR X BTHE
HK$ (5) 28,307
Credit risk EER K
The Group mainly transacts with recognised and AREBEFERRARGEERINE=F
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are EIIRSG - BIWRIERES X IFEE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's P mARE B A SRR E R AR F E K
exposure to bad debts increased during the vyear B/ AHBRmARE N - ELBiRm
mainly due to acquisition/consolidation of hospitals, R BRISNETRREE -
which are subject to tighter regulation of medical
insurance.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. I EREREBEZERBE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end
staging

B 1= [ B I F 45 P R

TREJNERNAKBEERRNEREE
ERESEERR TEERAREH
(BRIEEMER AT ERA N B A0 EK
RSB NHERTER) - ki12A31
BHFERERIE 270G ER
EemEEAR®EE-

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due

information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at 31 December 2020

Receivables from |OT hospitals

KB I0T & bt 2 e Y kA

12-month
ECLs
1218 A
BHEE
B8

Stage 1
F1MER
RMB'000
ARETFT

R2020F12531H

Lifetime ECLs

2 HEHEEEE
Simplified
approach
ikl ePapzS
RMB'000

ARETFT

Total

Adf
RMB’'000
ARBTT

Stage 2
FE2RER
RMB'000
ARETFT

Stage 3
FEIRER
RMB'000
ARETFT

— Not yet past due — & K8 Af 77,214 - - - 77,214

Loan to a sponsored hospital [ — AR BRI
B

— Not yet past due — & A HA 51,197 - - - 51,197
Trade receivables* FE U B 55k IE * = = — 643,680 643,680
Bills receivables e =&

— Not yet past due — & K8 Af 400 - - - 400
Contract assets* AHNEE* = = = 19,840 19,840
Financial assets included in FFABMKIE  REESR

prepayments, deposits and other HiEWRIERN S /&

receivables BE

— Normal** — —RR** 334,337 - - - 334,337

— Doubtful** — R = = 1,203 = 1,203
Due from related parties JFE U B 75 FRIR 1,934 - - 3,538 5,472
Other financial assets at amortised HAR# HR AT ENE

cost BB E

— Not yet past due — A AR 8 AR 265,022 — — — 265,022
Pledged deposits B 317 5K

— Not yet past due — & K8 A 17,454 - - - 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED

— Not yet past due — A AR 8 HA 2,701,370 - - — 2,701,370

3,448,928 - 1,203 667,058 4,117,189
ERBRERERAT —Z-ZTFRH
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. IR REEEEREE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end EERBRFERE@

staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2019 H20194F12531H

12-month
Lifetime ECLs

2HBEREEER

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
F1REER  FoWER  FREBR EHE &a&r
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTE ARMTRE ARETT ARKTR

Receivables from IOT hospitals R EIOTE BT 2 B U FR 1A

— Not yet past due — R 80,979 = = — 80,979
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — BRI IR A

BR

— Not yet past due — &R Hf 55,062 — — — 55,062
Trade receivables* EWE 558> = — — 619,453 619,453
Contract assets* BREE* = — — 12,120 12,120
Financial assets included in FFATERFIE  RES R

prepayments, deposits and other Hip e FIEN S/ E

receivables E

— Normal** — — g 204,873 — — — 204,873

— Doubtful** — R = = 1,084 — 1,084
Due from related parties e Uk BA B 5 SRR 3,339 — — 6,047 9,386
Other financial assets at amortised ~~ HAibiRE KA EN S

cost MEE

— Not yet past due — AR Hf 25,114 — = — 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEZED

— Not yet past due — 18] A 78 B 2,006,220 — — — 2,006,220

2,375,587 — 1,084 637,620 3,014,291

g For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies & RAEEERBGRER ENEKE 5 IE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the REXNEE ERBEEBHER D RIN
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 27 and 28 to the financial IR KM 7E27 28 H 7 -
statements.

BB The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, e FPATEMRIE RESREMERRBENS
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when REENARGE WELSBEHKHZER
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that BEBVHRERAREERKRBEZEN &
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since FEEEEREGAI K] -Th SRHEEMD
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial FEEEEREARIRE] -
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's ERAAEEREKREZE SFEMELN S

exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables Em e e g — S L EUE A SR E M

are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements. o7 E o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its risk to a shortage of funds by considering the
maturities of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings. The Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

49. BIXEREEEERBE @

REE SRR

nBEERBRIEAREREE SRR
NEITHEEENER - REBE MR
mPpELRREIERELHMEENAR
MEHBER - AREREEESREA
BENEREENDHARERESER
YRR

AEENEERBBEARITEREE
THEEEMEBER M 2 BREFE - K
SEEE#BREANEEIREEFE
o ARRERBEEFK -

REBEARARMBRMNR - HEPRAEE
TRABNIHBROT

Group AEEH
2020
20204
On demand/less
than 1 year 11to 5 years  Over 5 years Total
RER/
DSRE 1255 5E LA E A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Trade and bills payables ENESREBERENRIE 564,125 - - 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other FH A H 8 T R IE R FE AT
payables and accruals ERNERAR 180,900 - - 180,900
Due to related parties JE S B ES 5 2OE 97,751 - - 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FETER b4 BB RIE 217,717 - - 217,717
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 688,166 - - 688,166
Lease liabilities HEEE 19,558 44,477 10,908 74,943
1,768,217 44,477 10,908 1,823,602

EHBRERERAA T4
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. B E b EIE B FE R BUR @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) AREE S B
Group (continued) KEE (&)
2019
20194
On demand/less
than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total
mEk/
DRE 1ZE6%5F BF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBET T ARBET T AR¥ET T
Trade payables FERTE 558 241,303 — 241,303
Financial liabilities included in other s A E A B8 AT FRIE R ST B
payables and accruals NEREE 141,062 — 141,062
Due to related parties JE 1~ BE G 75 RIR 4,843 — 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JIE < 22 35 42 B8 Bt 0B 255,571 — 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEIRITRE R 581,869 — 581,869
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,287 15,178 20,465
1,229,935 15,178 1,245,113
Equity price risk ERERE R
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of =B RR A BN ERIEEAERE
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the FEENSEHERNEREFLAAEE
levels of equity indices and the value of individual TERAY R B2 o A E Y HE 2 (B K B Bt
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk R B R2020F 12 A31 B A AR
arising from an equity investment included in financial BESEEEZHTABENERHEE
assets at FVTPL (note 23) as at 31 December 2020. R AIGE (K17E23) - KAEBH L™
The Group's listed investment is listed on the Hong WERBABHRZF LT - BRWEER
Kong Stock Exchange and is valued at a quoted market AT 35 BB EE °

price at the end of the reporting period.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

31 December

2020
2020F
12H31H
Hong Kong — &5 —
Hang Seng Index BAEH 27,231

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

49. BIXEREEEERBE @

FE 5 (B M [EL B o)

AT EAER S TR AEE i ia R &2
RORSHBOWETMSERIEE - AKX
RAFENZRSMNREERESNOT :

31 December
2019

20194
123318

High/low
2019
&/
20194

High/low
2020
&/
20204

29,056/21,696 28,190  30,280/24,897

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5%
investment, with all other variables held constant and
before any based on its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period.

change in the fair value of the equity

impact on tax,

TR T ERARMESRETEA
RBBEH B - R R A R
REBEEE - BAREN AR EES
5% H) B E AT ©

Carrying amount Increase/
of equity

investment

decrease in
profit before tax
IR IEINE
10, m A
RMB’000
ARBTT

BARE
fRmEfE
RMB'000
AR TIT

2020

Investment listed in:
Hong Kong — Financial assets at

20204

RE - EHR
B8 — UAREE

FVTPL FFEREZHEA
EamemiEE 92,718 4,636
2019 20194
Investment listed in: BE EmR
Hong Kong — Financial assets at BB — UaRERE
FVTPL FAEREZHEA
BalemEE 113,485 5,674
EBPEEERERAT —ZT_TFRH
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Percentage of equity interest

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

BRI ik

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BETRARRE/
HEMEA

attributable to the Company
ARAIEEREZBA L

Principal activities

China Resources Hospital Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding and

& Consulting Co. Ltd.* hospital
management
EREREEANERLA hE/ P E N AR 500,000,0007T RABHRERER
Jian Gong Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB420,552,600 80.00 80.00  General healthcare
services

BEgkR hE/REN AE#420,552,6007 GARBRRE

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

IREREREEERAR hE/HE R ARH3,000,0007 GPO%K

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.

IRBBRERERENARLA hE/PE N ABR84,000,0007C GPO%H

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Consulting Co., Ltd. services

It RERGEBERITAAERAT T ARH1,000,0007T E B 55T R

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology and ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Trade Co., Ltd

IRBEHENEERAR e/ HE R AR 500,000 GPO%K

Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Equipment Co.,Ltd.

IREEXEERERERAR hE/ P E N AB84,000,0007C GPO%H

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Phoenix Baokang Healthcare Hospital
Management Co., Ltd.*
FERRERERERAR"

Beijing Phoenix United Innovation
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
tRBEEARANEREARRAT

Beijing Runkang Yisheng UCC Clinic
Management Co., Ltd.
FRERGEEDMERERAA

Wuhan Runzhiyun Technology Co., Ltd
(formerly known as Beijing Phoenix
United Innovation Information
Technology Co., Ltd)

REBREMRERAR (ABALRE
BBEIE B RITERAA)

Beijing Lihetang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd.
FRENZRRERERAR

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

AEMAS

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

FE/REAL

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEML

PRC/Mainland China

HE/PENL

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEAL

DNt Sk

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BEIRERRE/

USDS,000,000/
USD8,000,000
5,000,000% 7,/
8,000,000% 7T

RMB10,000/
RMB20,000,000
AR10,0007T,/
AR%20,000,0007C

RMB10,010,000/

RMB20,000,000

AE#10,010,0007,/
AK#20,000,0007C

RMB10,000/
RMB10,000,000

AR10,0007,/
AR10,000,0007T

RMB10,000/

RMB1,000,000
AE#10,0007,/
AR %1,000,0007

Bt M R I

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

50. X AR ETEMEARNFERE

()

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEEREZBAML

2020 Principal activities

20205
%

100.00 Hospital management

BREE

100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
services

S e

100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
services

E it Bh TR

100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived

Services

Eth BB 07 AR

100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived

services

Et Bh TR

EHBRERERAA F
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. XA B EFEMEATNFRE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEIEEREZBAL
Issued and paid-up
Place of incorporation/ share capital/

registration and business registered capital Principal activities

ML/ R e S

IRER

Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.

RTHEEERERERAA hE/ P E N AR%10,0007C REER

China Resources Hospital Investment PRC/Mainland China USD100,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
(China) Co., Ltd services

ZEBRRE (PE)BRAR hE/hERD 100,000,000% 7 EREERE

China Resources Hospital Management ~ PRC/Mainland China USD10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Co., Ltd. services

EEEREEERAR hE/HE R 10,000,000 BREERE

China Resources Hospital Holding PRC/Mainland China RMB52,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Company services

ERERERERDA hE/PE N AR %52,000,0007C ERERRE

999 Clinic PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived

services

SNBEMDH (R EREARR mE/RER AR#4,000,0007T Eth B ITERS

Beijing Hezhongsuyu Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Co., Ltd.* services

IRARERBRERERATY e/ HE R AR%1,000,0007T H it BT R

Beijing Mingshihoude Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services

IRRRRERREREAARAA hE/PE N AR%1,000,0007T H b BT RS

Beijing Zhikangjiantong Hospital PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived

Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services
TREREABRRERAAERAR RE/RER AREZTL/ E it BB 074 IR

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

AK#1,000,0007
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. AN TBI X EMNB A TN
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREEREZ AL
Issued and paid-up
Place of incorporation/ share capital/

registration and business Principal activities

reg|stered capital

Gl A ik HEMER

Wuhan Jiayi United Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.
REEEHAERSMERAT HE/RERY ARBZET/ GPO%7
AR 1,000,000
Guangzhou Jiayi Medical Equipment PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co, L
ENEREAREERAT A/ HEN AREZT/ GPO%H
AR1,000,0007
Hubei Wanyining Medical Equipments PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co, Ltd. (“Hubei Wanyining")
WLEFEREERAR ((HLEFE]) =8/ PEAN AR3,000,0007 GPO%H
Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000/ 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Management Co., Ltd. RMB5,000,000 services
trERREHEEERERLA E/RER AR¥1,000,0007,/ B ERR%
AR 5,000,0007
Beijing Phoenix Cinda Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 = 100.00  Hospital management
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* services
IREREERBRERZAGRARY  PE/PEAN AR 100,000 BREBRY
Guangzhou Boen Doctor Group PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 60.00  Other hospita-derived
Co., Ltd. " services
BENERRESBERA ™ 8/ HE N AREZT/ H BB TR
AK1,000,0007
Hainan Runfeng Medical Service Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000/ 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services
BEERRBERKEREALA HE/mER AR¥600,0007T,/ ot 2R 05 7 2 PR 7
AR 1,000,007

FERBEERERAT —Z T FR
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

AL/ R E S

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BETRARRE/
HMER

(#)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEIEEREZBAL

2020

20205
%

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Principal activities

IREH

Beijing Runhuaxinkang Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB2,500,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services

IREZLRERERAAERAT hE/PE N AR%2,500,0007C At BT RS

Shenzhen Runkang Spring Bamhoo PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Shoot Clinic services

R BEREEMND D hE/ P E N AR%1,000,0007C H i BT RS

Guangzhou Runyitang Pharmacy PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.

ENEEZAEEERAT RE/RER AREZT/ GPO% 7%

AR%500,0007T

Beijing Runhuaxieya Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 51.00 51.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Co., Ltd. services

TREEERERERERAR hE/ P E N AR%1,000,0007C H BT RS

Xuzhou Xinmeijian Medical Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000/ 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services

BHLERERNBERAA hE/ P E N AB8500,0007/ H i BT RS

AR%1,000,00070

Beijing Youaokang Medical Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd services

IRERRERRGERAR hE/PE N AR%1,000,0007T H b BT RS

Beijing Duledefang Technical Consulting ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd services

I RHYEFRHAERAR hE/ PR N AR%1,000,0007T H BT R

Run Neng PRC/Mainland China RMB318,818,000 65.00 65.00  Hospital management

services
B hE/ P E N AK%318,818,0007 BRERRE
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB338,000,000 100.00 —  General healthcare
services
BREER hE/PEN AR %338,000,00070 GABRRE

254  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. X AR EEMBERRMNFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

AL/ ERRE$ %

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital
BEIRBRRE/

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREMGREZAD L

2020 2019

2020 2019%
% %

Principal activities

TEEK

Huaikuang Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China RMB118,548,005/ 100.00 —  General healthcare
RMB124,700,000 services
ERER FE/RER AR 118 ,548,0057T,/ e BRI
AR®124,700,0007C
Beijing CEEC Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB300,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
g RER PE/HEN AREZTL/ EEERY
AR#300,0007
Beijing CEEC Shuozhou Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
SERBE RN B E/RER ARH200,0007 GRBEERB
Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB17,680,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
ERTHRENRR PE/HEN AREZTL/ EEERY
AK%17,680,0007T
Guangxi Hydropower Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB25,000,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
BEKEBR PE/HEN AREZTL/ e BERE
AK%25,000,0007T
Gaoxin District Xingyuan Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB9,280,600 65.00 —  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre™- services
B EEE R R E RO 8/ HE N AREZT/ e BERE
AK9,280,6007T
Gaoxin District Tianle Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB2,080,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre*~ services
BRERLIEEERBRL E/RER AREZTL/ e BERE
AR 2,080,000
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB270,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
Community Healthcare Centre* services
RARGEEREHEEERBR L E/RER AREZTL/ e BERE
AE®270,0007
Hefei Gaoxin District Changning PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB3,838,400 65.00 —  General healthcare

Community Healthcare Centre®~ services
AERNERELREERB L 8/ HE R ARBZET/ FARBERYE
ARH3,838,400T

EPEEERERAT —ZT-F
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Guangxi Runliao Brain Hospital Co., Ltd.”

EREEMNBRERAR-

Hubei Runkang Medical Management
Co., Ltd. ("Hubei Runkang")"

ML BEEREEARAR (THLER])-

Runliao (Shenzhen) Investment and
Consulting Co., Ltd.”

BE (R RERABRAR-

Runhekangze (Shenzhen) Healthcare
Hospital Management Co., Ltd.”

BHRERY) BREEERAR-

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

AL/ R E S

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PENL

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E R
PRC/Mainland China

HE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEA

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

R Rk

3

(#)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAIEMGEREZEDL

2020

20205
%

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Principal activities

IREH

##

Hit#

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

These institutions, as not-for-profit hospitals, cannot be registered
as companies under PRC law. The sponsors of the these
institutions, which are not-for-profit hospitals, have respective
obligations to contribute the start-up capital to such institutions.
Such start-up capital, once contributed, shall not be withdrawn by
the sponsors. Given the charity nature of the not-for-profit
hospitals, the legal income of such hospitals shall only be used in
line with its purpose and within its business scope, and where
applicable, in accordance with the articles of association of such
hospitals, and therefore, the net income is not distributable to its
sponsors as dividends, which is different from a shareholder who
owns the equity interests of a company.

These subsidiaries were newly established during the year.

These subsidiaries were newly consolidated during the year.
These subsidiaries were deregistered during the year.

The percentage of equity interest is increased from 60% to 100%.

The non-controlling interest withdrew from the company without
any consideration.

Nil/RMB50,000,000 100.00 —  General healthcare
services
AREZT/ GRABERE
AR %50,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AK%10,000,0007C EREERE
Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AREZL/ BRERRG
AK%1,000,0007
Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AREZT/ BRERRY
AK¥1,000,0007
* ZEMBARBEREEEFIMAINEEE
2o

# ZERBIERIFLETEE - TAIRET BX
BERTIEARTE - ZERE (RIFEENERR)
MERABB BB AZSHBIAVRER
THGBEAR—EGEAN - M A TR R © &
RIFENBENESUED  ZSBENEE
WARRERE R WAERXBEEARR(WE
R)BREERERNAKRTZMABIER
bt WAFEAA DR TREBAERRS
HEHEE M A RRENRRTR -

- ZEM B R B TN F AL

"

- 2 E W B DR TR ERFA B o

o

. &M B R R Ty R

e fAEE DR 60% B INE100% © FFHEEAR i AR
BEERBEMKETREBZAR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

51.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The above subsidiaries are
Company.

indirectly held by the

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and China Energy
Engineering Group Assets Management Co., Ltd. (P EEREREBMEE
EIEHMPR/AR]) (“CEE Group Assets Management”), the non-controlling
shareholder of Run Neng, contributed additional capital into Run Neng. The
contributions by the Group and CEE Group Assets Management were in
the form of cash of RMB215,758,000 and sponsorship rights of certain
hospitals, respectively. The fair value of the sponsorship rights as at the
date of contribution was RMB116,177,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company

dated 12 March 2021, Hubei Runkang (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen

Runtou Consulting”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Land) entered into a hospital
management agreement (the “Hospital Management
Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting (as the principal) shall appoint Hubei
Runkang as the manager to provide comprehensive
operation and management services for the
Yuenianhua Nanning Rehabilitation Hospital (the
“Rehabilitation Hospital”), which include the
introduction of management and operation systems by
Hubei Runkang, building management team of the
hospital, and the introduction of various resources,
such as hospital brand and medical technology. Hubei
Runkang shall receive a service fee from Shenzhen
Runtou Consulting (during the preparation period) or
the Rehabilitation Hospital (starting from the official
opening of the hospital) for the provision of various
management services under the Hospital Management
Agreement.

50.

51.

B REERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

RABETEMBLARNFS

(%)

B AR RARBRERE °

FREINEERREIBREAEERSE
ERESBRAKEEEFENTEE
DOARRRMBAR - EFRS - 2t
HM @ AR FERERERBRIT
= o

T -

HZE2019F12 A3 HILFE - AEE M B IRE
HREBEEERERAR ([FhREEEEEETE]
FRE 2 FEIERRARIR) - MIBAEEHREINEE - AR
HAEREEEBEAEEESRUR S ARE
215,758,0007T o 5 T E& B VR IHE(ERITE - BT
EHH ZEERBIRAABERARS
116,177,0007T °

BREHWRER

AR AT HEA2021F3 B 12HHA
LTI EE IR (AR MEEE
BB AR) BRI BERERAEGRA
A (DRIBEZR]) (EFENEE
2EMBRAR) R ERETEZEE
W ([BERLTE Rz - Btk &
IERFRMEREZE ) BETHIL
HRWERBEEBAMEFEMERE
BR((ERERDREZEHELS TR
BR7S - BiEm B BRI AB IR
BITHT  HEBEREER - WA
BhimhE BERMESEER ° it
EEMBEERZTEEHRIEHEZE
BIERY - RRIBEER (REHD
M) ERER (BERER EXARE
Hie) W EIR RIS E -

EHBRERERAA

A

|
i
i

&
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR AR B

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. &2 B B &R SRR &
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of IATERAREERERR 2T EAR
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as WK BEHR
follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 9 —
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARRRE 6,118,706 6,107,582
Due from subsidiaries JiE UK BT B R R FRIB 181,661 230,491
Total non-current assets BWIERBNEE 6,300,376 6,338,073
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 10,359 11,211
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other payables and accruals H fth < RIE R FEET E 7,584 4,833
Due to subsidiaries AN NGIE ¢ 112,842 122,533
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT EIRITER 672,301 578,337
Total current liabilities BB A E 792,727 705,703
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB EFRE (782,368) (694,492)
Net assets BEFHE 5,518,008 5,643,581
EQUITY B
Share capital & 75 267 267
Reserves (note) i (MIsE) 5,517,741 5,643,314
Total equity e 5,518,008 5,643,581
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. XA R ERRIKE @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

53.

Note:

A summary of the Company’'s reserves is as follows:

GEE

RRRNREHREZNT

Share Treasury Share-based
premium Capital share payment Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses
EFRH
S V. /N &1 25 &1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETET
At 1 January 2019 1201951418 6,180,977 (5562 (384,650) 1222 (80679) 5,711,308
Profit and total comprehensive income for FEMERZARALE
the year = = = = 7,425 7,425
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement &z & B AR
TRZH = = = 13,083 = 13,083
Award of shares under the Share Award R =BT B =@
Scheme (56,602) = 99,687 = = 42,985
Transfer of share-based payment reserve upon W10 B2 B =t &I TR 1D 55 8
the vesting of shares under the Share Award BRO T TEED
Scheme #i% = (698) 1,918 (1,220) — =
Final 2018 dividend 2018F RHIRR S (131,487 — - = i (131,487)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 2019512 A31B R
20201818 5,992,888 (6,260) (283,145) 13,085 (73,254) 5,643,314
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEEBRZEEREE = = = = (21,985) (21,985)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement & ig a5 45 E MR
TRZH = = = 11,124 = 11,124
Sale of treasury shares HEEFRH = = 380 = — 380
Final 2019 dividend 2019F KRS (115,092) — - - = (115,092)
At 31 December 2020 R2020512 8318 5,877,796 (62600  (282,765) 24209  (95239) 5,517,741

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares

awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to treasury share
reserve and capital reserve when the related share awards are vested, or
be transferred to accumulated losses should the related share awards

expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021.

B R R E M R BB R BRI DA A EE
IF AR 7E B 75 3R R Y Rk 2.4 7 LARR 13 15 SR B9 & R BUR
E—TERE ZeBRSERBROEDRBRES
EERHREBREAATE  REERBRDZEHS
MR S RETEIR o

53. B WKL E

B RRN2021F3 A 26 HEZE =t
R -

EHBRERERAA FH

it

[
A
[
A
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A FINANCIAL SUMMARY — IN ACCORDANCE WITH
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
MBRE — REEFRM RS 2L

For the year ended 31 December

BHE12R31HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2020% 20195 20185 VS 2016%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #HZa%4&

Revenue Yo zs 2,750,650 2,115,320 2,059,478 1,877,724 1,532,831
Profit/(loss) before tax BAIFE/ (BE) 418,185 541,299 588,943 559,507 (1,452,481
Income tax expense FEHAX (97,864) (140,665) (149,387) (129,812) (47,331)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHE/(BE) 320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695  (1,499,812)

Attributable to: AT ALRERS
Owners of the parent SUNGIE 2PN 310,131 390,865 430,898 421,034 (1,506,964)
Non-controlling interests kR 10,190 9,769 8,658 8,661 7,152
320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695  (1,499,812)

As at 31 December
®12A318
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE

Total assets BEE 8,963,193 7,873,981 7,319,483 6,914,201 6,448,336
Total liabilities BafE (2,622,739)  (1,733,806)  (1,609,664)  (1,312,633) (1,090,806

6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,367,530

Equity attributable to: WTALEMG#ES :
Owners of the parent SNRHEARA 6,105,456 5,903,700 5,589,498 5,481,731 5,238,379
Non-controlling interests FEE R fE 2 234,998 236,475 120,321 119,837 119,151

6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,367,630
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"Articles of Association”
or "Articles”

"Audit Committee”

“"Award Shares”

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

“BVI"

“CG Code”

“Chairman”

“Chief Executive Officer”

“Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC"

"Companies Ordinance”

“"Company” or “our
Company” or “China
Resources Medical”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

"CR Healthcare Group”

DEFINITIONS A

Bx

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30, 2013
and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the maximum
number of which shall not exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the
Company as at August 31, 2018 and 1% of the total number issued Shares to

each of the Selected Participant as at August 31, 2018

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
the chairman of our Board

the chief executive officer of the Company

the chief financial officer of the Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (2B 28 &32 iR AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
February 28, 2013

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited (FFBZEEARA
A]) (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation (/%= /E4E A
al))

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a municipal bank headquarters in
Zhuhai and a subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

ERBEERERLAT —Z _TFR
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> DEFINITIONS

B=
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[FEEEE]
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RIS BRI EE THZERD HRSHE TEBBARARN2
FEA3MHEBEITIRAEER10% MFR2018F8 A31 HEIT T & EE %
BHEBETRGAEN%

OO

ARAREEE

AEARARES

E AR BB 8%+ PO prE ey (b R B R T A

EXg8=ER

R AHEE

ARBERMBE

REARKNE  slAREMS  TREGE RPIRHITRERRES
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BRETAF
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ARBEEERARZHEAF
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“CR Holdings"”

“CR Hospital Holdings”

"CR Hospital
Management &
Consulting”

"CR Land”

“CR Leasing”

“CR Pharmaceutical”

"“CR Trust”

"Director(s)”

"Eligible Persons”

"Executive President”

“FY2018"

“FY2019" or “Reporting
Period”

“Group”, “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

DEFINITIONS <

Bx

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Company Limited and the indirect holding company of CR
Healthcare Group

China Resources Hospital Holdings Company, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd., Beijing
Phoenix United Hospital Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

China Resources Land Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109), and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Leasing Company Limited*, a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320), and a subsidiary of CR
Holdings

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

the directors of our Company or any of them

any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and senior
management of the Group; (i) employed experts as nominated by the Board;
and (iii) core employees of the Group

the executive president of our Company

the financial year ended December 31, 2018

the financial year ended December 31, 2019

our Company and its subsidiaries

Fik

ity
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> DEFINITIONS
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“"HK$"” or “"HKD" and
“HK cent(s)” or
“cent(s)”

“Hong Kong”

“Huaikuang Hospital”

“Huaikuang Hospital

Group”

“Hubei Runkang”

“Huaiyin Hospital”

"1AS”

“IFRSs”

“10T"

"IOT Hospitals”

“"JH Management”

"Jian Gong Hospital”

“Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”

“Jing Mei Group”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

DEFINITIONS <

Bx

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (#E1b#E T 4858 F%)

collectively, Huaikuang Hospital and certain affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

Hubei runkang Healthcare Management Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital Company Limited, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards
the "invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under the 10T
model

JH Management Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd.* (dtRTfEEERARAA]), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12, 2003 and
a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing Construction Worker
Hospital (It M EZ2E T AERR), before its reform

Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited* (& /5% AR A al, a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, CNHTC Hospital (FR B &E#! 5
BEBABRAAER), before its reform

Beijing Jing Mei Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a state-owned enterprise under the State-owned

Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing

Jing Mei Hospital* (Jb R R B & B 48 & Fr)
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"Jing Mei Hospital Group”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

“"Mentougou Hospital for

Women and Children”

“"Mentougou Hospital for

Women and Children
IOT Agreement”

“Mentougou 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou TCM
Hospital IOT
Agreement”

“Mentougou Traditional

Chinese Medicine
Hospital”

“"Model Code”

“Nomination Committee’

“OT"

“"OT Hospital”

U

DEFINITIONS <

Bx

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and its affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Beijing Mentougou Hospital (At RMFPISEE R EPT), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in June 2010
pursuant to the Mentougou IOT Agreement

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (F938& & & 40 1R b))
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in September
2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children 10T
Agreement

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government
on September 23, 2014

collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on July 30, 2010, as amended

the 10T agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government

on June 6, 2012

Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (1t RTFI5EE = EF7), a
not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and
wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM Hospital [OT
Agreement

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
the “operate-transfer” model

third-party hospital which we manage and operate under the OT model
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“"Pinyu”

“PMM”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“RMB"

“Run Neng Hospitals”

"Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO"

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

"Share Award Scheme”

"Share Option Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

"UMP Healthcare
Holdings”

“Unison Champ”

“United States” or “U.S.”

“U.S. dollar” or “US$"

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

collectively, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* (ER T a2 E /1% Fx), Beijing
CEEC Hospital* (it P87 EBR), Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* (/& 7h7/K & &8
Bz) and CEEC Anhui Hospital* (Fr 82 % 2 Fx)

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our Company
holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Board on July 7, 2014, as amended by the Board on

May 25, 2015 and August 31, 2018

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30, 2013

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (B& 2% SBEHBRAF]), a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 722)

Unison Champ Premium Limited (formerly known as Unison Champ Limited),
a company incorporated under the laws of BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company

the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States
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“Wugang Hospital”

"Wugang Hospital Group”

“Xukuang Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital Group”

“Yan Hua Hospital
Investment
Management
Agreement”

“Yan Hua 10T
Agreement”

“Yan Hua Phoenix”

DEFINITIONS <

Bx

China Resources Wugang General Hospital* (8 & S 42 58 F%)

collectively, Wugang Hospital, Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation No. 2
Staff Hospital* (R ;ZEME (EE) A AIFE — B T 2t) and certain affiliated
hospitals and community clinics

Xuzhou Mining Hospital* (& 15 1L 28 f)
Yan Hua Hospital* (1t R #E{L B2 %)

collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and the community clinics affiliated with Yan
Hua Hospital

the hospital investment management agreement dated February 4, 2008,
which was supplemented in April 2008, December 2010, June 2011, July
2013, September 2013 and October 2013, and were entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting, Yan Hua Hospital and Yan Hua Phoenix

the hospital management right and investment framework agreement dated
February 1, 2008 and the hospital investment management agreement dated
February 4, 2008, both of which were supplemented in April 2008, December
2010, June 2011, June 2013, July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013,
entered into by CR Hospital Management & Consulting with Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group

Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (Jb =&t
BEREE2ELEEERAR AR, alimited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese entity is provided for identification purpose only.

In this report, the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “subsidiary” and
“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,
unless the context otherwise requires.
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